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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on FornKl@at are not purely historical are forward-loolkjrstatements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws. Forward-looking stateneinclude statements regarding our “expectatibfanticipation,” “intentions,”
“beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding the future, wéther or not those words are used. Forward-looldtagements also include statements
regarding revenue, margins, expenses, and earranglysis for fiscal 2009 and thereafter; technotagiinnovations; products or product
development, including their performance, markedifimn, and potential; our product development tgies; potential acquisitions or
strategic alliances; the success of particular protdor marketing programs; the amounts of revenergegated as a result of sales to signific
customers; and liquidity and anticipated cash nesuis availability. All forward-looking statementscluded in this report are based on
information available to us as of the filing datetlois report, and we assume no obligation to updaty such forward-looking statements. Our
actual results could differ materially from the feard-looking statements. Among the factors thatdcoause actual results to differ materially
are the factors discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed human interface solutioas ¢éimable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comjng, communications, entertainment, and otherteda@ devices. We currently target the
personal computer, or PC, market and the marketiptal lifestyle products, including mobile sm@itbnes and feature phones, portable di
music and video players, and other select electrdevice markets with our customized human interfautions.

We are a market leader in providing humarrfate solutions to our target markets. Our origeguipment manufacturer, or OEM,
customers include most of the tier one PC OEMsraady of the worlds largest OEMs for mobile smartphones and feathom@s and portak
digital music players. We generally supply custagsigned human interface solutions to our OEM custsrthrough their contract
manufacturers, which take delivery of our prodwtd pay us directly for them. Through our new Ong&fooffering, we now offer not only
our custom module solutions but also enable ouloousrs to access our technologies to develop dweirhuman interface designs for
capacitive buttons and scrolling applications farducts such as mobile smartphones and featureeghportable digital music and video
players, and notebook peripherals.

Our website is www.synaptics.cofihrough our website, we make available free afrga all of our Securities and Exchange Commission
filings, including our annual reports on Form 106y proxy statements, our quarterly reports om+90-Q, and our current reports on Form
8-K as well as Form 3, Form 4, and Form 5 Repant®r directors, officers, and principal stocktests] together with amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section },3t&(d), or 16 under the Securities Exchange Moese reports are available immediately
after their electronic filing with the SecuritieschExchange Commission. The website also includgsocate governance information,
including our Code of Conduct, our Code of Ethimsthe CEO and Senior Financial Officers, and oo& Committee Charters.

PC Market

We provide custom human interface solutiomsvigation, cursor control, and multimedia colgtifer many of the world’s premier PC
OEMs. In addition to notebooks, other PC applicaifor our technology include peripherals, suckeagoards, mice, and monitors, as well as
desktop and PC remote control applications. Ouwrtiwls for the PC market include the TouchPad ™ uah-sensitive pad that senses the
position and movement of a person’s finger onui$exe; the TouchStyk™, a self contained, eastiggrated pointing stick module; and dual
pointing solutions, which combine both a TouchPad a pointing stick into a single notebook computaabling users to use the interface of
their choice.

The latest industry projections for notebookt growth for the period 2008-2012 show a compoandual growth rate of 18.1% compared
with 3.6% for desktop computers, reflecting thetoured migration of desktops to notebooks fuelediggrs’ desire for mobile computing and
on-the-go access to applications, information, digital content, which is expanding on a daily ba8iased on the strength of our technology
and engineering know-how, we believe we are wditimned to take advantage of the growth opporjunithe notebook market and to
provide innovative, value-added human interfacetsmis for each of the key end-user preferencese®tenate that in our fiscal 2008
approximately 88% of all notebook computers solkeldusolely a touch pad interface; 2% used solelgiating stick interface; and 10% used a
dual pointing interface, which consists of botltoach pad and a pointing stick. Our notebook protines of touch pads and pointing sticks
allow us to address 100% of the notebook market.

Digital Lifestyle Product Market

We believe our intellectual property portfolaur experience in providing human interface sohg to major OEMs of electronic devices,
and our proven track record of growth in our expagdore notebook computer interface businessipasiis to be a key technological enabler
for multiple consumer electronic devices targetetheet the growing digital lifestyle trend. Baseutibese strengths, we are addressing the
opportunities created by the growth of mobile cotmmy communications, and entertainment devicehiwithe digital lifestyle products
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markets. Digital lifestyle products include molsimartphones and feature phones, portable digitalmaund video players, remote controls,
GPS devices, as well as a variety of mobile, halddkéreless, and entertainment devices. Our asfdyuman interface solutions for digital
lifestyle products include the ScrollStrip and TbRing, which are scrolling solutions allowing ustrsavigate efficiently through menus and
content; LightTouch capacitive buttons, which pdevilluminated button functionality; and MobileTdydNavPoint, and our ClearTouch
solutions. We believe our existing technologies,range of product solutions, and our emphasisase ef use, small size, low power
consumption, advanced functionality, durabilitydaeliability will enable us to serve multiple asfseof the markets for digital lifestyle
products and other electronic devices.

We currently anticipate that our human integfaolutions for mobile smartphones and featuraesvill constitute an increasing portion of
our net revenue. Net revenue for our human interadutions for mobile smartphones and feature bevas not material until the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008. Our success in servingnilebile smartphone market will depend upon the ocametil growth of that portion of the ovel
mobile phone market, the utilization of high-futality interactive touch screens with easyst® touch button controls rather than mecha
buttons as the human interface for application sse@d control in those products, our ability tondastrate to mobile smartphone OEMs,
including those with which we have had no prioatieinship, the advantages of our human interfatgisns in terms of performance, size,
durability, power consumption, and industrial degmpssibilities, and the success of OEMs produttizing our human interface solutions.

Industry projections for the mobile phone nedifor the period 2002011 show a compound annual growth rate of 9%Hermverall marke
and a compound annual growth rate of 48% for thbilmsmartphone and feature phone market, reflgdtia trend towards increased interest
among non-business consumers and the trend togeedter functionality in smartphone products to naeel address the expanded needs and
expectations of the consumer oriented market.

Industry projections for the portable digitalisic player market for the period 2008-2011 sugtded the market is declining at an annual
rate of 1.6% for the overall market but growingaatompound annual rate of 47% for video capable pIBZers, reflecting the trend towards
portable digital entertainment devices with advahcapabilities, such as built-in video playbackataifities. These products require a simple,
durable, and intuitive human interface solutiortable the user to navigate efficiently through nseand scroll through extensive play lists,
songs, and videos contained in the host deviceb8lieve we are well positioned to take advantaghisfgrowing market based on our
technology, engineering know-how, and the accegtafiour human interface solutions by OEMs in tharket.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to enhance owitim as a leading supplier of human interfacetsmhs for the PC market and for the markets
for digital lifestyle products. Key aspects of @tirategy to achieve this objective include thoddméh below.

Extend Our Technological Leaderst

We plan to utilize our extensive intellectpabperty portfolio and technological expertise xte@d the functionality of our product solutions
and offer innovative product solutions to custonamoss multiple markets. We intend to continukzinig our technological expertise to
reduce the overall size, weight, cost, and powasemption of our human interface solutions whileré@sing their applications, capabilities,
and performance. We plan to continue enhancingalse of use and functionality of our solutions. 8é® plan to expand our research and
development efforts through increased investmentinengineering activities, the hiring of additengineering personnel, and strategic
acquisitions and alliances. We believe that théeets will enable us to meet customer expectatiamd to achieve our goal of supplying on a
timely and cost-effective basis the most advaneady-to-use, functional human interface solutionsur target markets.

Enhance Our Position in the PC Marl

We intend to continue introducing market-legdhuman interface solutions in terms of perforneafienctionality, size, and ease of use. We
plan to continue enhancing our customer’s industiésign alternatives and device functionality tigb innovative product development based
on our existing capabilities and technological auhes.
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Capitalize on Growth of New Markets

We intend to capitalize on the growth of nearkets, including the digital lifestyle productsnkets, brought about by the convergence of
computing, communications, and entertainment deviéée plan to offer innovative, intuitive humaneirface solutions that address the
evolving portability, connectivity, and functioniglirequirements of these new markets. We planfer ¢fiese solutions to existing and poter
OEM customers to enable increased functionalityuced size, lower cost, and enhanced industridggddsatures and to enhance the user
experience of their products. We plan to utilize existing technologies as well as aggressivelgpeimew technologies as new markets ev
that demand new solutions.

Emphasize and Expand Customer Relations

We plan to emphasize and expand our strondamgdlasting customer relationships and to essaldiuccessful relationships with new
customers. In each market we serve, we plan tagediie most advanced human interface solutionsdocustomers’ products. We believe
that our human interface solutions enable our costs to deliver a positive user experience andfterdntiate their products from those of
their competitors. We continually attempt to enteatiee competitive position of our customers by g them with innovative, distinctive,
and high-quality human interface solutions on atinand cost-effective basis. To do so, we worktioorally to improve our productivity, to
reduce costs, and to speed the delivery of our huntarface solutions. We endeavor to streamlieectfitire design and delivery process
through our ongoing design, engineering, and pribdimémprovement efforts. We also focus on provigiimely support to our customers after
the purchase of our human interface solutions.

We plan to increase our business with existingfomers and attract new customers by offerisggdgools, documentation, a family of
capacitive sensing ASICs, and technical suppcehttble them to develop their own human interfasigdes for capacitive buttons and
scrolling applications in products such as mohifmgphones and feature phones, portable digitalmauns video players, and PC peripherals.
As a result, customers have a choice of determitiiagnost optimal way to meet their emerging armviytg needs: our traditional custom
module solutions or our OneTouch solution, whicteisf a flexible alternative when design integratiormyuick turns are important.

Pursue Strategic Relationships and Acquisiti

We intend to develop and expand strategidioglships to enhance our ability to offer value-adithuman interface solutions to our
customers, penetrate new markets, and strengtkeerc¢hnological leadership of our product solutie also consider the potential
acquisition of companies in order to expand ounhetogical expertise and to establish or strengtherpresence in selected target markets.

Continue Virtual Manufacturing

We plan to expand and diversify our productiapacity through third-party relationships, thgretrengthening our virtual manufacturing
platform. This strategy results in a scalable besérmodel; enables us to concentrate on our conpetencies of research and development,
technological advances, and product design andheeging; and reduces our capital expenditures amlimg capital requirements. Our virtual
manufacturing strategy allows us to maintain aalde cost model, in which we do not incur mostaf manufacturing costs until our product
solutions have been shipped and billed to our costs.

Product Solutions

We develop and enhance interface technolabasenrich the user’'s experience in interactintipwhe user’'s mobile computing,
communications, and entertainment devices. Ouniative and intuitive human interface solutions barengineered to accommodate many
diverse platforms, and our expertise in human facdod usability can be utilized to improve thedeas and functionality of our solutions. Our
extensive array of technologies includes ASICsyiare, software, mechanical and electrical desigmng,pattern recognition and touch sen
technologies.

Our custom-designed human interface soluttmascustom engineered, total solutions for ourausts and include sensor design, module
layout, ASICs, firmware, and software featuresviiich we provide
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manufacturing and design support and device testihig allows us to be a one-stop supplier for cletephuman interface design from the
early design stage, to manufacturing, to testirdyarpport. Our OneTouch offering includes desigistodocumentation, a family of capacitive
sensing ASICs, and technical support to enableomests to develop their own human interface dedigneapacitive buttons and scrolling
applications. Through our technologies and expertige seek to provide our customers with soluttbas address their individual design issues
and result in high-performance, feature-rich, aglthble interface solutions. We believe our inteefgolutions offer the following
characteristics:

. Ease of Us.. Our interface solutions offer the ease of useiafudtive interaction that users dema

. Small SizeThe small, thin size of our interface solutionstdasa our customers to reduce the overall size aight of their products i
order to satisfy consumer demand for portabi

. Low Power Consumptic. The low power consumption of our interface salng enables our customers to offer products witlyéo
battery life or smaller battery siz

. Advanced Functionalit. Our interface solutions offer advanced featusash as virtual scrolling, customizable tap zoedse motion
and tapping and dragging icons, to enhance theexgarience

. Reliability . The reliability of our interface solutions saiiesf consumer requirements for dependability, wiscnmajor component of
consumer satisfactiol

. Durability . Our interface solutions withstand repeated uaesthphysical treatment, and temperature fluctnatiehile providing
superior level of performanc

We believe these characteristics will enalsléoumaintain our leadership position in the PChkaiand to enhance our position as a
technological enabler within the markets for diglifestyle products and other electronic devidasluding mobile smartphones and feature
phones and portable digital music and video players

Our human interface solutions are intendeshtisfy our customer’s specification needs, inaigdieatures and functionality, industrial
design, mechanical, and electrical requirements.pbaducts also offer unique integration optiomsJuding allowing our capacitive sensors to
be placed underneath the plastic of the devicechvhilows for streamlined and stylized designspiiporating LEDs to indicate status or
enhance industrial design, and incorporating &atiflicators, including ridges, Braille bumps, aextures designed to provide the user with
additional feedback.

Our emphasis on technological leadership @sibd capabilities positions us to provide uniquméan interface solutions that address
specific customer requirements. Our long-term wagkielationships with large, global OEMs providewith experience in satisfying their
demanding design specifications and other requinésn©ur custom product solutions provide OEMs witimerous benefits, including the
following:

. modular integration

. reduced product development co

. shorter product time to marke

. compact and efficient platform

. improved product functionality and utility; au
. product differentiation

We work with our customers in order to meeirttechnical and functional specifications, thedtustrial design requirements, and their
desire to differentiate their products from tho§éheir competitors. This collaborative effort reds the duplication and overlap of investment
and resources, enabling our OEM customers to demote time and resources to the market developofeheir products.

4




Table of Contents

We utilize capacitive technology rather thasistive or mechanical technology in our produtaitgans. Unlike resistive and mechanical
technology, our solid state capacitive technology ho moving parts or activation force, therebgiifig a durable, more reliable solution that
can be integrated into both curved and flat suga€apacitive technologies also allow for muchtleinsensors than resistive or mechanical
technology, providing for slimmer, more compact amijue industrial designs.

Products

Our family of product solutions allows our tursers to solve their interface needs and difféagmtheir products from those of their
competitors.

TouchPad

Our TouchPad, which takes the place and excwdfunctionality of a mouse, is a small, touehsitive pad that senses the position of a
persons finger on its surface through the measuremeoépécitance. Our TouchPad provides an accuratdoctable, and reliable method 1
screen navigation and cursor movement and prowgeatform for interactive input. Our TouchPad s$iolos allow our customers to provide
stylish, simple, usefriendly, and intuitive human interface solutios both the consumer and corporate markets. Ouctiad solutions off
various advanced features, including the following:

. Virtual scrolling. This feature enables the user to scroll throughdomument by swiping a finger along the side otdrotof the
TouchPad

. Customizable tap zoneThese zones permit designated portions of the TRadho be used to simulate mouse clicks, lat
applications, and perform other selected functi

. EdgeMotion™ . This feature permits cursor movement to continuem use's finger reaches the edge of the Touchl

. Tapping and dragging of icon$his feature allows the user to simply tap and towichn icon in order to drag it, rather than bdorged
to hold a button down in order to drag an ic

. Multi-finger gesturesThis feature allows the user to designate speadimns when more than one finger is used on thefi®ad

Our TouchPad solutions are available in astaf sizes, electrical interfaces, and thicknes®ar TouchPad solutions are designed to
the electrical and mechanical specifications of@stomers. Customized firmware and driver softvegrgure the availability of specialized
features. As a result of their solid state charasttes, our TouchPad solutions have no movingsptirat wear out, resulting in a robust and
reliable input solution that also allows for unigndustrial designs.

TouchStyk

Our TouchStyk is a proprietary pointing stioterface solution. TouchStyk is a self-containegkily integrated module that uses capacitive
technology similar to that of our TouchPad. ToughS$ enabled with press-to-select and tap-to-atiggabilities and can be easily integrated
into multiple computing and communications devidasaddition, our design greatly reduces suscditjitio electromagnetic interference,
thereby providing greater pointing accuracy and/@néing the pointer from drifting when not in use.

We are currently shipping our TouchStyk inelmtoks, portable multimedia players, and ultra hegiérsonal computers. Our modular
approach allows OEMs to include our TouchPad, auchStyk, or a combination of both interfaces wittiproducts.
Dual Pointing Solution:

Our dual pointing solutions offer a TouchPdthwa pointing stick in a single notebook compurabling users to select their interface of
choice. Our dual pointing solution also provides ¢&md user the ability to use both interfaces ah@ngeably. Our dual pointing solution
provides the following advantages:
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. cos-effective and simplified OEM integratio

. simplified OEM product line because one device amst both solutions

. single-source supplier, which eliminates compatibilityuiss; anc

. end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenci

We have developed two solutions for use indivl pointing market. Our first solution integratd! the electronics for controlling a third-
party resistive strain gauge pointing stick onto douchPad PCB. This solution simplifies OEM int&gwn by eliminating the need to procure
the pointing stick electronics from another pantg @hysically integrate them into the notebook. €rond dual pointing solution uses our
TouchStyk rather than a third-party pointing stéeld offers the same simplified OEM integration. Feeond solution is a completely modular
design, allowing OEMs to offer TouchPad-only, To8t/k-only, or dual pointing solutions on a builddgoder basis.

LuxPad

LuxPad is an innovative illuminated TouchP&lde LuxPad is designed to allow our customersfferdintiate their products. The LuxPad
can either light up the entire touchpad, light Upgo in the center of the TouchPad, or light upigieated “virtual buttons” on the TouchPad,
depending on the preference of the notebook designe

Dual Mode TouchPa

Dual Mode TouchPad is designed to transfomnthuchPad from a cursor control device to a lawamthcontrol center with the touch of a
button. In default mode, the Dual Mode providesgame cursor control for on screen navigation staredard TouchPad. When the user taps
on a launch icon located on the TouchPad surfas#ra icons illuminate on the TouchPad surface.

The Dual Mode offers a variety of customizataptions to the OEM, including tap zones for lghing applications and multimedia contn
scrolling zones to adjust volume, and programmbbtéons so end users can choose which applicateynwould like to launch through our
Dual Mode driver. To regain cursor control, theru@mply taps the mode switch button and the illuatéd icons disappear, allowing the user
to control the cursor for on-screen navigation.

TouchRing

Our TouchRing is an integrated, solid statelsng wheel utilizing our capacitive touch sergitechnology that enables the user to navigate
through menus and scroll through lists. Our ToudigR$ utilized in MP3 players, personal media ptayand remote controls, enabling the
to navigate efficiently through menus and scralbtlgh extensive play lists and songs.

ScrollStrip

ScrollStrip is a one-dimensional TouchPad fravides a simple and intuitive way for usersam8 through menus, navigate through
content, and adjust controls. A ScrollStrip carubed in a wide variety of applications that reqaithin, robust, accurate, and easy$e-inpu
and navigation device, including PC peripheralshsas keyboards and mice, and digital lifestyledpats. ScrollStrip is thin, lightweight, and
flexible and can be mounted on curved surfacesdet e industrial design needs of our OEM custem@urrently, the ScrollStrip is
incorporated into a number of devices, including3\ifayers, PC keyboards, and computer mice.

LightTouch

LightTouch is a simple, easy to use, styligiiface solution that replaces mechanical buttgtisan illuminated sensor programmed to
perform functions, such as multimedia controls|luding pause, play, fast-forward, and rewind. Lighich is designed for integration under
the plastic face of a device, allowing for a seathih design that is both stylish and durable.r€uotly, a number of custom LightTouch
solutions are
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available in the market, including multimedia catdrfor notebook PCs, a multimedia keyboard, anoug®on controls for MP3 players.

MobileTouch

MobileTouch is a new product solution spediliig designed for the mobile phone environment timahbines our expertise in ease of use
with our technology capabilities. The result istons-designed modules that can combine our scroléetpction, and navigation capabilities
into a simple, easy to use interface solution if@roves access to mobile phone content and apiplisa MobileTouch can be mounted
beneath the plastic of the phone, making it wetkesito the mobile phone environment where slimigieand durability are essential.

SmartTouch

SmartTouch is a software-configurable auxjlimterface for notebook computers that enablesbuik computer OEMs to offer their
customers the advanced functionality and custoriligabf our software-configured LightTouch controér with on-screen display. Our
SmartTouch solution replaces conventional multiraduittons with virtual contextual controls thatauttically adapt to the software
application that is being used at the time to presastomized browser, media player, DVD playersystems controls and enables users to
personalize touch control behavior, including addedback, touch sensibility, illumination, contfohctions, and control placement.

ClearPad

ClearPad consists of a clear, thin capacgamsor that can be placed over any viewable syriadeding display devices, such as LCDs.
Similar to our traditional TouchPad, our ClearPad tiarious distinct advantages, including lightgheilow profile form factor; high
reliability, durability, and accuracy; and low pawensumption. ClearPad can be mounted on or undeed surfaces, providing for unique
and sleek industrial designs.

ClearArray

ClearArray is an extension of our core capaisensing technology that has been used in tpadh for notebook PCs. ClearArray is a ¢
sensor that can be mounted under plastic, provi@iBlls with easy integration and attractive desigtioms for scrolling and buttons.

NavPoint

The NavPoint solution offers users improveuictionality and versatility in accessing and manggiontent in handheld devices through
unigue navigation controls, including short- anddeadistance scrolling features, tapping, and mdikgecursor navigation.

OneTouch

OneTouch is a configurable solution basedwncapacitive sensing technology, which includesacitive sensing ASIC, easy-to-use
design tools, documentation, and technical supfwat,enables customers to develop their own cugtterface designs in-house for capacitive
buttons and scrolling applications in various pretduincluding mobile smartphones and feature psigpertable digital media players, and PC
peripherals, such as monitors, keyboards, micer@mate controls. OneTouch increases our reach éreostomer standpoint by offering th
an alternative and flexible way to leverage ouhtedogy and knowrow whether through our traditional custom moduwleitson or through th
new OneTouch capability that allows them to implat@pacitive sensing in-house when design integratr quick design turns are
important.

QuickStroke

QuickStroke provides a fast, easy, and acewray to input Chinese characters. Using our reitiogrtechnology that combines our
patented software with our TouchPad, QuickStrokereaognize handwritten, partially finished Chinebaracters, thereby saving consider
time and effort. Our QuickStroke, which operatethwiur touch pad products, can be integrated intelrook computers, keyboards, and a
of stand-alone interface devices that use eithpameor a finger.
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Our patented Incremental Recognition Technpkdtpws users to simply enter the first few stroké a Chinese character, and QuickStroke
accurately interprets the intended character. Sime¢ypical Chinese character consists of an aeeof 13 strokes, QuickStroke technology
saves considerable time and effort. We can poierdifit alphabets or characters to our underlyintgparecognition engine, allowing us to
offer support for different languages.

Technologies

We have developed and own an extensive afrgcbnologies, encompassing ASICs, firmware, safeypattern recognition, and touch
sensing technologies. With 94 U.S. patents in fareet 80 U.S. patents pending, as well as many n@nddunterparts, we continue to develop
technology in these areas. We believe these tegfiaal and the related intellectual property createiers for competitors and allow us to
provide human interface solutions in a variety ighhgrowth market segments.

Our broad line of human interface solutionsently is based upon the following key technolsgie
. capacitive position sensing technolo
. capacitive force sensing technolo
. transparent capacitive position sensing technol
. pattern recognition technolog
. mixed signal integrated circuit technology; ¢
. proprietary microcontroller technolog

In addition to these technologies, we devéilopware and device driver software that we incogte into our products, which provide
unique features, such as virtual scrolling, custarblie tap zones, PalmCheck, EdgeMotion, and tapgridgdragging of icons. In addition, our
ability to integrate all of our products to inteséawith major operating systems, including Wind®8s Windows 2000, Windows NT,
Windows CE, Windows XP, Windows ME, Windows Viskéac OS, Pocket PC, Palm OS, Symbian, UNIX, and LX\provides us with a
competitive advantage.

Capacitive Position Sensing Technolog@his technology provides a method for sensing tlesgnce, position, and contact area of one or
more fingers or a conductive stylus on a flat aved surface, such as our TouchPad, TouchRingSanallStrip. Our technology works with
very light touch and provides highly responsivesonmavigation, scrolling, and selection. It usesmoving parts, can be implemented under
plastic, and is extremely durable.

Capacitive Force Sensing Technolo@his technology senses the direction and magnitfideforce applied to an object. The object can
either move when force is applied, like a typiealgtick used for gaming applications, or it caridmmetric, with no perceptible motion during
use, like our TouchStyk. The primary competitiontfuis technology is resistive strain gauge techgpl Resistive strain gauge technology
requires electronics that can sense very smallggaim resistance, presenting challenges to thigrdesthat circuitry, including sensitivity to
electrical noise and interference. Our electroivicuitry determines the magnitude and directiomfapplied force, permits very accurate
sensing of tiny changes in capacitance, and mimsétectrical interference from other sources.

Transparent Capacitive Position Sensing Technol@yis technology allows us to build transparent sesifor use with our capacitive
position sensing technology, such as in our CledrR#&as all the advantages of our capacitivetrssensing technology and allows for
visual feedback when incorporated with a displayick such as an LCD. Our technology does not reqalibration, does not produce
undesirable internal reflections, and has reduaseep requirements, allowing for longer battery.life

Pattern Recognition Technologihis technology is a set of software algorithms twthniques for converting real-world data, such as
handwriting, into a digital form that can be recizgil and manipulated within a
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computer, such as our QuickStroke product and gesiecoding for our TouchPad products. Our tectgyofwovides reliable handwriting
recognition and can be used in other applicatioich sis signature verification.

Mixed Signalintegrated Circuit Technologhhis hybrid analog-digital integrated circuit tectmgy combines the power of digital
computation with the ability to interface with ndigital, real-world signals, such as the positié@dinger or stylus on a surface. Our patented
design techniques permit us to utilize this tecbgglto optimize our core ASIC engine for all ouogucts.

Proprietary Microcontroller Technologyrhis technology consists of a proprietary 16-bi¢racontroller core embedded in the digital
portion of our mixed signal ASIC, which allows wsdptimize our ASIC for position sensing tasks. @mbedded microcontroller provides
great flexibility in customizing our product solaiis utilizing firmware, which eliminates the neediesign new circuitry for each new
application.

Competing Technology

Many human interface solutions currently mélresistive sensing technology. Resistive sertsictgnology consists of a flexible membrane
above a flat, rigid, electrically conductive suda®Vhen finger or stylus pressure is applied tontleenbrane, it deforms until it makes contact
with the rigid layer below, at which point attacheldctronics can determine the position of thedingr stylus. Since the flexible membrane
moving part, it is susceptible to mechanical weat will eventually suffer degraded performance. Buthe way that resistive position sensors
work, it is not possible for them to detect morartfa single finger or stylus at any given time. Pbsitional accuracy of a resistive sensor is
limited by the uniformity of the resistive coatiag well as by the mechanics of the flexible memér&mally, implementations of resistive
technology over display devices, such as an LC8yltén reduced transmissivity, or the amount ghtithat can pass through the display,
requiring the use of backlighting and thereby redgithe battery life of the device.

Research and Development

We conduct ongoing research and developmegirams that focus on advancing our technologiegldping new products, improving
design and manufacturing processes, and enhar@rguglity and performance of our product soluti@sr goal is to provide our customers
with innovative solutions that address their nesaks improve their competitive positions. Our reskand development is focused on
advancing our existing interface technologies, imprg our current product solutions, and expandingtechnologies to serve new markets.
Our vision is to offer human interface solutions;ls as touch, handwriting, vision, and voice caltés, that can be readily incorporated into
varied electronic devices.

Our research and development programs focuilsendevelopment of accurate, easy to use, reliablke intuitive human interfaces for
electronic devices. We believe our innovative ifatee technologies can be applied to many diversdyats. We believe the interface is a key
factor in the differentiation of these products. Wédieve that our interface technologies enabl®ysovide customers with product solutions
that have significant advantages over alternatie@rologies in terms of functionality, size, powensumption, durability, and reliability. We
also intend to pursue strategic relationships awgigitions to enhance our research and developoagatbilities, leverage our technology, and
shorten our time to market with new technologigglleations.

Our research, design, and engineering teaagsiéntly work directly with our customers to destmistom solutions for specific applications.
We focus on enabling our customers to overcomenieahbarriers and enhance the performance of gredtucts. We believe our engineering
know-how and electronic systems expertise provigeificant benefits to our customers by enablingnthto concentrate on their core
competencies of production and marketing.

As of June 30, 2008, we employed 236 peoptauirtechnology, engineering, and product desigictfons in the United States, Hong Ko
Taiwan, Korea, and Japan. Our research and develuperpenses were approximately $35.4 million, 4$38illion, and $50.1 million in fiscal
2006, 2007, and 2008, respectively.
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Intellectual Property Rights

Our success and ability to compete dependihgn our ability to maintain the proprietary asgeof our technologies and products. We
on a combination of patents, copyrights, tradeetectrademarks, confidentiality agreements, ahdratontractual provisions to protect our
intellectual property, but these measures may geowhly limited protection. Our research, desigi angineering teams frequently work
directly with our OEM customers to design custorusons for specific applications.

We hold 94 U.S. patents in force and have &8 Patents pending, as well as many non-U.S. egpatts to the U.S. patents and U.S.
patents pending. Collectively, these patents atehfgpending cover various aspects of our keyn@olgies, including touch sensing, pen
sensing, handwriting recognition, customizablezapes, edge motion, and virtual scrolling techni@egOur proprietary software is protected
by copyright laws. The source code for our proprgtsoftware is also protected under applicabléetisecret laws.

Our extensive array of technologies includ&s@s, firmware, software, and pattern recognitiod position sensing technologies. Our
products rely on a combination of these technokgigaking it difficult to use any single technolagg/the basis for replicating our products.
Furthermore, the length and customization of thetamer design cycle serve to protect our intelk@ghuoperty rights.

Patent applications that we have filed or rilayin the future may not result in a patent beisgued. Our issued patents may be challenged,
invalidated, or circumvented, and claims of oulepéd may not be of sufficient scope or strengtlisgred in the proper geographic regions, to
provide meaningful protection or any commercialattage. We have not applied for, and do not hawecapyright registration on our
technologies or products. We have applied to regitrtain of our trademarks in the United Stateb@her countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations oferadrks in key markets. Failure to obtain registregicould compromise our ability to protect
fully our trademarks and brands and could incrélaseisk of challenge from third parties to our e$@ur trademarks and brands. In addition,
our failure to enforce and protect our intellectoiaperty rights or obtain from third parties tlght to use necessary technology could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmzatlition, and results of operations.

We do not consistently rely on written agreataavith our customers, suppliers, manufacturerd,ather recipients of our technologies and
products, and therefore some trade secret protestay be lost and our ability to enforce our irgellial property rights may be limited.
Furthermore, our customers, suppliers, manufactpeard other recipients of our technologies andyets may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. Ie ffast, we did not consistently require our emmgyend consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention agreemefitserefore, our former employees and
consultants may try to claim some ownership intaresur technologies and products and may useamimologies and products competitively
and without appropriate limitations.

Other companies, including our competitorsy m@velop technologies that are similar or supadasur technologies, duplicate our
technologies, or design around our patents andiraag or obtain patents or other proprietary rigihas would prevent, limit, or interfere with
our ability to make, use, or sell our productseEfive intellectual property protection may be wiikable or limited in some foreign countries
which we operate, such as China and Taiwan. Unaa#tbparties may attempt to copy or otherwiseasgeects of our technologies and
products that we regard as proprietary. There eamobassurance that our means of protecting ogrigtary rights in the United States or
abroad will be adequate or that competitors witlindependently develop similar technologies. If mtellectual property protection is
insufficient to protect our intellectual properfghits, we could face increased competition in tlaekat for our technologies and products.

We may receive notices from third parties tilaim our products infringe their rights. From &rto time, we receive notice from third par
of the intellectual property rights such partieséhabtained. We cannot be certain that our teclygiesoand products do not and will not
infringe issued patents or other proprietary rigiftthird parties. Any infringement claims, with without merit, could result in significant
litigation costs and diversion of resources, inglgdhe payment of damages, which could have anmhtalverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.
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Customers

Our customers include many of the world’s éstgPC OEMSs, based on unit shipments, as wellasiety of consumer electronics
manufacturers. Our demonstrated track record dint@logical leadership, design innovation, prodwf@mance, cost effectiveness, and on-
time delivery have resulted in our leadership posiin providing human interface solutions. We bedi our strong relationship with our OEM
customers, many of which are currently developiigital lifestyle products, will position us as ausoe of supply for their product offerings.

Our industry leading OEM customers in fisc@082 included the following:

* Acer * Lenovo

» Asustek * LG Electronics
* Dell * Microsoft

* Fujitsu e Samsun(

» Gateway e Sharp

» Hewlet-Packarc * Toshiba

We generally supply custom-designed productaur OEM customers through their contract manufaes. We sell our custom-designed
products directly to these contract manufactusgtsch include Compal, Hon Hai, Inventec, Kang Zllactronics, Shanghai Yi Hsin, S-Mac,
Wistron, and Zhan Yun Shanghai Electronics. Saléghan Yun accounted for approximately 10% of cetrnevenue for fiscal 2008. Sales to
Compal and Wistron in the aggregate accountedgpraximately 26% of our net revenue for fiscal 208@ other customer accounted for
more than 10% of our net revenue for either fil7 or 2008. We supply our OneTouch solution diyeéo our OEM customers.

We consider both the OEMs and their contrahufiacturers to be our customers. Both the OEMslagid contract manufacturers may
determine the design and pricing requirements askkrthe overall decision regarding the use of oundmn interface solutions in their
products. The contract manufacturers place ord@hsus for the purchase of our products, take tdléhe products purchased upon shipmei
us, and pay us directly for those purchases. Tbestmers have no return privileges except for avdyr provisions.

Strategic Relationships

We have used strategic relationships to erdhanc ability to offer value-added customer solusiin the past and we intend to enter into
additional strategic relationships with compankes iay help us serve our target markets.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our product solutions for incorporatiato the products of our OEM customers. We gdresales through direct sales employees as
well as outside sales representatives and distribuOur sales personnel receive substantial teehassistance and support from our internal
engineering resources because of the highly teahnature of our product solutions. Sales freqyemtbult from multi-level sales efforts that
involve senior management, design engineers, andades personnel interacting with our customeesision makers throughout the product
development and order process.

We currently employ 86 sales and marketindgasionals. We maintain eight customer supportesfidomestically and internationally,
which are located in the United States, Taiwanp@hKorea, Japan, Hong Kong, and Switzerland. titimth, we utilize sales representative
Korea, Singapore, and Malaysia and sales distnibutoJapan and Taiwan.

International sales constituted approxima®96, 99%, and 99% of our revenue for fiscal 20@®, 72 and 2008, respectively. Over 81% of
our sales were made to companies located in Chid& aiwan that provide design and manufacturingises for major notebook computer
and digital lifestyle product OEMs. All of our salevere denominated in U.S. dollars.
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Manufacturing

We employ a virtual manufacturing platformahgh third-party relationships. We currently uglitvo semiconductor wafer manufacturers
to supply us with silicon wafers integrating ouoprietary design specifications. The completedailiwafers are forwarded to third-party
package and test processors for further processioglie and packaged ASICs, as applicable, whiehtfeen utilized in our custom interface
products or processed as our OneTouch products.

After processing and testing, the die and ASA€ consigned to various contract manufactuogradsembly or, in the case of OneTouch
ASICs, are shipped directly to our customers. Dyithre assembly process, our die or ASIC is combivigd other components to complete the
module for our custom human interface solution. filished assembled product is subsequently shipgexur contract manufacturers directly
to our customers for integration into their product

We believe our virtual manufacturing strat@ggvides a scalable business model; enables ust®ntrate on our core competencies of
research and development, technological advanondgpraduct design; and reduces our capital experedit In addition, this strategy
significantly reduces our working capital requirertssfor inventory because we do not incur mostwfroanufacturing costs until we have
actually shipped our interface products to ouraugtrs and billed those customers for those products

Our third-party contract manufacturers areaAdbased organizations. We provide our contractufaaturers with six-month rolling
forecasts of our production requirements. We do mmtvever, have lontgerm agreements with any of our contract manufacsuthat guarante
production capacity, prices, lead times, or delnshedules. The strategy of relying on those gagikposes us to vulnerability owing to our
dependence on few sources of supply. We beliewgeter, that other sources of supply are availdhladdition, we may establish
relationships with other contract manufacturersritter to reduce our dependence on any one sousigpfy.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from oanttact manufacturers when a customer’s delivelnedule is delayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ouraust has cancelled its order and we purchase iagefrom our contract manufacturers, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valfihe inventory purchased to its net realizableaWrite-downs to reduce the carrying
value of obsolete, slow moving, and non-usablentwg to net realizable value are charged to cbetwenue.

Backlog

As of June 30, 2008, we had a backlog of ardéf$50.3 million, an increase of $3.4 million quaned with a backlog of orders as of
June 30, 2007 of $46.9 million. The increase irklzagis primarily related to the increase in deméordour products. Our backlog consists of
product orders for which purchase orders have besgived and which are scheduled for shipmentérsttbsequent quarter. Most orders are
subject to rescheduling or cancellation with lirdifgenalties. Because of the possibility of custoai@nges in product shipments, our backlog
as of a particular date may not be indicative dfsades for any succeeding period.

Competition

Our principal competitor in the sale of notekdouch pads and notebook pointing sticks is Afestric, a Japanese conglomerate. In the
markets for digital lifestyle products and othexattonic devices, our competitors include Cypréssiel, Melfas, Elan, and various other
companies involved in human interface solutiongdrtain cases, large OEMs may develop alternativean interface solutions for their own
products or provide key components for use in désgghuman interface solutions.

In the notebook human interface market, wa ptacontinue to compete primarily on the basiswftechnological expertise, design
innovation, customer service, and the long trackm of performance of our human interface solgjoncluding their ease of use, reliability,
and cost-effectiveness as well as their timelygtegproduction, and delivery schedules. Our pognsitick solutions, including our proprietary
TouchStyk, enable us to address the approximatefa#ie notebook computer market that uses solglyirting stick rather than a touch pac
the human interface as well as the approximate aD#te notebook market that uses dual pointing
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interfaces. Our ability to supply OEMs with TouckiBaTouchStyks, and dual pointing alternatives anés our market position as we can
provide OEMs with the following advantages:

. single source supplier to eliminate compatibilggues

. cos-effective and simplified integratiol

. simplified product line to address both interfaceferences

. end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenct

. highly experienced engineering resources, partityuia the mechanical, industrial design, and eleat areas as the general noteb
market embraces thinner and lighter designs;

. modular approach allowing OEMs to utilize our ToRel, our TouchStyk, or a combination of both iraeek.

In the human interface markets for digitaddifyle products and other electronic devices, wepate primarily based on the advantages of
our systems knowledge of capacitive sensing aneénpatecognition technologies. We believe our sohg-based engineering expertise cou
with our technologies offer benefits in terms afesipower consumption, durability, light transmitgi resolution, ease of use, and reliability
when compared to our competitors and other teclgmedo While these markets continue to evolve, wigbe we are positioned to compete
aggressively for this business based on our prtreek record, our marquee global customer basepandeputation for design innovation. In
addition, new competitors, alliances among compegtjtor alliances among competitors and OEMs magrgenand allow competitors to
rapidly acquire significant market share.

Furthermore, our competitors or our customegly develop technologies in the future that mofecéi¥ely address the human interface
needs of the notebook market and other marketss@las, profitability, and success depend on ollityato compete with other suppliers of
human interface solutions and components usednmahtnterface solutions. Our competitive positionld be adversely affected if one or
more of our current OEMs reduce their orders evdfare unable to develop new customers for our huntarface solutions.

Employees

As of June 30, 2008, we employed a total & g@rsons, including 98 in finance, administratiamd operations; 86 in sales and marketing;
and 236 in research and development. Of these gegs0 266 were located in North America, 150 ireAacific, and 4 in Europe. We
consider our relationship with our employees t@bed, and none of our employees are representadubjon in collective bargaining with us.

Competition for qualified personnel in our urstky is extremely intense, particularly for engirieg and other technical personnel. Our
success depends on our continued ability to afthéret, and retain qualified personnel.
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Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain infortioa regarding our executive officers:

Name Age Position

Francis F. Let 56 Chief Executive Officer and Direct

Thomas J. Tierna 45 President, Chief Operating Officer, and Direc

Russell J. Knitte 58 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBgcretary, and Treasul
David B. Long 47 Vice President of World Wide Sal

Alex Wong 52 Vice President of World Wide Operatio

Francis F. Leehas served as a director and Chief Executive Gfti€eur company since January 1999. He was a tamsdrom
August 1998 to November 1998. From May 1995 umdy 1998, Mr. Lee served as General Manager of N&Mong Kong-based joint
venture between National Semiconductor CorporadimhS. Megga. Mr. Lee held a variety of executiosifions for National Semiconductor
from 1988 until August 1995. These positions ineld&ice President of Communication and Computingu@r Vice President of Quality and
Reliability, Director of Standard Logic BusinessitJand various other operations and engineeringagement positions. Mr. Lee is a director
of Foveon, Inc., a privately held company in whieé have an ownership interest. Mr. Lee holds a Blachof Science degree, with honors, in
electrical engineering from the University of Califia at Davis.

Thomas J. Tiernahas served as a director and the President and Gpérating Officer since July 2008. Mr. Tiernamsal as Executive
Vice President and General Manager of our compeom fuly 2007 until July 2008 and as Senior VicesiRtent of our company from
March 2006 until July 2007. Prior to joining oumgpany, Mr. Tiernan served as Vice President ance@éManager of Symbol Technologies’
Mobile Computing Division. From 1985 to 2004, Miiefihan held various management and executive paositit Hewlett-Packard, including
running the Network Storage business in the Amerittge Enterprise Systems business in Asia Paaifid,the PC business in Japan.
Mr. Tiernan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrieafineering from California State Polytechnic Unsity and a Masters of Science in
Computer Engineering from Santa Clara University.

Russell J. Knittehas been Executive Vice President of our compamyesiuly 2007 and Chief Financial Officer, Chiefridistrative
Officer, Secretary, and Treasurer of our compangesNovember 2001. Mr. Knittel served as Senioe\Rcesident of our company from
November 2001 until July 2007. He served as the Wiesident of Administration and Finance, ChiefaRcial Officer, and Secretary of ¢
company from April 2000 through October 2001. Mnittel served as Vice President and Chief Finaroféicer of Probe Technology
Corporation from May 1999 to March 2000. He waastltant from January 1999 until April 1999. Mmikel was Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer at Starlight Networks from Noveent1994 to December 1998. Mr. Knittel holds a Bémhef Arts degree in accounting frc
California State University at Fullerton and a Mastof Business Administration from San Jose Siatgersity.

David B. Longhas been the Vice President of World Wide Salesiocompany since January 2008. Prior to joiningammpany,
Mr. Long served as Vice President of Worldwide Sdte Consumer Products at LS| Logic Corporatiorekethe directed the management of
sales and customer support for standard and custimon solutions. From 2003 to 2006, he servethasVice President of Asia Pacific Sales
focused on the Consumer and Storage product segntémtvas the Director of North American-West Sébed S| Operations from 2002 to
2003. Mr. Long also managed LSI's worldwide accawith Cisco Systems from 1998 until 2002, directimgextended team of sales,
engineering, marketing, operations, and custonmeicgerepresentatives. Mr. Long received a Bachelbegree in Business
Administration/Marketing Management from Califoriialytechnic University, San Luis Obispo in 1985.
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Alex Wondhas been the Vice President of World Wide Operatmfrour company since September 2006. From 20@8@6, Mr. Wong
served our company as Managing Director of Hongd<and Director of Operations. Prior to joining Sgties, Mr. Wong held various
management positions with National Semiconductmipding General Manager for National Joint VensureChina and Hong Kong as well
the Director of Corporate Business Development.\Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Com@aence from California State
University at Northridge and a Masters in Busingdministration from the University of East Asia, bu.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the followingfars, together with all the other information iméd in this report, in evaluating our compi
and our business.

We currently depend on our TouchPad and TouchStyk pducts, and the notebook computer market, for a gjnificant portion of our
revenue, and a downturn in these products or this arket could have a disproportionate impact on our evenue.

Historically, we have derived a very substrtrtion of our revenue from the sale of our Trdead and TouchStyk products for notebook
computers. While our long-term objective is to denievenue from multiple human interface solutiforsboth the notebook computer market
and the markets for digital lifestyle products arider electronic devices, we anticipate that salesir TouchPads and TouchStyks for
notebooks will continue to represent a signifigamttion of our revenue. The PC market as a whaoteexperienced a slowdown in the rate of
growth. A continued or accelerated softening indemand in the notebook portion of the PC markeheidevel of our participation in that
market would cause our business, financial conditamd results of operations to suffer more thay thould have if we offered a more
diversified line of products.

Net revenue from our human interface solutions fodigital lifestyle products have been volatile in tie past, and our net revenue from
our human interface solutions for digital lifestyleproducts may not increase or be less volatile imé future.

Net revenue from our human interface solutiongligital lifestyle products, particularly pottie digital music players, have been volatile in
the past. Net revenue from our human interfacetisols for mobile smartphones and feature phoneg recently became material. Our net
revenue from our human interface solutions fortdidifestyle products may not increase or be lesatile in the future. Net revenue from our
human interface solutions for digital lifestyle gumts were $40.6 million (which included $32.7 oifl for digital music and video players and
$7.5 million for mobile smartphones and featuren@s), or 15% of our net revenue, in fiscal 2007 $88L3 million (which included
$40.5 million for digital music and video playenrsda$47.7 million for mobile smartphones and feaphenes), or 24% of our net revenue, in
fiscal 2008. Further, our interface business fgitdl lifestyle products faces many uncertaintiesluding our success in penetrating new
markets dominated by a limited number of OEMs. Dability to address these uncertainties succdgsind to become a leading supplier of
human interfaces for digital lifestyle products wbtesult in a slower growth rate than we curreatiyicipate. We do not know whether our
human interface solutions for the digital lifestpleduct market will gain market acceptance or esfer result in a substantial portion of our
revenue on a consistent basis. The failure to sutitethese other markets would result in no returthe substantial investments we have
made to date and plan to make in the future totpatecthese markets.

We cannot assure you that our human interface busiss for digital lifestyle products will be successf or that we will be able to
generate significant revenue from the markets for wjital lifestyle products.

Various target markets for our interfaceshsag those for mobile smartphones and feature gh@S devices, smart handheld devices,
and interactive games and toys, are uncertain,daaglop slower than anticipated, or could utilibenpeting technologies. The market for
certain of these products depends in part upodé¢lrelopment and deployment of wireless and otlemiglogies, which may or may not
address the needs of users of these new products.

Our ability to generate significant revenuenirthe markets for certain digital lifestyle protiuwill depend on various factors, including the
following:

. the development and growth of these mark

. the ability of our technologies and product solntido address the needs of these markets, theeewriits of OEMs, and tt
preferences of end users; ¢

. our ability to provide OEMs with human interfas@lutions that provide advantages in terms of i@@jer consumption, reliability,
durability, performance, and val-added features compared with alternative soluti
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Many manufacturers of these products have-estliblished relationships with competitive suppli®enetrating these markets will require
us to offer better performance alternatives totedssolutions at competitive costs. We generatiyndt have a significant backlog of orders for
our human interface solutions to be incorporategrgducts in these markets. The failure of anyheke target markets to develop as we ex
or our failure to penetrate these markets to aifsignt extent, will impede our anticipated saleswth and could result in substantially redu
earnings from those we anticipate. We cannot ptékécsize or growth rate of these markets or theket share we will achieve in these
markets in the future.

Our historical financial performance is based primaily on net revenue generated from our human interfce solutions to the notebook
computer market and may not be indicative of our faure performance in other markets.

Our historical financial performance primanigflects net revenue generated from our humanfate solutions for notebook computers.
While we expect sales of our human interface smhstifor notebook computers to continue to genexratgbstantial percentage of our revenue,
we expect to derive an increasing portion of ouereie from sales of our product solutions for digifestyle products, including mobile
smartphones and feature phones, portable digitalaqlayers, and other electronic devices. We laalimited operating history in these
markets, especially for mobile smartphones andifegthones, upon which you can evaluate our préespebich may make it difficult to
predict our actual results in future periods. Attesults of our future operations may differ métity from our anticipated results.

We currently anticipate that our human inteefgolutions for mobile smartphones and featuraesavill constitute an increasing portion of
our net revenue. Net revenue for our human interadutions for mobile smartphones and feature gbovas not material until the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008. Our success in servingnlebile smartphone market will depend upon the oomtil growth of that segment of the
overall mobile phone market; the utilization of lfunctionality interactive touch screens with e&syse touch button controls rather than
mechanical buttons as the human interface for egjitin access and control in those products; ailityals demonstrate to mobile smartphone
OEMs, including those with which we have had n@prelationship, the advantages of our human iatersolutions in terms of performance,
size, durability, power consumption, and industrdi@sign possibilities, and the success of OEMsyartsdutilizing our human interface
solutions.

Market acceptance of our customers’ existing or neygroducts that utilize our human interface solutionmay decline or may not develop
and, as a result, our sales may decline or may nisicrease.

We do not sell any products to end userseatstwe design various human interface solutiomsatir OEM customers incorporate into tt
products. As a result, our success depends almbtigglg upon the widespread market acceptance 0O&M customers’ products. We do not
control or influence the manufacture, promotiostritbution, or pricing of the products that incorgi@ our human interface solutions. Instead,
we depend on our customers to manufacture andbdistrproducts incorporating our human interfadetgmns and to generate consumer
demand through marketing and promotional activitiagen if our technologies successfully meet owt@mers’ price and performance goals,
our sales would decline or fail to develop if oustomers do not achieve commercial success imgeHieir products that incorporate our
human interface solutions.

Competitive advances by OEMs in the PC ortdidifestyle product markets, which do not utiliaer human interface solutions broadly in
their product offerings, at the expense of our oEM customers could result in lost sales oppatiesr Within the digital lifestyle product
market, the mobile smartphone is becoming an isangly important factor in our operating resultswyAfailure to expand our presence in this
market, a significant slowdown in the use of oumlan interface solutions by our customers in thisketa the reduced demand for our
customers’ products, or a slowdown in this marketild adversely affect our sales.

If we fail to maintain and build relationships with our customers and do not continue to satisfy ourustomers, we may lose future sales
and our revenue may stagnate or decline.

Because our success depends on the widespia&dt acceptance of our customers’ products, wa oantinue to maintain our
relationships with the leading notebook computet portable digital music player OEMs and expandrelationships with mobile smartphone
OEMs. In addition, we must identify areas of sigraht growth potential in other markets, estabtedationships with OEMs in those markets,
and assist those OEMs in developing products thabur interface technologies. Our failure to idgnotential growth opportunities,
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particularly in the mobile smartphone market, dabish and maintain relationships with OEMs ingdanarkets, would prevent our business
from growing in those markets.

Our ability to meet the expectations of oustomers requires us to provide innovative humagrfate solutions for customers on a timely
and cost-effective basis and to maintain custoragsfaction with our human interface solutions. Wvest match our design and production
capacity with customer demand, maintain satisfgaetivery schedules, and meet performance gdalg bhre unable to achieve these goals
for any reason, our customers could reduce theghases from us and our sales would decline otdalkevelop.

Our customer relationships also can be aftebtefactors affecting our customers that are aeel to our performance. These factors can
include a myriad of situations, including businesgersals of customers, determinations by custoimerBange their product mix or abandon
business segments, or mergers, consolidationgqoiisitions involving our customers, such as thalmoation of Compag and Hewlett-
Packard or the acquisition of IBM’s PC businesg byiLenovo.

One customer accounted for 10% of our net revenuaifiscal 2008, and the loss of revenue from this stomer could harm our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Sales to one customer that provides contraciufiacturing services to major OEMs accounted @86 bf our net revenue for the fiscal
ended June 30, 2008, and two customers accounted fagygregate of 26% of our net revenue for teafiended June 30, 2007. This custa
was Zhan Yun Shanghai Electronics in fiscal 2008, the customers were Compal and Wistron in fi208l7. Additionally, receivables from
each of S-Mac and Zhan Yun Shanghai Electroniceeded 10% of accounts receivable and in the agigregaresented 24% of accounts
receivable at June 30, 2008.

Compal, Hon Hai, Inventec, Kang Zhun ElectesniShanghai Yi Hsin, S-Mac, Wistron, and Zhan Blmanghai Electronics are some of the
contract manufacturers that serve our OEM customderg material delay, cancellation, or reductioroaders from any one or more of these
contract manufacturers or the OEMs they serve chatth our business, financial condition, and resofitoperations. The adverse effect would
be more substantial if our other customers domoeiase their orders or if we are unsuccessfuéiretating orders for human interface
solutions from new customers. Many of these cohtreamnufacturers sell to the same OEMs, and thezefar concentration with certain OEMs
may be higher than with any individual contract mfacturer. Concentration in our customer base makenfluctuations in revenue and
earnings more severe and make business planning dificult.

We rely on others for our production and any interruptions of these arrangements could disrupt our aliity to fill our customers’
orders.

We utilize contract manufacturers for all of @roduction requirements. The majority of our mfacturing is conducted in China, Taiwan,
and Thailand by contract manufacturers that alsfopa services for numerous other companies. Waaldhave a guaranteed level of
production capacity with any of our contract mawtdieers. Qualifying new contract manufacturers, spekcifically semiconductor foundries
time consuming and might result in unforeseen mactufing and operations problems. The loss of elationships with our contract
manufacturers or assemblers or their inabilitydnduct their manufacturing and assembly serviceasas anticipated in terms of cost, que
and timeliness could adversely affect our abilityili customer orders in accordance with requidetivery, quality, and performance
requirements. If this were to occur, the resultilegline in revenue would harm our business.

We depend on third parties to maintain satisfactorymanufacturing yields and delivery schedules, ancheir inability to do so could
increase our costs, disrupt our supply chain, andesult in our inability to deliver our products, which would adversely affect our results
of operations.

We depend on our contract manufacturers totaiai high levels of productivity and satisfactaiglivery schedules at manufacturing and
assembly facilities located primarily in China, Wah, and Thailand. We provide our contract manufacs with six-month rolling forecasts of
our production requirements. We do not, howeverghang-term agreements with any of our contraatufacturers that guarantee production
capacity, prices, lead times, or delivery schedules contract manufacturers serve other custoragramber of which have greater produc
requirements than we do. As a result, our contrentufacturers could determine to prioritize
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production capacity for other customers or reducgliminate deliveries to us on short notice. Atefs, we have experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields and lengthenindalivery schedules. Lower than expected manufaxguiields could increase our costs or
disrupt our supplies. We may encounter lower mastufang yields and longer delivery schedules in owncing volume production of our
new products that we introduce. Any of these prmisleould result in our inability to deliver our pikect solutions in a timely manner and
adversely affect our operating results.

Shortages of components and materials may delay oeeduce our sales and increase our costs, therebyrin@ng our results of operations.

The inability to obtain sufficient quantitie§components and other materials necessary faorihduction of our products could result in
reduced or delayed sales or lost orders. Any delay loss of sales could adversely impact our atieg results. Many of the materials used in
the production of our products are available ontyrf a limited number of foreign suppliers, partanly suppliers located in Asia. In most
cases, neither we nor our contract manufacturars lweg-term supply contracts with these suppli@ssa result, we are subject to economic
instability in these Asian countries as well agnttreased costs, supply interruptions, and diffieslin obtaining materials. Our customers also
may encounter difficulties or increased costs itamling the materials necessary to produce theidyrets into which our product solutions are
incorporated.

From time to time, materials and componenélus our product solutions or in other aspectswfcustomers’ products have been subject
to allocation because of shortages of these mégen components. Shortages in the future couldecdelayed shipments, customer
dissatisfaction, and lower revenue.

We are subject to lengthy development periods andrpduct acceptance cycles, which can result in deigment and engineering costs
without any future revenue.

We provide human interface solutions thatiacerporated by OEMs into the products they setM3 make the determination during their
product development programs whether to incorpayatehuman interface solutions or pursue otherradtéves. This process requires us to
make significant investments of time and resouncéBe design of human interface solutions welbbefour customers introduce their prodt
incorporating these interfaces and before we casubethat we will generate any significant satesur customers or even recover our
investment. During a customer’s entire product tguaent process, we face the risk that our intedaill fail to meet our customer’s
technical, performance, or cost requirements drdbhaproducts will be replaced by competitive prots or alternative technological solutions.
Even if we complete our design process in a masaisfactory to our customer, the customer mayydelderminate its product development
efforts. The occurrence of any of these eventsdcoalise sales to not materialize, to be deferrei, loe cancelled, which would adversely
affect our operating results.

We do not have long-term purchase commitments frorour customers, and their ability to cancel, reducegr delay orders could reduce
our revenue and increase our costs.

Our customers do not provide us with firm,deerm volume purchase commitments, but insteagkigsirchase orders. As a result,
customers can cancel purchase orders or reduaday arders at any time. The cancellation, delayeduction of customer purchase orders
could result in reduced revenue, excess inventorg,unabsorbed overhead. We have an establisheehgeein the notebook computer market
and have only recently established a presenceeiditiital lifestyle products markets. Our succesthe digital lifestyle product markets,
including those for mobile smartphones and fegbin@nes and portable digital music players, willuiegjus to establish the value added by our
products to OEMs that have traditionally used owutions. All of the markets we serve are subjecevere competitive pressures, rapid
technological change, and product obsolescencehwhcrease our inventory and overhead risks, tieguh increased costs.

We face intense competition that could result in aulosing or failing to gain market share and suffemg reduced revenue.

We serve intensely competitive markets thatcdwaracterized by price erosion, rapid technoldgibange, and competition from major
domestic and international companies. This intesepetition could result in pricing pressures, losaes, reduced margins, and lower me
share. Any movement away from high-quality, custtesigned, feature-rich human interface solutiorewer priced alternatives would
adversely affect our business.

19




Table of Contents

Some of our competitors, particularly in the maskier digital lifestyle products and other elecimdevices, have greater market recognition,
larger customer bases, and substantially greatendial, technical, marketing, distribution, antestresources than we possess and that afford
them competitive advantages. As a result, they logagble to devote greater resources to the promatid sale of products, to negotiate lower
prices for raw materials and components, to delboenpetitive products at lower prices, and to idtroe new product solutions and respond to
customer requirements more quickly than we can.d@uopetitive position could suffer if one or moifeoar customers determine not to utilize
our custom engineered, total solutions approachrastdad decide to design and manufacture theiriotenfaces, to contract with our
competitors, or to use alternative technologies.

Our ability to compete successfully depends oumber of factors, both within and outside aurtml. These factors include the following:
. our success in designing and introducing new huimi@nface solutions, including those implementimgvrtechnologies
. our ability to predict the evolving needs of oustamers and to assist them in incorporating othrelogies into their new produc
. our ability to meet our custon’s requirements for low power consumption, easesef teliability, durability, and small form factc
. the quality of our customer servict
. the rate at which customers incorporate our humtarface solutions into their own produc
. product or technology introductions by our compesit anc

. foreign currency fluctuations, which may causeraifyn competitc's products to be priced significantly lower tham product
solutions.

If we do not keep pace with technological innovatius, our products may not be competitive and our reenue and operating results may
suffer.

We operate in rapidly changing markets. Tetdgioal advances, the introduction of new produatg] new design techniques could
adversely affect our business unless we are aladapt to the changing conditions. Technologicabades could render our solutions obso
and we may not be able to respond effectively éotithnological requirements of evolving markets afesult, we will be required to expend
substantial funds for and commit significant resesrto

. continue research and development activities ostiegi and potential human interface solutic
. hire additional engineering and other technicaspenel, ant
. purchase advanced design tools and test equip

Our business could be harmed if we are unabdievelop and utilize new technologies that addties needs of our customers, or our
competitors or customers do so more effectively tve do.

Our efforts to develop new technologies may not reft in commercial success, which could cause a diend in our revenue and could
harm our business.

Our research and development efforts witheesfw new technologies may not result in custoonenarket acceptance. Some or all of those
technologies may not successfully make the tramsitiom the research and development lab to cdsttgfe production as a result of
technology problems, competitive cost issues, yettblems, and other factors. Even when we suagigssbmplete a research and
development effort with respect to a particulahteslogy, our customers may decide not to introcara@ay terminate products utilizing the
technology for a variety of reasons, including thiéowing:
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. difficulties with other suppliers of components the products

. superior technologies developed by our competaasunfavorable comparisons of our solutions witse technologie
. price considerations, ar

. lack of anticipated or actual market demand forgreucts

The nature of our business requires us to meakénuing investments for new technologies. Sigant expenses relating to one or more
technologies that ultimately prove to be unsucegdsf any reason could have a material adverssetin us. In addition, any investments or
acquisitions made to enhance our technologies mayefo be unsuccessful. If our efforts are unssgfte, our business could be harmed.

We may not be able to enhance our existing produsblutions and develop new product solutions in artiely manner.

Our future operating results will depend wignificant extent on our ability to continue t@mpide new human interface solutions that
compare favorably with alternative solutions onltlasis of time to introduction, cost, performaraeg end user preferences. Our success in
maintaining existing and attracting new customeis @developing new business depends on variousrfadheluding the following:

. innovative development of new solutions for custopreducts

. utilization of advances in technoloc

. maintenance of quality standar

. efficient and co«effective solutions, an

. timely completion of the design and introductiomefv human interface solutior

We recently introduced our OneTouch produfgrafg to enable our customers to access our téogies to develop their own human
interface designs for capacitive buttons and saghpplications for products such as mobile sntemes and feature phones, portable digital
music and video players, and notebook periphe@aieTouch may not enable us to achieve our goalovéasing our business with existing
customers or attracting new customers. In additiimeTouch could reduce demand for our custom-dedignman interface solutions.

Our inability to enhance our existing prodsciutions and develop new product solutions omali basis could harm our operating results
and impede our growth.

A technologically new human interface solution thatichieves significant market share could harm our bsiness.

Our human interface solutions are designedtégrate touch, handwriting, and vision capalgtitiNew computing and communications
devices could be developed that call for a differeterface solution. Existing devices also coutdnodified to allow for a different interface
solution. Our business could be harmed if our petelbecome noncompetitive as a result of a teclgicdbbreakthrough that allows a new
interface solution to displace our solutions anti@ce significant market acceptance.

International sales and manufacturing risks could aversely affect our operating results.

Our manufacturing and assembly operationganearily conducted in China, Taiwan, and Thaildrydmanufacturing contractors. We have
sales and logistics operations in Hong Kong, atesssupport operations in China, Japan, Korea,Z8wénd, and Taiwan. These international
operations expose us to various economic, poljtarad other risks that could adversely affect querations and operating results, including
following:

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managing @ti-national organizatior
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. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremt

. differing labor regulations

. potentially adverse tax consequent

. tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restn,

. possible employee turnover or labor unr

. greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivay

. the burdens and costs of compliance with a vaoéftgreign laws

. potentially reduced protection for intellectual pesty rights, ant

. political or economic instability in certain padsthe world.

The risks associated with international operstcould negatively affect our operating results.

Our business may suffer if international trade is lndered, disrupted, or economically disadvantaged.

Political and economic conditions abroad maweasely affect the foreign production and salewfproducts. Protectionist trade legislation
in either the United States or foreign countrieghsas a change in the current tariff structunegoe or import compliance laws, or other trade
policies, could adversely affect our ability toldaiman interface solutions in foreign markets tmdbtain materials or equipment from foreign
suppliers.

Changes in policies by the U.S. or foreignegaments resulting in, among other things, higaration, currency conversion limitations,
restrictions on the transfer of funds, or the eppiation of private enterprises also could haveatemial adverse effect on us. Any actions by
countries in which we conduct business to reveddieips that encourage foreign investment or fardigde also could adversely affect our
operating results. In addition, U.S. trade policesch as “most favored nation” status and tradéepences for certain Asian nations, could
affect the attractiveness of our services to 0. dustomers and adversely impact our operatindtses

Our operating results could be adversely affectedybfluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaist foreign currencies.

We transact business predominantly in U.Sadoknd bill and collect our sales in U.S. doll#&sveakening of the dollar could cause our
overseas vendors to require renegotiation of ettheeprices or currency we pay for their goods semwices. In the future, customers may
negotiate pricing and make payments in non-U.Seaaies. For fiscal 2008, approximately 5% of casts were denominated in non-U.S.
currencies, including Hong Kong dollars, Britishupds, Taiwan dollars, Japanese yen, Korean womeShiyuan, and Swiss francs.

If our overseas vendors or customers requir® transact business in non-U.S. currenciestuftions in foreign currency exchange rates
could affect our cost of goods, operating experses,operating margins and could result in exchdogges. In addition, currency devaluation
can result in a loss to us if we hold depositshat turrency. Hedging foreign currencies can bicdit, especially if the currency is not freely
traded. We cannot predict the impact of future exgle rate fluctuations on our operating results.cfeently do not hedge any foreign
currencies; accordingly, we have no foreign curydmedge contracts outstanding as of the end ofiscal year.

A majority of our contract manufacturers are located in China, Taiwan, and Thailand increasing the ri& that a natural disaster, labor
strike, war, or political unrest in those countrieswould disrupt our operations.

A majority of our contract manufacturers avedted in China, Taiwan, and Thailand. Events éouo control, such as earthquakes, fires,
floods, or other natural disasters, or politicatast, war, labor strikes, or work stoppages inghasintries would disrupt their operations, wl
would impact our operations. The risk of earthqsakeTaiwan is significant because of its proxintitymajor earthquake fault lines. An
earthquake, such
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as the one that occurred in Taiwan in Septembe®,1@%uld cause significant delays in shipmentswfpyoduct solutions until we are able to
shift our outsourced operations. In addition, theneolitical tension between China and Taiwan timatld lead to hostilities. If any of these
events occur, we may not be able to obtain altemmatpacity. Failure to secure alternative cagamuld cause a delay in the shipment of our
product solutions, which would cause our revenufutiuate or decline.

Variability of customer requirements resulting in cancellations, reductions, or delays may adverselyffact our operating results.

We must provide increasingly rapid produch&uound and respond to ever-shorter lead timesriety of conditions, both specific to
individual customers and generally affecting thended for OEMs’ products, may cause customers toatareduce, or delay orders.
Cancellations, reductions, or delays by a significastomer or by a group of customers may advweeféct our revenue and could require us
to repurchase inventory from our contract manufaes) which could adversely affect our costs. Oraesibn, customers require rapid increases
in production, which can strain our resources auttlice our margins. Although we have been ablet@mimincreased production capacity from
our third-party manufacturers, we may be unablgoiso at any given time to meet our customers’ aels# their demands exceed anticipated
levels.

Our operating results may experience significant fictuations that could result in a decline in the pice of our stock.

In addition to the variability resulting frothe short-term nature of our customers’ commitmesttser factors contribute to significant
periodic and seasonal quarterly fluctuations inresults of operations. These factors include diewing:

. the cyclicality of the markets we sen

. the timing and size of ordet

. order pus-outs or cancellation:

. the volume of orders relative to our ability toidet;

. product introductions and market acceptance of praslucts or new generations of produ
. evolution in the life cycles of our custom’ products;

. timing of expenses in anticipation of future ords

. changes in product mi;

. availability of manufacturing and assembly servijt

. changes in cost and availability of labor and congmis;

. the expanded use of hi-cost, thir-party components in the products we ¢
. timely delivery of product solutions to custome

. pricing and availability of competitive produc

. introduction of new technologies into the markeesserve

. emergence of new competito

. pressures on reducing selling pric

. the absolute and relative levels of corporate enis and consumer notebook purcha
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. our success in serving new markets;
. changes in economic conditiol

Accordingly, you should not rely on periodfieriod comparisons as an indicator of our futurégomance. Negative or unanticipated
fluctuations in our operating results may resuldidecline in the price of our stock.

If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our iffrastructure, management, and resources could berstined, our ability to effectively
manage our business could be diminished, and our egating results could suffer.

The failure to manage our growth effectivebylel strain our resources, which would impede duilitg to increase revenue. We have
increased the number of our human interface solstamd plan to expand further the number and diyestour solutions and their use in the
future. Our ability to manage our planned divecsifion and growth effectively will require us to

. successfully hire, train, retain, and motivate &ddal employees, including employees outside thédd States
. efficiently plan and expand our facilities to maatreased headcount requiremel

. enhance our global operational, financial, and rgameent infrastructure; ar

. expand our development and production capa

In connection with the expansion and divetsifion of our product and customer base, we areasing our personnel and making other
expenditures to meet the increased demand we paatticior our expanding product offerings, includaftgrings in the notebook computer and
digital lifestyle markets. Increases in the demfomdur products will require further expansionoair traditional notebook computer busines
well as an increasing presence in the digital tfiesproduct market, including mobile smartphoned teature phones and portable digital
music and video players. To date, our sales of mimarface solutions for portable digital musicasdeo players and mobile smartphones
and feature phones have varied significantly frararter to quarter. Risks are further increaseduszaustomers do not commit to firm
production schedules for more than a short timedivance. Any increase in expenses or investmeimmérastructure and facilities in
anticipation of future orders that do not materahvould adversely affect our profitability. Ourstomers also may require rapid increases in
design and production services that place an exeeslsort-term burden on our resources and thairess of our third-party manufacturers. If
we cannot manage our growth effectively, our bussrend results of operations could suffer.

We depend on key personnel who would be difficultatreplace, and our business will likely be harmed iwe lose their services or cannot
hire additional qualified personnel.

Our success depends substantially on theteffod abilities of our senior management and dtegmpersonnel. The competition for
qualified management and key personnel, espe@atiyneers, is intense. Although we maintain nonaatitipn and nondisclosure covenants
with most of our key personnel, we do not have eyplent agreements with most of them. The loss wices of one or more of our key
employees or the inability to hire, train, and ieteey personnel, especially engineers and techsigzport personnel, and capable sales and
customer-support employees outside the United Stateild delay the development and sale of ourymisd disrupt our business, and interfere
with our ability to execute our business plan.

Our inability to protect our intellectual property could impair our competitive advantage, reduce ourevenue, and increase our costs.

Our success and ability to compete dependihgn our ability to maintain the proprietary asgeof our technologies and products. We
on a combination of patents, copyrights, tradeetsctrademarks, confidentiality agreements, ahdratontractual provisions to protect our
intellectual property, but these measures may geownly limited protection. We license from thirdrfles certain technology used in and for
our products. These third-party licenses are gdawith restrictions, and there can be no assurathetsuch third-party
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technology will remain available to us on termsédfaral to us. Our failure to enforce and proteat mtellectual property rights or obtain from
third parties the right to use necessary technotmgytd have a material adverse effect on our bssirfinancial condition, and results of
operations. In addition, the laws of some foreigardries do not protect proprietary rights as faldydo the laws of the United States.

Patents may not issue from the patent applicaithat we have filed or may file in the futu@ur issued patents may be challenged,
invalidated, or circumvented, and claims of oulep& may not be of sufficient scope or strengtlissired in the proper geographic regions, to
provide meaningful protection or any commercialattage. We have not applied for, and do not hawecapyright registration on our
technologies or products. We have applied to regitrtain of our trademarks in the United Statesaher countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations of gipte or other trademarks in key markets. Failorelitain registrations could compromise our
ability to protect fully our trademarks and bramaigl could increase the risk of challenge from tpadies to our use of our trademarks and
brands.

We do not consistently rely on written agreataavith our customers, suppliers, manufacturerd,ather recipients of our technologies and
products, and therefore some trade secret protectay be lost and our ability to enforce our irgefual property rights may be limited.
Additionally, our customers, suppliers, manufaatsirand other recipients of our technologies awdpets may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. Ie ffast, we did not consistently require our empgyend consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention assignmagteements. Therefore, our former
employees and consultants may try to claim someeestip interest in our technologies and productsraay use our technologies and
products competitively and without appropriate tations.

We may be required to incur substantial expenses amdivert management attention and resources in defeling intellectual property
litigation against us.

We may receive notices from third parties tiaim our products infringe their rights. From éro time, we receive notice from third par
of the intellectual property rights such partiegséhabtained. We cannot be certain that our teclyiedoand products do not and will not
infringe issued patents or other proprietary rigiftethers. We are currently subject to an infrimgat claim and this claim or any future clai
with or without merit, could result in significalitigation costs and diversion of resources, ingtgdhe attention of management, and could
require us to enter into royalty and licensing agrents, any of which could have a material adveifeet on our business. There can be no
assurance that such licenses could be obtainedramercially reasonable terms, if at all, or tha&t trms of any offered licenses would be
acceptable to us. If forced to cease using sudint#ogy, there can be no assurance that we woudbleeto develop or obtain alternate
technology. Accordingly, an adverse determinatioa judicial or administrative proceeding or faluo obtain necessary licenses could
prevent us from manufacturing, using, or sellingaia of our products, which could have a mateathlerse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, parties making such claims ceeltlre a judgment awarding substantial damagesglaas injunctive or other equitable re
that could effectively block our ability to makesay or sell our products in the United States ooadh Such a judgment could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditional results of operations. In addition, we arégabed under certain agreements to inderr
the other party in connection with infringementusyof the proprietary rights of third parties. he tevent we are required to indemnify parties
under these agreements, it could have a matenakrse effect on our business, financial conditarg results of operations.

We may incur substantial expenses and divert manageent resources in prosecuting others for their unathorized use of our intellectua
property rights.

The markets in which we compete are charastérby frequent litigation regarding patents arepintellectual property rights. Other
companies, including our competitors, may deveémbhhologies that are similar or superior to ouhtedogies, duplicate our technologies, or
design around our patents and may have or obtam{zaor other proprietary rights that would preyémit, or interfere with our ability to
make, use, or sell our products. Effective intellat property protection may be unavailable orédiin some foreign countries in which we
operate, such as China and Taiwan. Unauthorizétpanay attempt to copy or otherwise use aspdéaaraechnologies and products that we
regard as proprietary. There can be no assuraateui means of protecting our proprietary rightthie United States or abroad will be
adequate or that competitors will not independently
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develop similar technologies. If our intellectuabperty protection is insufficient to protect ontellectual property rights, we could face
increased competition in the market for our tecbgi@s and products.

Should any of our competitors file patent &ggilons or obtain patents that claim inventiorsoallaimed by us, we may choose to partici
in an interference proceeding to determine thet igla patent for these inventions because ounbasiwould be harmed if we fail to enforce
and protect our intellectual property rights. Evfeihe outcome is favorable, this proceeding caelsllt in substantial cost to us and disrupt our
business.

In the future, we also may need to file lausto enforce our intellectual property rightsptotect our trade secrets, or to determine the
validity and scope of the proprietary rights oferth This litigation, whether successful or unsesfid, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources, which could have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial conalitamd results of operations.

If we become subject to product returns and productiability claims resulting from defects in our products, we may fail to achieve
market acceptance of our products and our businesuld be harmed.

We develop complex products in an evolvingkagrlace and generally warrant our products foerod of 12 months or more from the
date of sale. Despite testing by us and our custrdefects may be found in existing or new prosluct fiscal 2001, a manufacturing error of
one of our contract manufacturers was discoverétioAgh the error was promptly discovered withaghgicant interruption of supply and t
contract manufacturer rectified the problem abitsy cost, any such manufacturing errors or prodeétcts could result in a delay in
recognition or loss of revenue, loss of market shar failure to achieve market acceptance. Addtily, these defects could result in financial
or other damages to our customers; cause us to s$ignificant warranty, support, and repair coats] divert the attention of our engineering
personnel from key product development effortssuoh circumstances, our customers could also sekklatain damages from us for their
losses. A product liability claim brought against aven if unsuccessful, would likely be time-cangwy and costly to defend. The occurrence
of these problems would likely harm our business.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve thewbjectives, and the failure to do so could impedeur growth.

We anticipate that we will enter into strategiliances. Among other matters, we continuallglese strategic alliances designed to enhance
or complement our technology or to work in conjumetwith our technology; to provide necessary knwow, components, or supplies; and to
develop, introduce, and distribute products utiigour technology. Any strategic alliances mayauitieve their intended objectives, and
parties to our strategic alliances may not perfamncontemplated. The failure of these alliances im@gde our ability to introduce new
products and enter new markets.

Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficlt to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockolder value, and harm our
operating results.

We expect to pursue opportunities to acquinembusinesses and technologies in order to comgrieour current human interface solutic
expand the breadth of our markets, enhance ounitsdicapabilities, or otherwise offer growth optpmities. While we have no current
definitive agreements underway, we may acquirenmssies, products, or technologies in the futuneelfnake any future acquisitions, we
could issue stock that would dilute existing staulklers’ percentage ownership, incur substantiat,dgesume contingent liabilities, or
experience higher operating expenses. Our experigracquiring other businesses and technologiéwited. Potential acquisitions also
involve numerous risks, including the following:

. problems assimilating the purchased operationbBntdogies, or product:

. unanticipated costs associated with the acquisi

. diversion of manageme’'s attention from our core business

. adverse effects on existing business relationshifissuppliers and customel

. risks associated with entering markets in whichharee little or no prior experience; a
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. potential loss of key employees of purchased omgioins.

We cannot assure you that we would be suaddassbvercoming problems encountered in connectigh any acquisitions, and our
inability to do so could disrupt our operations aaldersely affect our business.

Our target markets are cyclical and may result in fuctuations in our operating results.

The PC and electronics industries have expeeig significant economic downturns at various sinfhese downturns are characterized by
diminished product demand, accelerated erosioweriage selling prices, and production overcapabitgddition, the PC and electronics
industries are cyclical in nature. We seek to reduar exposure to industry downturns and cycligddit providing design and production
services for leading companies in rapidly expandiniystry segments. We may, however, experiencstantial period-to-period fluctuations
in future operating results because of generalgtigiconditions or events occurring in the genecainomy.

The valuation of our technology conducted in conndion with our international operating structure may be challenged, which could
result in additional taxes, interest, and penalties

In fiscal 2005, we implemented an internatlaygerating structure. Under this structure, gelyerane of our affiliates licensed from us
certain rights to the pre-existing and in-procesfhihology associated with our products for explitain all geographic markets except the
U.S., Japanese, and Korean markets, which wetets “ROW markets.” Our affiliate also acquirednasship of all future economic rights to
product sales in ROW markets by entering into ae@mgent to license certain intangibles and a sbating agreement under which we and
affiliate will share research and development cvsecordance with certain tax rules and regufstiéVe believe this structure appropriately
reflects where our profits are generated and msyitrén future tax advantages to us, but therebeano assurances that this will be the case.

We expect to incur additional expenses in complyingith corporate governance and public disclosure guirements.

Changing laws, regulations, and standardsimgléo corporate governance and public disclosa@uding the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
new SEC regulations, and Nasdaq Global Select Maukes, are creating uncertainty and increase@msgs for companies such as ours. T
new or changed laws, regulations, and standardsudject to varying interpretations in many casgsto their lack of specificity and, as a
result, their application in practice may evolveptime as new guidance is provided by regulatod/governing bodies, which could result in
continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matgrd higher costs necessitated by ongoing revismdisclosure and governance practices.
We are committed to maintaining high standardsopparate governance and public disclosure. As @tresur efforts to comply with evolving
laws, regulations, and standards have resulteghithare likely to continue to result in, increagederal and administrative expenses and a
diversion of management time and attention fronenesxe-generating activities to compliance activitiagarticular, our efforts to comply with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aed¢lated regulations regarding our required assest of our internal control over
financial reporting and our external auditors’ dudiour internal controls over financial reportihgs required the commitment of significant
financial and managerial resources. We expect tbses to require the continued commitment ohgfigant resources. In addition, it has
become more difficult and more expensive for ushitain director and officer liability insurance. Agesult, we may have difficulty attracting
and retaining qualified board members, which cdwddn our business. If our efforts to comply witlwner changed laws, regulations, and
standards differ from the activities intended bgulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguitieatesd to practice, our reputation may be
harmed.

The accounting requirements for income taxes on ct&in of our share-based awards will subject our futire quarterly and annual
effective tax rates to greater volatility and, consquently, our ability to estimate reasonably our fture quarterly and annual effective tax
rates is greatly diminished.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizébnefit upon expensing nongualified stock optiand deferred stock units issued under
our share-based compensation plans. However, wudemt accounting standards, we cannot recogaizbenefit concurrent with expensing
incentive stock options and employee stock purcpéseshares (qualified stock options) issued undershare-based compensation plans. For
qualified stock options that vested after our adopbf SFAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit onlyhia period when disqualifying dispositions
of the underlying stock occur and, for qualifiedct options that vested prior to our adoption oASF

27




Table of Contents

123R, the tax benefit is recorded directly to dddal paid-in capital. Accordingly, because we aamecognize the tax benefit for share-based
compensation expense associated with qualifieckstptions until the occurrence of future disqualifydispositions of the underlying stock
and such disqualified dispositions may happen ioge when our stock price substantially increaaas, because a portion of that tax benefit
may be directly recorded to additional paid-in talpiour future quarterly and annual effective tates will be subject to greater volatility and,
consequently, our ability to estimate reasonablyfowre quarterly and annual effective tax ragegreatly diminished.

Future changes in financial accounting standards opractices may cause adverse unexpected fluctuatimand affect our reported
results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practoedd have a significant effect on our reportedittssof operations. New accounting
pronouncements and varying interpretations of agtiog pronouncements have occurred in the pastradoccur in the future. Changes to
existing rules or the questioning of current pieetimay adversely affect our reported financiallte®r the way we conduct our business. For
example, the Financial Accounting Standards Bossdaed SFAS 123R requiring us to recognize all shased payments to employees,
including grants of stock options, in the finanatdtements based on their grant date fair valogreting the pro forma footnote disclosures
that were allowed as an alternative to financialeshent recognition. This requirement, while néeetfng our cash flow, adversely affected
reported financial results and impaired our abilityprovide guidance on our future reported finahsults as a result of the variability of the
factors used to establish the grant date fair vafistock options and the accounting for incomesatkereon.

We increased our leverage as a result of the saléaur 0.75% convertible senior subordinated notes.

As a result of the sale of our 0.75% convéetienior subordinated notes in fiscal 2005, weiired $125 million of indebtedness. As a
result of this indebtedness, our interest paymbligations have increased. Our interest paymengatibns on the notes is approximately
$938,000 annually. The degree to which we are mwsrhged could have adverse consequences, incltrdirfgllowing:

. a limitation on our ability to obtain future finaing for working capital, acquisitions, or other pases
. an increase in our vulnerability to industry downtiand competitive pressures; ¢
. a possible competitive disadvantage with less beyetl competitors and competitors that may haverbatcess to capital resourc

Our ability to meet our debt service obligasawill depend upon our future performance, whidhlve subject to the financial, business,
other factors affecting our operations, many ofakare beyond our control.

We made an irrevocable election to cash settle ti$4.25 million principal amount of our convertible saior subordinated notes in
April 2007. If we do not have sufficient cash resages when settlement occurs we may be in breach air obligation or we may be
required to borrow cash to meet our obligation.

We made an irrevocable election to cash seitleb125 million principal amount of our convelgilsenior subordinated notes in April 2007.
If we do not have sufficient cash resources whétteseent occurs, we may be in breach of our ohiligabr we may be required to borrow cash
to meet our obligation, which may not be availatefavorable terms or at all.

Currently our investments in auction rate securities, or ARS, are not liquid. If the issuers are notlale to meet their payment obligations
or if we sell our ARS investments before they recar, we may lose some or all of our principal investd or may be required to further
reduce the carrying value.

As of June 30, 2008, we had $47.4 million Bted in ARS for which the auctions have failed andinvestments are not liquid. The
carrying value of these investments is $37.9 millieflecting $2.5 million of temporary impairmemtca$7.0 million of other-than-temporary
impairment. If the issuers are not able to medt feyment obligations or if we sell our ARS invesints before they recover, we may lose
some or all of the principal

28




Table of Contents

invested or may be required to further reduce #reying value. This would adversely affect our finel position, results of operations, and
cash flows.

Legislation affecting the markets in which we compte could adversely affect our ability to implemenbour growth strategies.

Our ability to expand our business may be esblg impacted by future laws or regulations. Qustomers’ products may be subject to laws
relating to environmental regulations, communiaaicencryption technology, electronic commercdgeatures, and privacy. Any of these
laws could be expensive to comply with, and thekeit@bility of our products could be adversely atéelc

We must finance the growth of our business and th@evelopment of new products, which could have an a&drse effect on our operating
results.

To remain competitive, we must continue to enaignificant investments in research and developnmearketing, and business
development. Our failure to increase sufficiently net revenue to offset these increased costsdnamiversely affect our operating results.

From time to time, we may seek additional ggai debt financing to provide for funds requitedexpand our business. We cannot predict
the timing or amount of any such requirementsiatttme. If such financing is not available on stctory terms, we may be unable to expand
our business or to develop new business at thelesieed and our operating results may suffer. Bielhcing increases expenses and must be
repaid regardless of operating results. Equityrfaiag could result in additional dilution to exisgi stockholders.

Continuing uncertainty of the U.S. and global econmy may have serious implications for the growth andtability of our business and
may negatively affect our stock price.

The revenue growth and profitability of oursiness depends significantly on the overall denianide notebook computer market and in
markets for digital lifestyle products and othezattonic devices. Softening demand in these madaetsed by ongoing economic uncertainty
may result in decreased revenue or earnings leveJsowth rates. The U.S. and global economy has béstorically cyclical, and market
conditions continue to be challenging, which hasilted in individuals and companies delaying oucétly expenditures. Further delays or
reductions in spending could have a material a@veffect on demand for our products, and consetyuentour business, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects, and stock price.

The market price of our common stock has been and ay continue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has s@hmay continue to be subject to wide fluctuaionresponse to various factors, including
the following:

. variations in our quarterly result
. the financial guidance we may provide to the pylaity changes in such guidance, or our failuredetrsuch guidanc
. changes in financial estimates by industry or déearanalysts or our failure to meet such estisi:

. various market factors or perceived market factoduding rumors, whether or not correct, involyias, our customers, our supplie
or our competitors

. announcements of technological innovations by usyasur competitors
. introductions of new products or new pricing p@gby us or by our competitol
. acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or by @ampetitors

. recruitment or departure of key personi
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. the gain or loss of significant orde

. the gain or loss of significant custome

. market conditions in our industry, the industrié®or customers, and the economy as a wt
. hedging activities by investors holding position®ur convertible senior subordinated no

. short positions held by investors; €

. general financial market conditions or occurren

In addition, stocks of technology companiegehexperienced extreme price and volume fluctuattbat often have been unrelated or
disproportionate to these companies’ operatinggperdnce. Public announcements by technology corapamincerning, among other things,
their performance, accounting practices, or legablems could cause the market price of our comstock to decline regardless of our actual
operating performance.

Our charter documents and Delaware law could make imore difficult for a third party to acquire us, and discourage a takeover.

Our certificate of incorporation and the Detae General Corporation Law contain provisions thay have the effect of making more
difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtaontrol of our company, even when these attempisledn the best interests of our
stockholders. Our certificate of incorporation ad&thorizes our board of directors, without stoddboapproval, to issue one or more series of
preferred stock, which could have voting and cosiegr rights that adversely affect or dilute theingtpower of the holders of common stock.
Delaware law also imposes conditions on certaifin@ss combination transactions with “interestedldtolders.” Our certificate of
incorporation divides our Board of Directors intwde classes, with one class to stand for eleetiah year for a thregear term after the initi
election. The classification of directors tendsligcourage a third party from initiating a proxyisitation or otherwise attempting to obtain
control of our company and may maintain the incunayeof our Board of Directors, as this structureeyally increases the difficulty of, or
may delay, replacing a majority of directors. Oertificate of incorporation authorizes our Boardfectors to fill vacancies or newly created
directorships. A majority of the directors therpiffice may elect a successor to fill any vacanciesewly created directorships.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affecexisting stockholders.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may have the&fbf deterring, delaying, or preventing a chaimgsontrol that might otherwise be in the best
interests of our stockholders. In general, stodiclpase rights issued under the rights plan becomeeisable when a person or group acquires
15% or more of our common stock or a tender offex@hange offer of 15% or more of our common sisannounced or commenced. After
any such event, our other stockholders may purchdgitional shares of our common stock at 50% eftlken-current market price. The rights
will cause substantial dilution to a person or grthat attempts to acquire us on terms not apprbyealir board of directors. The rights should
not interfere with any merger or other businesslmoation approved by our board of directors asritiets may be redeemed by us at $0.01 per
stock purchase right at any time before any pess@roup acquires 15% or more of our outstandingroon stock. The rights expire in
August 2012.

Sales of large numbers of shares could adverselyfedt the price of our common stock.

As of August 15, 2008, all of the 33,686,446éres (adjusted for 3-for-2 stock-split) of our enan stock outstanding are eligible for resale
in the public markets. Of these shares, 8,233,hh6es (adjusted for 3-for-2 stock-split) held bfjliates are eligible for resale in the public
markets subject to compliance with the volume aatimer of sale rules of Rule 144 or 701 under tlei®ées Act of 1933, as amended, and
the balance of the shares are eligible for resathé public markets as unrestricted shares. lemgérunder Rule 144 as currently in effect, any
person (or persons whose shares are aggregatpdrfmyses of Rule 144) who beneficially owns restdcsecurities with respect to which at
least six months has elapsed since the later afateethe shares were acquired from us, or frorufdiate of ours, is entitled to sell within any
three-month period a number of shares that doesxuated the greater of 1% of the then outstandiages of our common stock or the average
weekly trading volume in common stock during therfoalendar weeks preceding such sale. Sales &uerl44 also are subject
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to certain manner-of-sale provisions and noticeiregnents and to the availability of current pulitiformation about us.

Rule 701, as currently in effect, permits employees, officers, directors, and consultants pdnmochase shares pursuant to a written
compensatory plan or contract to resell these shanmeliance upon Rule 144, but without complianitln specific restrictions. Rule 701
provides that affiliates may sell their Rule 70args under Rule 144 without complying with the Iraddperiod requirement and that non-
affiliates may sell their shares in reliance oneéRl44 without complying with the holding period btia information, volume limitation, or
notice provisions of Rule 144, Sales of substamatiabunts of common stock in the public market caddersely affect prevailing market
prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $100 milfocommon stock and preferred stock for issuamo®nnection with acquisitions, which
shares generally will be freely tradeable afteirttssuance under Rule 145 of the Securities Aaigss held by an affiliate of the acquired
company, in which case such shares will be sulbjettte volume and manner of sale restrictions déRdé4 discussed above. The issuance or
subsequent sale of these shares in the public ekl adversely affect prevailing market prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $125 mitifoour 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinated Natee 2024 and the common stock
issuable upon conversion of the notes. The shasegd upon conversion generally will be freely éedule after their issuance, unless held t
affiliate, in which case such shares will be subjedhe volume and manner of sale restrictionBuf 144 discussed above. The issuance or
subsequent sale of these shares in the public ineokéd negatively affect the market price of oamenon stock.

We have registered for offer and sale theeshaf common stock that are reserved for issuancgignt to our outstanding share-based
compensation plans. Shares issued after the eféedtite of such registration statements in conmeetith our share-based compensation plans
generally will be eligible for sale in the publicanket, except that affiliates will continue to hégct to volume limitations and other
requirements of Rule 144. The issuance or subségatnof such shares could depress the market pficur common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices as well as ptincipal research, development, sales, marketind,administrative functions are located in
our 70,000 square foot facility in Santa Clara,ifGatia. We plan to lease additional space in claseimity to our principal facility to support
the expansion of our operations. Our Asia/Paciéiadguarters are located in Hong Kong where we laagmximately 16,000 square feet. We
also maintain approximately 10,000 square feeffidespace in Taiwan, approximately 4,600 squast bf office space in China,
approximately 3500 square feet of office spaceapad, 2,500 square feet of office space in Koned Jess than 1,000 square feet of office
space in Switzerland. We have satellite sales stpfffices in Singapore, Thailand, and Texas.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In March 2006, Elantech Devices Corporatiarklantech, filed a Complaint for Patent Infringerhagainst us claiming that we infringed
one of its patents and seeking damages, attorfegs, and a permanent injunction against us infrgngr inducing others to infringe the pat
In April 2006, we filed our Answer to the Complaarid Counterclaims against Elantech, claiming Btantech has infringed and induced
infringement of four of our patents and seeking dges, attorneys’ fees, and a permanent injunctiaimat infringing or inducing others to
infringe.

Elantech responded to our counterclaim denljadmlity and counterclaimed seeking an injunctaond damages for alleged violations of
California law. We subsequently filed a motion tendiss the Elantech counterclaims that was graintddly 2006 with leave to amend the
counterclaims after the adjudication of the patefiingement claims.

31




Table of Contents

The Elantech patent relates to recognizingmogiding an indication of the presence of mutifihgers on a touchpad. We have previously
developed additional ways to detect multiple firsg@nd have our own related patents. The Elantédhdgement claims involve two versions
our software code (“Type 1 Code” and “Type 2 Code"gertain products in which multiple finger detten is enabled.

In October 2007, the Court heard oral argusientour motion for summary judgment of noninfrimget of the Elantech patent and
Elantech’s cross-motion for summary judgment ofingiement. The Court granted our motion for padiahmary judgment of
noninfringement as to products containing Type tl€€and denied our motion for partial summary judghed noninfringement as to products
containing Type 2 Code. In addition, the Court ddritlantech’s motion for summary judgment thatye 1 and Type 2 Codes infringe
Elantech’s intellectual property. The Court indezthowever, that it would grant summary judgmérnmingement for products
implementing the Type 2 Code with enabled fingamting functionality.

In November 2007, Elantech moved for partimhmary judgment that products implementing the T¥@&ode with enabled finger counting
functionality infringe the Elantech patent. In Detdger 2007, Elantech moved for entry of a prelimjriajunction against us importing, using,
selling, or offering to sell certain products implenting the Type 2 Code with enabled finger cogntimctionality.

In December 2007, we filed a Complaint fordpatinfringement against Elantech claiming thangah infringed one of our patents relat
to detecting the presence of multiple fingers doughpad and seeking damages, attorneys’ feegramgunction. In January 2008, we moved
for entry of summary judgment for infringement bétfour Synaptics patents.

In March 2008, the Court, based on its infemgent ruling, filed an order preliminarily enjoigims from making, using, selling, or importi
into or offering to sell within the United Statesithpad products containing our Type 2 firmwareecwith enabled multiple finger counting
functionality. We do not believe any aspect of @wurt’s decision will have a material effect on business. We are not shipping any products
that utilize the contested code. As a result, tiedirpinary injunction will have no impact on us,rdausiness, or our customers. Although the
contested code is no longer used in our produ@gjanot believe the contested code infringes thetéch patent and we have appealed the
Court’s infringement ruling.

In April 2008, the Court granted our motiom fartial summary judgment holding that use ofdbmer tap, scrolling, edge motion, and ¢
features of Elantech’s touchpad products infrirmg ©f our patents. We intend to vigorously defend patents and pursue our counterclaims.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information on Common Stock

Our common stock has been listed on the Na&dialopl Select Market (formerly on the Nasdaq Naidviarket) under the symbol “SYNA”
since January 29, 2002. Prior to that time, theae mo public market for our common stock. The feitg table sets forth for the periods
indicated the high and low sales prices of our comistock as quoted on the Nasdaq Global Selectéflark

High Low

Year ended June 30, 2007

First quarter(1 $17.2¢ $12.3¢

Second quarter(l $20.1: $14.8¢

Third quarter(1 $21.3¢ $15.1%

Fourth quarter(1 $24.17 $16.4¢
Year ended June 30, 200¢

First quarter(1 $33.4¢ $23.1¢

Second quarter(] $41.1¢ $27.0¢

Third quarter(1 $29.97 $14.6¢

Fourth quarter(1 $31.8¢ $15.7¢

(1) Reflects the retroactive effect of the 3-Postock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2008
and payable on August 29, 20t

On August 15, 2008, the closing sales priceusfcommon stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Mavks $32.40 per share as adjusted for
the 3-for-2 stock split.
Stockholders

As of August 15, 2008, there were approxinya®2&0 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividendsur common stock. We currently plan to retaip @arnings to finance the growth of our
business or purchase shares under our common mtiockase program rather than to pay cash dividétalgnents of any cash dividends in
future will depend on our financial condition, réswf operations, and capital requirements as agebther factors deemed relevant by our
board of directors.

Our revolving line of credit also places r&stons on the payment of any dividends.
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Share-Based Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information,@sJune 30, 2008, with respect to our common stbakmay be issued from both stockholder
approved and unapproved plans upon delivery ofeshiar deferred stock units, exercise of outstandiock options, the weighted average
exercise price of outstanding stock options, aediiimber of securities available for future isseameder our various share-based

compensation plans.

(a) (d)

Number of (b) Number of Securities
Securities to Number of (c) Remaining Available
be Issued Securities to Weighted- for Future Issuance
Upon be Issued Average Under Share-Based
Delivery of Upon Exercise Compensation Plans(2)
Shares for Exercise of Price of [Excluding Securities
Deferred Qutstanding Qutstanding Reflected in Columns
Plan Category Stock Units(2) Options(2) Options(2) (a) and (b)]
Shar-Based Compensation Plans Approved by Stockho 573,44 6,125,77! $17.5¢ 4,683,68!
Shar-Based Compensation Plans Not Approved By Stockins(ik — 22,50( $ 238 56,37¢
Total 573,44° 6,148,27! $17.52 4,740,06!

(1) Represents options granted under our 2000 nonstatsiiock option plan. The plan was adopted bybmard of directors il
September 2000 and provides for the grant of optiorpurchase up to 300,000 shares of our comneeRk.dtnless terminated earlier by
our board of directors, the plan will terminateéSeptember 2010. The exercise price of options gdamtder the plan is the fair market
value of our common stock on the date of grant.ggaly, the shares subject to options granted utigeplan vest 25% on the first
anniversary of the option grant date and 1/48tkeich month thereafter. The exercise price for gmipos granted under the plan may be
paid in cash, in shares of our common stock vahiddir market value on the exercise date, or inather form of legal consideration
that may be acceptable to the board of directoedlarinistrator in their discretion, including thgfua sametay sale program without a
cash outlay by the optionee. The term of optiomstad under the plan may not exceed 10 years. dwlisig awards and the number of
shares remaining available for issuance underltrewill be adjusted in the event of a stock sglibck dividend, or other similar change
in our capital stock

(2) Reflects the retroactive effect of th-for-2 stock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2
and payable on August 29, 20(

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In July 2008, our board of directors authadize additional $80 million for our common stockghase program. The program authorize
to purchase our common stock in the open markiet privately negotiated transactions depending uparket conditions and other factors.
The number of shares purchased and the timingrehpses is based on the level of our cash balageasral business and market conditions,
and other factors, including alternative investnagortunities. Common stock purchased under tligram is held as treasury stock. From
April 2005 through June 30, 2008, we purchased®@® shares of our common stock in the open
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market for an aggregate cost of $237.4 millionraeaerage cost of $26.12 per share. Our commok plrchase program expires in
July 2010.

Purchases under common stock purchase pradueny the three-month period ended June 30, 2088 as follows:

Total Maximum
Number of Dollar Value

Shares of Shares

Average Purchase! that May

Total Price as Parto Yet Be

Number Paid Publicly Purchase

of Shares per Announcec Under the

Period Purchase Share Program Program
March 30, 200¢ April 26, 2008 — 8,088,10! $39,255,00
April 27, 2008- May 24, 200¢ 1,000,001 $36.6¢ 9,088,10! $ 2,613,00!
May 25, 200¢- June 28, 200 — — 9,088,101 $ 2,613,00(

Total 1,000,001 $36.64

Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulatiggat stockholder returns for the five years endateJ30, 2008 for (i) our common stock,
(ii) the Nasdaq Composite Index, and (iii) the Nas€omputer Index. The graph assumes an inveswh&i00 on June 30, 2003. The
calculations of cumulative stockholder return oa Masdaq Composite Index and the Nasdag Computex include reinvestment of
dividends. The calculation of cumulative stockholdgurn on our common stock does not include rstwment of dividends because we dic
pay any dividends during the measurement period.hi$torical performance shown is not necessardycative of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 60 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Synaptics Incorporated, The Nasdaq Compositex,
and The Nasdaq Computer Index

5300 -
$250 -
S200 4
$150 -
5100 -
$50 5

6/03 6/04 6I05 6106 8107 6i08
—H&— Svnaptics Incorporated = =~ = Masdag Composite Index
<= =@ - - Masdag Computer Index
The performance graph above shall not be dééfited” for purposes of Section 18 of the SedestAct of 1934, as amended, or Exchange

Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of thegction. The performance graph above will not e incorporated by reference into any
filing of our company under the Exchange Act or 8ezurities Act of 1933, as amended.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected finandéda for each fiscal year in the five-year pergrdled June 30, 2008. As our past operating
results are not necessarily indicative of our fataperating results the selected financial datevbshould be read in conjunction with Item 7.
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@mtdition and Results of Operations and our conatdid financial statements and related
notes contained elsewhere in this report.

Years ended June 3C
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Income Datz

Net revenus $133,27¢ $208,13¢ $184,55° $266,78° $361,05°
Cost of revenue(1 77,24« 112,09( 101,70« 160,911 213,60¢
Gross margir 56,03: 96,04¢ 82,85 105,87- 147,45:
Operating expense
Research and development 21,41¢ 24,99: 35,35¢ 39,38¢ 50,09:
Selling, general, and administrative 13,57: 18,42 28,01¢ 36,241 48,12¢
Other operating expense (incon — (3,800 — — —
Amortization of deferred stock compensatior 517 32¢ — — —

Amortization of goodwill and other acquir
intangible assel — —
Restructuring 432 — — 91F —

Total operating expens 35,93¢ 39,94. 63,37¢ 76,54¢ 98,21¢
Operating incomi 20,09: 56,101 19,47¢ 29,32¢ 49,23:
Interest income, ne 83¢ 2,22 6,04 9,10¢ 7,83(
Other income or loss, n — — — (8,279
Income before provision for income tay 20,92¢ 58,33: 25,52¢ 38,43! 48,78t
Provision for income taxe 7,93¢ 20,341 11,82 11,89 17,68¢
Net income $ 12,99: $ 37,98¢ $ 13,70 $ 26,53¢ $ 31,10(
Net income per shar
Basic(3) $ 0.3t $ 0.9¢ $ 0.37 $ 0.6¢ $ 0.8¢
Diluted(3) $ 0.32 $ 0.8¢ $ 0.34 $ 0.6% $ 0.7¢
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic(3) 36,62’ 38,60 37,06 38,331 37,667
Diluted(3) 40,66 44,64: 43,61: 43,59¢ 39,36t
(1) Amounts exclude amortization of deferred stock cengation as follows
Cost of revenur $ 20 $ 12 $ — $ — $ —
Research and developmt 91 8 — — —
Selling, general, and administrati 40€ 30¢ — — —
Amortization of deferred stock compensat $ 517 $ 32¢ $ - $ - $ —

(2) Upon our adoption of SFAS 123R in fiscal 2006, wased amortizing deferred stock compensation. Alaegly, no amortization ¢
deferred stock compensation was recorded for thesyended June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2

(3) Reflects the retroactive effect of th-for-2 stock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2
and payable on August 29, 20(

Our basic net income per share amounts fdr padod presented have been computed using ttghteei average number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Our diluted net incontespare amounts for each period presented inchaleveighted average effect of
potentially dilutive shares. For our stock optiodsferred stock units, and our convertible notéssquent to April 2007, we use the “treasury
stock” method to determine the dilutive effect. @nthe treasury stock method shares associatecwitbonvertible notes will be included in
the calculation of diluted net income per share dfrthe weighted average price of our common stocla post split basis exceeds $33.69. We
used the “if converted” method to determine thatdie effect of our convertible notes prior to A@007 when we made an irrevocable
election to cash settle the principal upon coneersunder the if
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converted method 2,038,000, 3,711,000, and 3,062)00ted shares were included in the calculatibdiloted net income per share in fiscal
2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

June 30,
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat:

Cash, cash equivalents, and s-term investment $ 96,29¢ $228,92: $245,17¢ $265,01° $146,51¢
Working capital 106,62- 235,24( 257,78t 299,92: 189,85:
Total asset 132,65! 311,20¢ 331,42: 373,31 306,36:
Long-term debt, less current portii 1,50( 126,50( 126,50( 125,00( 125,00(
Treasury shares, at cc — 21,18( 39,99¢ 72,34¢ 237,38°
Total stockholder equity 109,14( 144,66( 167,04: 208,08 113,77

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May Afect Results

You should read the following discussion andlgsis in conjunction with our financial statemseand related notes contained elsewhere in
this report. This discussion contains forward-lmokstatements that involve risks, uncertaintied, @ssumptions. Our actual results may differ
materially from those anticipated in these forwkroking statements as a result of a variety ofdie;tincluding those set forth under Item 1A.
Risk Factors.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed human interface solutioas ¢énable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comjing, communications, entertainment, and otherteda@ devices. We believe our results to
date reflect the combination of our customer fotls,strength of our intellectual property, and engineering know-how, which allow us to
develop or engineer products that meet the demgru#isign specifications of OEMs.

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemestseaelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinablel eallectibility is reasonably assured. Our neeraye increased from $133.3 million in fiscal
2004 to $361.1 million in fiscal 2008, representsmgompound annual growth rate of approximately 28ffiscal 2004, we derived 84% of ¢
net revenue from the personal computer markeistalf 2008, revenue from the personal computer etagcounted for 76% of our net
revenue.

Many of our customers have migrated their nfiacturing operations from Taiwan to China, and mahgur OEM customers have
established design centers in that region. Witheospanded global presence, including offices im@hHong Kong, Japan, Korea, Switzerle
Taiwan, and the United States, we are well pogitibio provide local sales, operational, and engingsupport services to our existing
customers, as well as potential new customers,glakal basis.

Our manufacturing operations are based omiabla cost model in which we outsource all of ptzduction requirements and primarily
drop ship our products directly to our customeesrfrour contract manufacturers’ facilities, elimingtthe need for significant capital
expenditures and allowing us to minimize our inwesit in inventories. This approach requires usddkvelosely with our contract
manufacturers to ensure adequate production cgpadaiheet our forecasted volume requirements. Vdgige our contract manufacturers with
six-month rolling forecasts and issue purchasersrdased on our anticipated requirements for thke 3@ days. However, we do not have any
long-term supply contracts with any of our contmaetnufacturers. Currently, we use two third-parafev manufacturers to supply wafers and
two third-party packaging manufacturers to packagreproprietary ASICs. In certain cases, we relyaaingle source or a limited number of
suppliers to provide other key components of oodpcts. Our cost of revenue includes all costsaatam with the production of our products,
including materials, logistics, manufacturing, asbly, and test costs paid to third-party manufaasiand related overhead costs associated
with our indirect manufacturing operations persdnne
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Additionally, all warranty costs, yield losses, e/ inventory provisions or write-downs are chdrgecost of revenue.

Our gross margin generally reflects the coratim of the added value we bring to our custom@rstucts in meeting their custom design
requirements and the impact of our ongoing costrimgment programs. These cost-improvement progmachsde reducing materials and
component costs and implementing design and pracgssvements. Our newly introduced products mayeHawer margins than our more
mature products, which have realized greater benadisociated with our ongoing cost-improvemengms. As a result, new product
introductions may initially negatively impact ourogs margin.

Our research and development expenses inchate for supplies and materials related to prodeeelopment, as well as the engineering
costs incurred to design human interface solutionsustomers prior to and after the customeoshmitment to incorporate those solutions
their products. These expenses have generallyasedk reflecting our continuing commitment to #ehhological and design innovation
required to maintain our position in our existingnkets and to adapt our existing technologies veldg new technologies for new markets.

Selling, general, and administrative expemseside expenses related to sales, marketing, dmdndstrative personnel; internal sales and
outside sales representatives’ commissions; mari@usability research; outside legal, accounting, consulting costs; and other marketing
and sales activities. These expenses have generalbased, primarily reflecting incremental stadfiand related support costs associated with
our increased business levels, anticipated gromvtiur existing markets, and penetration into newketa.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestants in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportemliata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenseabsyalated disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate aiingates, including those related to revenue reitiogn allowance for doubtful accounts, cost
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, provisior income taxes, income taxes payable, intapgikets, and contingencies. We base our
estimates on historical experience, applicable land various other assumptions that we believeteasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgnseaibout the carrying value of assets and liakslitiet are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these esté®s under different assumptions or conditions.

The methods, estimates, interpretations, adgments we use in applying our most critical aotiog policies can have a significant impact
on the results that we report in our consolidatedrfcial statements. The Securities and Exchangen@ssion considers an entity’'s most
critical accounting policies to be those policieattare both most important to the portrayal ofehtty’s financial condition and results of
operations and those that require management’s diffisult, subjective, or complex judgments, oftaes a result of the need to make estimates
about matters that are inherently uncertain whé&magted. We believe the following critical accoungtipolicies affect our more significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparationrofonsolidated financial statemer

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemestseaelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinablel eallectibility is reasonably assured. We accaresktimated sales returns and other
allowances, based on historical experience, it we recognize revenue. We record contract needor research and development as the
services are provided under the terms of the contvde recognize non-refundable contract fees tuckvno further performance obligations
exist and for which there is no continuing invohamby us on the earlier of when the paymentsereived or when collection is assured.

Inventory

We state our inventories at the lower of avgnharket. We base our assessment of the ultimatzation of inventories on our projection:
future demand and market conditions. Sudden declmdemand, rapid
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product improvements, or technological changeangrcombination of these factors can cause usuve &zcess or obsolete inventories. On an
ongoing basis, we review for estimated obsoletenmnarketable inventories and write down our inveaetoto their net realizable value based
upon our forecasts of future demand and marketitiond. If actual market conditions are less fawbeahan our forecasts, additional invent
reserves may be required. The following factorkigrice our estimates: changes to or cancellatibosstomer orders, unexpected decline in
demand, rapid product improvements and technolbgibzances, and termination or changes by our OEsfomers of any product offerings
incorporating our product solutions.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from oanttact manufacturers when a customer’s delivelnedule is delayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ourarust has cancelled its order and we purchase iagefrom our contract manufacturers, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valihe inventory purchased to its net realizableeaWe charge write-downs to reduce the
carrying value of obsolete, slow moving, and noakls inventory to net realizable value to costesenue.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We account for employee share-based compensadits in accordance with Statement of Finamgabunting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123R,'Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R"), and applygravisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107,l{&e-Based
Payment” (“SAB 107"). We utilize the Black-Scholegtion pricing model to estimate the grant datevalue of employee share-based
compensatory awards, which requires the input@fliisubjective assumptions, including expectedtiity and expected life. Historical and
implied volatilities were used in estimating th& faalue of our share-based awards, while the exgpelife for our options was estimated to be
five years based on historical trends since otiairpublic offering. Changes in these inputs assuanptions can materially affect the measure
of estimated fair value of our share-based compgEmsa-urther, as required under SFAS 123R, wenedé forfeitures for share-based awards
that are not expected to vest. We charge the estihfair value less estimated forfeitures to eaysian a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of the underlying awards, which is generfdlyr years for our stock option and deferred staeits and up to two years for our emplo
stock purchase plan.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model wasaleped for use in estimating the fair value of é@dptions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. As our stock option amployee stock purchase plan awards have chaslictethat differ significantly from trade
options, and as changes in the subjective assunsptian materially affect the estimated value, stimate of fair value may not accurately
represent the value assigned by a third party iarars-length transaction. There currently is nokaibased mechanism to verify the reliabi
and accuracy of the estimates derived from thelB&tholes option pricing model or other allowabéduation models, nor is there a means to
compare and adjust the estimates to actual valMbie our estimate of fair value and the associateatge to earnings materially affects our
results of operations, it has no impact on our qeition.

The guidance in SFAS 123R and SAB 107 isikabt new, and the application of these principiesy be subject to further interpretation
and guidance. There are significant variations agradlowable valuation models, and there is a pdggithat we may adopt a different
valuation model or refine the inputs and assumgtiomder our current valuation model in the futuesplting in a lack of consistency in future
periods. Our current or future valuation model #ralinputs and assumptions we make may also latipambility to other companies that use
different models, inputs, or assumptions, and dselting differences in comparability could be miate

Income Taxe

We recognize federal, foreign, and state cuiniex liabilities or assets based on our estimétaxes payable or refundable in the then
current fiscal year for each tax jurisdiction. Weoarecognize federal, foreign, and state defetagdiabilities or assets for our estimate of
future tax effects attributable to temporary diffieces and carryforwards and record a valuationvalhee to reduce any deferred tax assets by
the amount of any tax benefits that, based on availevidence and our judgment, are not expectbd tealized. If our assumptions, and
consequently our estimates, change in the futhesyaluation allowance we have established fordeferred tax assets may be changed, which
could impact income tax expense.

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Acctingy for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interptieta of FASB Statement No. 109"FN
48"), at the beginning of the first quarter of 52008. FIN 48 contains a two-
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step approach to recognizing and measuring unoggaipositions accounted for in accordance withh &#8. The first step is to determine wt

it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position wilé sustained upon examination, including resatutibany related appeals or litigation
processes. The second step is to measure thenaftlas the largest amount that is more than Skeétyl of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with a taxing authority. The calculatgdriax liabilities involves significant judgmemt estimating the impact of uncertainties in the
application of highly complex tax laws. Resolutmithese uncertainties in a manner inconsistert aitr expectations could have a material
impact on our results of operations and financdeldition. We believe we have adequately provideddasonably foreseeable outcomes in
connection with the resolution of income tax unaieties. However, our results have in the past,candd in the future, include favorable and
unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax ligdslin the period a determination of such estedabx liability is made or resolved, upon the
filing of an amended return, upon a change in faitsumstances, or interpretation, or upon theratipn of a statute of limitation.
Accordingly, our effective tax rate could fluctuamterially from period to period.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizébnefit upon expensing nonqualified stock optiand deferred stock units issued under
our share-based compensation plans. However, wudemt accounting standards, we cannot recogaikzbenefit concurrent with expensing
incentive stock options and employee stock purchiseshares (qualified stock options) issued undeishare-based compensation plans. For
qualified stock options that vested after our aopdf SFAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit onlyhia period when disqualifying dispositions
of the underlying stock occur, which historicallgshbeen up to several years after vesting angh@riad when our stock price substantially
increases. For qualified stock options that veptéat to our adoption of SFAS 123R, the tax berisfiecorded directly to additional paid-in
capital. Accordingly, because we cannot recogrieetax benefit for share-based compensation expesseiated with qualified stock options
until the occurrence of future disqualifying dispimss of the underlying stock and such disquatdifiéspositions may happen in periods when
our stock price substantially increases, and becaymrtion of that tax benefit may be directlyoreled to additional paid-in capital, our future
quarterly and annual effective tax rates will bbjeat to greater volatility and, consequently, ability to estimate reasonably our future
guarterly and annual effective tax rates is gregitiyinished.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
Net Revenue

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Changt % Chang
PC application: $226,20¢ $272,79¢ $46,58¢ 20.€%
% of net revenu 84.6% 75.6%
Digital lifestyle product applicatior 40,57¢ 88,26! 47,68: 117.5%
% of net revenu 15.2% 24.0%
Net revenue $266,78° $361,05° $94,27( 35.2%

Net revenue was $361.1 million for the yeatezhJune 30, 2008 compared with $266.8 milliortlieryear ended June 30, 2007, an incr
of $94.3 million, or 35.3%. Of our fiscal 2008 metenue, $272.8 million, or 75.6%, of net revenwaes fwom the personal computing market
and $88.3 million, or 24.4%, of net revenue wasnftbe digital lifestyle products markets, includip47.7 million from mobile smartphones
and feature phones, of which $30.5 million washia fourth quarter. The increase in net revenugh®ryear ended June 30, 2008 was
attributable to a $46.6 million, or 20.6%, increas®C applications net revenue and a $47.7 milliwrl17.5%, increase in digital lifestyle
product applications net revenue. The increaseCimpplications net revenue was primarily attriblédb notebook industry growth, continui
adoption by notebook OEMs of our capacitive integfanultimedia controls, and additional penetratioRC peripherals, partially offset by a
decline in PC applications market share. Digifaistiyle product application net revenue growth ltegufrom both industry growth and higher
market penetration. Based on industry estimateaspook market growth for 2008 is anticipated t@pproximately 35%, digital music player
market growth for 2008 is anticipated to be apprately 6%, and mobile smartphone and feature phwar&et growth for 2008 is anticipated
to be approximately 41%. The overall increase irreeenue was primarily attributable to a 44% iase=in unit shipments, reflecting industry
growth and higher market penetration in the didifastyle product application markets, partialfjset by a lower-priced product mix, which
included both our custom modules and OneTouch ABiGments, and general competitive pricing pressamd a decline in PC applications
market share and the combination of which resuftexh overall 6% reduction in the unit price of guoduct mix when compared to the prior
year.

Gross Margin.

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
Gross Margir $105,87: $147,45: $41,577 39.2%
% of net revenu 39.7% 40.8%

Gross margin as a percentage of net revensel@8%, or $147.5 million, for the year ended J8@e2008 compared with 39.7%, or
$105.9 million, for the year ended June 30, 200¥eAch product we sell utilizes our capacitive mgntechnology in a design that is generally
unique or specific to a customer’s application,sgrmargin varies on a product-by-product basis,imgadur cumulative gross margin a blend
of our product specific designs and OneTouch offgsj which are independent of the vertical mariteds our products serve. The increase in
gross margin as a percentage of net revenue phlymefiected a higher margin product design mixaddition to lower manufacturing costs,
resulting from our continuing design, process-inwgraent, and cost-reduction programs, partiallyeiffs/ an increase in products containing
generally higher third-party content and generahgetitive pricing pressure.
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Operating Expenses.

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Change % Chang
Research and development exper $39,38t¢ $50,09: $10,707 27.2%
% of net revenu 14.8% 13.%%
Selling, general & administrative expen: 36,247 48,12¢ 11,87¢ 32.8%
% of net revenu 13.6% 13.2%
Restructuring 91t — (91t -100.(%
% of net revenu 0.2% 0.C%
Operating expense $76,54¢ $98,21¢ $21,67: 28.2%
% of net revenu 28.1% 27.2%

Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses decreasgaeatage of net revenue to 13.9% from 14.8%,
while the cost of research and development aawiticreased $10.7 million, or 27.2%, to $50.lionlfor the year ended June 30, 2008
compared with $39.4 million for the year ended J80e2007. The increase in research and developexpenses primarily reflected a
$6.3 million increase in employee compensationemgloyment related costs resulting from additistaffing, increased base compensation
related to our annual performance review processeased employee benefits costs, increased shaegHlsompensation costs, increased
incentive compensation costs, and increased rewibsts; a $2.0 million increase of project exggen including materials and related costs; a
$1.3 million increase in infrastructure and suppodts; and a $1.0 million increase in consulting autside service costs. Non-cash share-
based compensation costs included in researcherelagppment expenses were $5.1 million, or 1.9%=vfevenue, and $6.3 million, or 1.8%
of net revenue, for fiscal 2007 and 2008, respebtiv

Selling, General, and Administrative Expens8glling, general, and administrative expensesedsed as a percentage of net revenue to
13.3% from 13.6%, while the cost of selling, geheaad administrative activities increased $11.9iom, or 32.8%, to $48.1 million for the
year ended June 30, 2008 compared with $36.2 milbo the year ended June 30, 2007. The increaselling, general, and administrati
expenses primarily reflected a $5.7 million inceeasemployee compensation and employment relaist$ cresulting from additional staffing,
increased base compensation related to our anetfakrmance review process, increased employee itenests, increased share-based
compensation costs, increased incentive compensatigts, and increased recruiting costs; a $2 lomihcrease in consulting and outside
service costs; a $1.3 million increase in travel elated costs; a $937,000 increase in profesissmmeaice costs; and a $686,000 increase in
infrastructure and support costs. The increasedfepsional service costs includes legal fees piiyneelated to ongoing patent infringement
litigation, which is more fully described in Partlitem 3. Legal Proceedings. Non-cash share-bam@gensation costs included in selling,
general, and administrative expenses were $8.5omilbr 3.2% of net revenue, and $10.1 million2d@% of net revenue, for fiscal 2007 and
2008, respectively.

Restructuring ChargeFor fiscal 2007, we incurred a restructuring geaof $915,000 in connection with the closure af Buropean
development center as part of our strategic eftortealign our development capabilities to betteet the needs of our Asia/Pacific customer
base. Included in the restructuring charge wersqguerel costs, consisting of severance and relotafi$526,000; a lease reserve of $287,000,
net of estimated sublease income; and a non-cgsiiriment of property and equipment of $102,0000A3une 30, 2007, all costs associated
with the restructuring were settled and no addéigrayment obligation exists.

Operating Income.

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
Operating Incomu $29,32¢ $49,23: $19,90¢ 67.%%
% of net revenu 11.(% 13.€%
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We generated operating income of $49.2 millaml3.6% of net revenue, for the year ended 30n2008 an increase of $19.9 million
compared with $29.3 million, or 11.0% of net revenior the year ended June 30, 2007. As discusstetipreceding paragraphs, the increase
in operating income was primarily attributable e increase in operating leverage resulting froen36.3% increase in net revenue and a 110
basis point increase in our gross margin percentzgéally offset by a $21.7 million increase iar@perating expenses.

Nor-Operating Income/(Loss).

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Change % Chang
Interest incom $11,05¢ $ 9,652 $ (1,409 -12.7%
% of net revenu 4.1% 2.7%
Interest expens (2,950 (2,829 12¢ -6.€%
% of net revenu -0.7% -0.5%
Gain on settlement of de — 2,68¢ 2,68¢ NA
% of net revenu 0.C% 0.7%
Impairment of investmer — (4,000 (4,000 NA
% of net revenu 0.C% -1.1%
Impairment of auction rate securities investmi — (6,969) (6,969 NA
% of net revenu 0.C% -1.6%
Net nor-operating income/ (los: $ 9,10¢ $ (449 $ (9,549 -104.%%
% of net revenu 3.4% -0.1%

Interest Incomelnterest income was $9.7 million for the year endede 30, 2008 compared with $11.1 million forylear ended June 30,
2007. The $1.4 million decrease in interest incoeselted from a combination of lower average invéstash balances and lower average
interest rates. The decrease in cash balancesrimzarity related to $165.0 million used for the pliase of our common stock in the open
market and $7.0 million used for capital expenditpartially offset by $75.6 million of cash flofvem operations and $25.1 million of
proceeds and excess tax benefit from stock optidrneaployee stock purchase plan activity.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $2.0 million and $1.8 milfanfiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively, and coesigrrimarily of
interest expense and amortization of debt issueosts related to our convertible senior subordthatgtes issued in December 2004. The
annual debt service cost on the notes is approgrign&®38,000, which excludes $860,000 of amortiratf debt issuance costs.

Gain on Settlement of Delbh fiscal 1998, National Semiconductor CorporationNational, loaned us $1.5 million under a lirdite
recourse note, which we utilized to purchase 90D®€ries A preferred shares of Foveon. In fisc@Bl@nder the equity method of account
we recorded our share of losses incurred by Foaadreduced the carrying value of our equity inwestt to zero. The note plus accrued
interest of $1.2 million came due in August 2007d,an accordance with the security agreement,mesdered the 900,000 Series A prefe
shares securing the note to National in full setéet of the principal and accrued interest. Consetiy, we recognized a non-operating gain
upon settlement of debt in the amount of $2.7 millin fiscal 2008.

Impairment of Investmentn fiscal 2005, we participated in an equity fiaing, receiving 3.9 million Series E preferredrelseof Foveon
for a cash investment of $4.0 million. We are noligated to provide additional funding to Foveone \Atcounted for our Series E preferred
shares of Foveon under the cost method in accoedaitt APB Opinion No. 18 and EITF Issues No. 02aidl No. 03-1 because the
investment is not “in-substance common stock.”

In fiscal 2008, we determined there was aemthan-temporary impairment of the carrying vabi@ur investment in Foveon, due to
liquidity visibility and liquidation preferencesiféhe most recent preferred equity round, in whiehdid not participate. Consequently, we
recognized a $4.0 million other-than-temporary iimpant charge.
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Impairment of auction rate securities investmentsfiscal 2008, based on our fair value analg$isur ARS, we determined there was an
other-than-temporary impairment of the carryingueabf certain of our investments in ARS, which hawetinued to fail to clear at auction
since August 2007. Accordingly, we reduced theyiagrvalue of these ARS investments by $7.0 milllorough an other-than-temporary
impairment charge to income.

Provision for Income Taxe

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2007 2008 $ Change % Change

Income before provision for income ta» $38,43! $48,78¢ $10,357 26.9%

Provision for income taxe 11,897 17,68¢ 5,791 48.71%
% of income before provision for income ta 31.(% 36.5%
% of net revenu 4.5% 4.5%

The provision for income taxes for the yeateshJune 30, 2008 was approximately $17.7 millmmgared with $11.9 million for the year
ended June 30, 2007, reflecting higher pre-taxifsroffset by an increase of valuation allowandates to impairment charges on certain
investments. The income tax provision represenstichated federal, foreign, and state taxes foytes ended June 30, 2007 and 2008. The
effective tax rate for the year ended June 30, 20@8approximately 36.3% and diverged from the doethfederal and state statutory rate
primarily as a result of the incremental researellits associated with stock option activity anddéaempt interest income, partially offset by
the impact of impairment losses, foreign withhotgdtaxes, and the accounting for share-based corapensThe effective tax rate for the year
ended June 30, 2007 was approximately 31.0% aredgid from the combined federal and state statutdeyprimarily as a result of the
incremental research credits associated with stptln activity, tax-exempt interest income, thiease of contingency reserves related to
statute expirations and amended return filings,thedextension of the federal research creditjgdroffset by the impact of accounting for
share-based compensation and foreign withholdixesta

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizebtnefit upon expensing nonqualified stock optiand deferred stock units issued under
our share-based compensation plans. However, wudemt accounting standards, we cannot recogaizbenefit concurrent with expensing
incentive stock options and employee stock purchiseshares (qualified stock options) issued undeishare-based compensation plans. For
qualified stock options that vested after our adopbf SFAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit onlyhia period when disqualifying dispositions
of the underlying stock occur, which historicallgshbeen up to several years after vesting angh@riad when our stock price substantially
increases. For qualified stock options that veptéat to our adoption of SFAS 123R, the tax berisfiecorded directly to additional paid-in
capital. Tax benefit associated with total sharseblacompensation was approximately $4.1 million$&d million for the year ended June 30,
2007 and 2008, respectively. Excluding the impésthare-based compensation and the related tafihe¢he effective tax rate for the year
ended June 30, 2007 and 2008 would have been 3hd%5.9%, respectively. Because we cannot recegh&tax benefit for share-based
compensation expense associated with qualifiekstptions until the occurrence of future disqualtify dispositions of the underlying stock
and such disqualified dispositions may happen ioge when our stock price substantially increaaas, because a portion of that tax benefit
may be recorded directly to additional paid-in ¢alpiour future quarterly and annual effective tates will be subject to greater volatility and,
consequently, our ability to reasonably estimatefoture quarterly and annual effective tax rategrieatly diminished.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2006
Net Revenue

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Changt % Chang
PC application: $157,51: $226,20¢ $68,69" 43.6%
% of net revenu 85.2% 84.6%
Digital lifestyle product applicatior 27,04¢ 40,57¢ 13,53 50.(%
% of net revenu 14.7% 15.2%
Net revenue $184,55° $266,78" $82,23( 44.¢%

Net revenue was $266.8 million for the yeateshJune 30, 2007 compared with $184.6 milliorttieryear ended June 30, 2006, an incr
of $82.2 million, or 44.6%. Of fiscal 2007 net reve, $226.2 million, or 84.8%, of net revenue wasifthe personal computing market and
$40.6 million, or 15.2%, of net revenue was froma thgital lifestyle products markets. The incre@spet revenue for the year ended June 30,
2007 was attributable to a $68.7 million, or 43.686rease in PC applications net revenue and &3$hBlion, or 50.0%, increase in digital
lifestyle product applications net revenue. Thedase in PC applications net revenue was primatilibutable to notebook industry growth,
coupled with market share gains, additional petietran PC peripherals, and continuing adoptiombtebook OEMs of our capacitive
interface multimedia controls. Digital lifestylequtuct application net revenue growth resulted flmth industry growth and market share
gains. The overall increase in net revenue wasgyiiynattributable to an 80% increase in unit shigmts, reflecting the combination of industry
growth and market share gains, partially offsealdgwer-priced product mix and general competigivieing pressure.

Gross Margin.

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Change % Change
Gross Margir $82,85: $105,87- $23,02: 27.%
% of net revenu 44.% 39.7%

Gross margin as a percentage of net revena8«d@%, or $105.9 million, for the year ended J8@e2007 compared with 44.9%, or
$82.9 million, for the year ended June 30, 2006eash product we sell utilizes our capacitive sgn$gchnology in a design that is generally
unigue or specific to a customer’s application,sgrmargin varies on a product-by-product basis,imgadur cumulative gross margin a blend
of our product specific designs and independethefsertical markets that our products serve. Téddige in gross margin as a percentage of
net revenue primarily reflected a lower margin pretddesign mix, which included a substantial inseeia products containing generally hig
third-party content and general competitive prigmgssure, partially offset by lower manufacturaogts, resulting from our continuing design,
process-improvement, and cost-reduction programs.
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Operating Expenses.

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Change % Chang
Research and development exper $35,35¢ $39,38t¢ $ 4,03( 11.4%
% of net revenu 19.1% 14.&%
Selling, general & administrative expen: 28,01¢ 36,24% 8,22¢ 29.2%
% of net revenu 15.2% 13.€%
Restructuring — 91t 91t NA
% of net revenu 0.C% 0.2%
Operating expense $63,37¢ $76,54¢ $13,17¢ 20.8%
% of net revenu 34.2% 28.71%

Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses decreasg@aeatage of net revenue to 14.8% from 19.1%,
while the cost of research and development aawiticreased $4.0 million, or 11.4%, to $39.4 wnillfor the year ended June 30, 2007
compared with $35.4 million for the year ended J80e2006. The increase in research and developexgenses primarily reflected a
$2.3 million increase in employee compensationemgloyment related costs resulting from additistaffing, increased base compensation
related to our annual performance review processeased employee benefits costs, increased vaGabipensation costs, and increased
recruiting costs; a $948,000 increase in infrastnecand support costs; and a $944,000 increasenisulting and outside service costs, part
offset by a $1.0 million reduction of project méads and related costs. Non-cash share-based caa@m costs included in research and
development expenses were $5.1 million, or 1.9%edfrevenue, and $4.8 million, or 2.6% of net resxerior fiscal 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expens8glling, general, and administrative expensesedsed as a percentage of net revenue to
13.6% from 15.2%, while the cost of selling, geheaad administrative activities increased $8.2ioml or 29.4%, to $36.2 million for the ye
ended June 30, 2007 compared with $28.0 millioritferyear ended June 30, 2006. The increase ingalleneral, and administrative expelr
primarily reflected a $3.6 million increase in eyze compensation and employment related costdtinesfrom additional staffing, increas
base compensation related to our annual performevigw process, increased employee benefits dostgased recruiting costs, and
increased variable compensation costs; a $1.8millicrease in legal fees; and a $1.3 million iaseein consulting and outside service costs.
The increase in legal fees was primarily relatedrtgoing patent infringement litigation, which i®ra fully described in Part | — Item 3. Legal
Proceedings. Non-cash share-based compensatianicdsided in selling, general, and administraxpenses were $8.5 million, or 3.2% of
net revenue, and $7.7 million, or 4.2% of net rexgerior fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Restructuring ChargeFor fiscal 2007, we incurred a restructuring geaof $915,000 in connection with the closure af Buropean
development center as part of our strategic eftortealign our development capabilities to bemteet the needs of our Asia/Pacific customer
base. Included in the restructuring charge werequarel costs, consisting of severance and relatafi$526,000; a lease reserve of $287,000,
net of estimated sublease income; and a non-casdiriment of property and equipment of $102,0000fA3une 30, 2007, all costs associated
with the restructuring have been settled and ndtiaddl payment obligation exists.

Operating Income.

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Change % Change
Operating Incom: $19,47¢ $29,32¢ $9,84¢ 50.€%
% of net revenu 10.6% 11.(%

We generated operating income of $29.3 millaml1.0% of net revenue, for the year ended 30n2007, an increase of $9.8 million
compared with $19.5 million, or 10.6% of net revenior the year ended June 30,
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2006. As discussed in the preceding paragraphsnthease in operating income was primarily attidile to the increase in operating leverage
resulting from the 44.6% increase in net revenaejally offset by a 5.2 point decline in our grasargin percentage and a $13.2 million
increase in our operating expenses, which incled$815,000 restructuring charge associated witlelt®ire of our European development
center.

Interest Income/(Expenst

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Change % Chang
Interest incom $ 7,984 $11,05¢ $ 3,071 38.5%
% of net revenu 4.2% 4.1%
Interest expens (2,939 (2,950 (17) 0.€%
% of net revenu -1.1% -0.7%
Net interest incom $ 6,04¢ $ 9,10¢ $ 3,06( 50.%
% of net revenu 3.2% 3.4%

Interest Incomelnterest income was $11.1 million for the year ehdene 30, 2007 compared with $8.0 million forykear ended June 30,
2006. The $3.1 million increase in interest incaegulted from a combination of higher average egerates and higher average invested cash
balances. The increase in cash balances was pireldted to $26.3 million of cash flows from opgons and $31.4 million of proceeds and
excess tax benefit from stock option and employeekspurchase plan activity, partially offset by2$3 million used for the purchase of our
common stock in the open market and $5.8 millioedu®r capital expenditures.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $1.9 million for both fisd@20& and 2007 and consisted primarily of interepease and
amortization of debt issuance costs related taconwertible senior subordinated notes issued ireBder 2004. The annual debt service cost
on the notes is approximately $938,000, which edesu$860,000 of amortization of debt issuance costs

Provision for Income Taxe

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2006 2007 $ Change % Change

Income before provision for income ta $25,52: $38,43: $12,90¢ 50.€%

Provision for income taxe 11,82: 11,89° 75 0.6%
% of income before provision for income ta 46.2% 31.(%
% of net revenu 6.4% 4.5%

The provision for income taxes for the yeattemhJune 30, 2007 was approximately $11.9 millmmgared with $11.8 million for the year
ended June 30, 2006, reflecting significantly highre-tax profits, offset by a significantly loweffective tax. The income tax provision
represented estimated federal, foreign, and siagstfor the years ended June 30, 2006 and 20@7efféctive tax rate for the year ended
June 30, 2007 was approximately 31.0% and divefiged the combined federal and state statutorypetearily as a result of the incremental
research credits associated with stock option igtitax-exempt interest income, the release otiogency reserves related to statute
expirations and amended return filings, and theresibn of the federal research credit, partialfgetfby the impact of accounting for share-
based compensation and foreign withholding taxbs. 8ffective tax rate for the year ended June G06 2vas approximately 46.3% and
diverged from the combined federal and state sigtutite primarily as a result of the impact of@aating for share-based compensation and
foreign withholding taxes, partially offset by thmpact of the release of contingency reserveset@mpt interest income, and the benefit of
research and development tax credits.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizébnefit upon expensing nongualified stock optiand deferred stock units issued under
our share-based compensation plans. However, @wudemt accounting standards, we cannot recogaikzbenefit concurrent with expensing
incentive stock options and employee stock
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purchase plan shares (qualified stock optionsegsunder our share-based compensation plans. Réfiegl stock options that vested after our
adoption of SFAS 123R, we recognize tax benefiy amthe period when disqualifying dispositionstioé underlying stock occur, which
historically has been up to several years aftetingsnd in a period when our stock price subsadigtincreases. For qualified stock options
that vested prior to our adoption of SFAS 123R téhxebenefit is recorded directly to additionalgpai capital. Tax benefit associated with tc
share-based compensation was approximately $2li@mdind $4.1 million for the year ended June 3M&and 2007, respectively. Excluding
the impact of share-based compensation and thedefax benefit, the effective tax rate for theryeaded June 30, 2006 and 2007 would have
been 38.1% and 30.4%, respectively. Because weotaecognize the tax benefit for share-based cosgiem expense associated with
qualified stock options until the occurrence ot disqualifying dispositions of the underlyingak and such disqualified dispositions may
happen in periods when our stock price substaptiatireases, and because a portion of that taxfibemey be recorded directly to additional
paid-in capital, our future quarterly and annu#&etive tax rates will be subject to greater vditgtend, consequently, our ability to reasonably
estimate our future quarterly and annual effectiverates is greatly diminished.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our unauditecderly results of operations for the eight quarte the two-year period ended June 30, 2008.
You should read the following table in conjunctieith the financial statements and related notesained elsewhere in this report. We have
prepared this unaudited information on the samislaasour audited financial statements. This tatdkides all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments, that we consider ssany for a fair presentation of our financial iosi and operating results for the quarters
presented. Past operating results are not nedgssditcative of future operating performance; actogly, you should not draw any
conclusions about our future results from the tssefl operations for any quarter presented.

(in thousands)

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
Septembe Decembe March June Septembe Decembe March June
2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008

Net revenue $ 54,81t $ 76,08] $ 64,30¢ $ 71,57¢ $ 86,69: $ 98,65( $ 78,86 $ 96,85«
Cost of revenu 32,42( 45,69¢ 39,16: 43,63t 51,22¢ 57,60¢ 46,68¢ 58,08¢

Gross margit 22,39t 30,39: 25,14 27,94 35,46¢ 41,04 32,17 38,76¢
Operating expense

Research and developme 9,18¢ 9,95¢ 9,48¢ 10,75¢ 10,40z 11,69: 13,56( 14,43¢

Selling, general, and administrat 7,801 8,927 9,33¢ 10,18( 10,75( 11,41 12,18: 13,78(

Restructuring — 91F — — — — — —

Total operating expens: 16,98¢ 19,80( 18,82« 20,93¢ 21,15: 23,10¢ 25,74: 28,21¢

Operating incom 5,40€ 10,59: 6,328 7,00¢ 14,31: 17,931 6,43z 10,55:
Interest incomt 2,53¢ 2,97¢ 2,71 2,82¢ 2,99 3,01z 2,29: 1,351
Interest expens (487) (48¢) (48¢) (487) (47% (44¢9) (449) (449)
Gain on settlement of de — — — — 2,68¢ — — —
Impairment of investmer — — — — (4,000 — — —
Impairment of auction rate securities

investments(1 — — — — — — (2,237) (4,726
Income before income tax 7,45¢ 13,08: 8,54¢ 9,34¢ 15,521 20,50: 6,03¢ 6,727
Provision for income taxe 3,331 3,74( 2,91 1,918 4,25¢ 6,30¢ 3,031 4,09:
Net income $ 412 $ 9,341 $ 5,63¢ $ 7,431 $ 11,260 $ 14,19¢ $ 3,00¢ $ 2,63
Net income per shar

Basic(2) $ 0.11 $ 0.24 $ 0.1 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

Diluted(2) $ 0.1C $ 0.2Z $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢ $ 0.27 $ 0.3t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07
Shares used in computing net incor

per share

Basic(2) 37,701 38,35: 38,73 38,56¢ 39,31t 40,24 37,14( 33,96¢

Diluted(2) 43,88( 44,53¢ 44,38¢ 41,51 41,53 42,48( 37,951 35,24(

(1) Infiscal 2008, we determined there was &elthan-temporary impairment of the carrying vadfieertain of our investments in ARS,
which have continued to fail to clear at auctiamcsi August 2007. Accordingly, we reduced the cagyialue of these ARS investments
by $2.2 million and $4.7 million through an otheah-temporary impairment charge to income in oargus ended March 31, 2008 and
June 30, 2008, respective

(2) Reflects the retroactive effect of th-for-2 stock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2
and payable on August 29, 20(

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash, cash equivalents, and short-termsimvents were $146.5 million as of June 30, 2008pewed with $265.0 million as of June 30,
2007. The decrease was primarily related to $168lln used for the purchase of our common staocthe open market; $37.9 million of
auction rate securities, net of $9.5 million of mmment, reclassified to non-current; and $7.0ionllused for capital expenditures, partially
offset by $76.4 million of cash flows from operatfoand $24.8 million of proceeds from stock opgaerrcises and employee stock purchase
plan activity.

Cash Flows from Operating ActivitieBor the year ended June 30, 2008, the net caslidpwiby operating activities of $76.4 million was
primarily attributable to net income of $31.1 nalti plus adjustments for non-cash charges, incluslage-based compensation costs of
$17.5 million and impairment of investment, impaém of auction rate securities investments, deptieci, impairment of software costs,
deferred taxes, and
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amortization of debt issuance costs aggregatingd®hélion, a net decrease in operating assetdiahiiities of $14.0 million, partially offset
by a non-cash benefit of $2.7 million on the setéat of debt. The net decrease in operating aasdtfiabilities related primarily to a

$17.4 million changes in income taxes, which ineldithe receipt of a $10.3 million refund. For tleayended June 30, 2007, the net cash
provided by operating activities of $26.3 milliormsvprimarily attributable to net income of $26.3liom plus the tax benefit from stock optic
of $10.8 million and adjustments for non-cash chkarincluding sharbased compensation costs of $14.3 million and dégtien, impairment
deferred taxes, and amortization of debt issuanstsdotaling $3.2 million, partially offset by atrincrease in operating assets and liabilitie
$18.7 million and excess tax benefit from shareedaompensation of $9.9 million. The net increaseperating assets and liabilities related
primarily to an increase in accounts receivabl§2#.7 million, which was a direct result of ourrsiicant increase in net revenue. For the year
ended June 30, 2006, the net cash provided by tipgeectivities of $24.8 million was primarily atiutable to net income of $13.7 million,
plus tax benefit from stock options of $6.2 milljand adjustments for non-cash charges, includiagesbased compensation costs of
$13.2 million and depreciation, deferred taxes, amartization of debt issuance costs totaling $dillon, partially offset by a net increase in
operating assets and liabilities of $7.1 milliomaxcess tax benefit from share-based compengzt®5.2 million. The net increase in
operating assets and liabilities related primawla reduction of income taxes payable of $6.8iomill

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitieSur investing activities typically relate to purslea of government-backed securities and investment-
grade fixed income instruments and purchases qigotp and equipment, Investing activities for fis2@08 generated net cash of
$114.7 million compared with $18.1 million and $Ba&illion of net cash used in investing activitfes fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. Net
cash provided by investing activities for fiscaD8Qconsisted of proceeds from sales and matudfi§294.3 million for short-term
investments, partially offset by purchases of $27illion for short-term investments and $7.1 roiflifor purchases of capital assets. Net cash
used in investing activities for fiscal 2007 cotesisof purchases of $280.9 million for short-termdstments and $5.8 million for purchases of
capital assets, partially offset by proceeds frafesand maturities of $268.6 million for shortrteénvestments. Net cash used in investing
activities for fiscal 2006 consisted of purchase$250.9 million for short-term investments and$illion for purchases of capital assets,
partially offset by proceeds from sales and maagidf $200.8 million for short-term investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activitieslet cash used in financing activities for the yearded June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008 was
$5.1 million, $1.0 million, and $140.7 million, m@sctively. Our financing activities for fiscal 20@8marily related to $165.0 million for the
purchase of our common stock in the open marketiafig offset by $24.8 million of proceeds fromramon stock issued under our share-
based compensation plans and $289,000 of excebgtefit from share-based compensation, partidfsebby $746,000 used for the payment
of payroll taxes for deferred stock units. Our finig activities for the year ended June 30, 2Q0Wqrily related to $32.3 million for the
purchase of our common stock in the open marketiafig offset by $21.5 million of proceeds fromramon stock issued under share-based
compensation plans and $9.9 million from excesdbenefit from share-based compensation. Our fimgnactivities for the year ended
June 30, 2006 primarily related to $18.8 million flee purchase of our common stock in the open etagartially offset by $8.5 million of
proceeds from common stock issued under share-lwasepensation plans and $5.2 million from excesdtnefit from share-based
compensation.

Common Stock Purchase Program.July 2008, our board of directors authorizedadditional $80 million for our common stock purchas
program. The program authorizes us to purchaseamumon stock in the open market or in privatelyateged transactions depending upon
market conditions and other factors. The numbethafes purchased and the timing of purchases ésllmasthe level of our cash balances,
general business and market conditions, and o#teéors, including alternative investment opportesitCommon stock purchased under this
program is held as treasury stock. From April 20066ugh June 30, 2008, we purchased 9,088,100sbé&mir common stock in the open
market for an aggregate cost of $237.4 millionrawaerage cost of $26.12 per share under our ae#flocommon stock purchase programs.
As of July 2008, we had $82.6 million remaining endur common stock purchase program, which exmirdsly 2010.

Bank Credit Facility We currently maintain a $20.0 million working cagiline of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The WdHargo Bank
revolving line of credit, which expires on March2D09, has an interest rate equal to the primergntte or 150 basis points above LIBOR,
depending on whether we choose a variable or fizts] respectively. We had not borrowed any amoumder the line of credit as of June 30,
2008.
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Convertible Senior Subordinated NotesDecember 2004, we issued an aggregate of $16mof 0.75% Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes maturing December 1, 2024 (twee's”) in a private offering pursuant to Rule 14dider the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. In connection with issuing the Notes,eerired debt issuance costs of $4.3 million, cdmgjprimarily of the initial purchasers’
discount and costs related to legal, accountind,paimting, which are being amortized over five rgea

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75%peum payable on December 1 and June 1 of eachHeaever, we will pay additional
contingent interest on the Notes if the averagdiigaprice of the Notes is at or above 120% ofgtfiecipal amount of the Notes for a specified
period beginning with the six-month period commagddecember 1, 2009. The amount of contingentestgrayable on the Notes with
respect to a six-month period, for which contingeterest applies, will equal 0.375% per annunmhefaverage trading price of the Notes for a
specified five-trading-day period preceding suctirebnth period.

As a result of our irrevocable election in AROO7 to cash settle the principal amount of Ktates, no shares of common stock will be
issued to settle the principal amount of the Nated cash or common stock may be used to setthaihe of the Notes in excess of
$125 million. Our election to cash settle the pipat amount of the Notes upon conversion resultealir using the “if converted” method
through the date of the election and the “treastwgk” method subsequent to the date of the eledtiopurposes of calculating diluted net
income per share. Accordingly, we will include opraspective basis diluted shares underlying thiee®lim our diluted net income per share
calculation only when the average closing stockepfor the accounting period exceeds the convemsice of the Notes, which is $33.69 per
share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealgndar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in thmopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on #s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
guarter is greater than or equal to 120% of théiegdgle conversion price on such last trading d2ypn or after January 1, 2020; (3) if we
have called the Notes for redemption; or (4) dupngscribed periods, upon the occurrence of sgecdorporate transactions or fundamental
changes. On or after December 1, 2009, we may medieecash all or a portion of the Notes at a repléom price of 100% of the principal
amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid irtdretuding contingent interest and additionaknesst, if any. Noteholders have the right to
require us to repurchase all or a portion of thiites for cash on December 1, 2009, December 4,20 December 1, 2019 at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes tghechased plus accrued and unpaid interest, imguchntingent interest and additional
interest, if any. As of June 30, 2008, none ofdbeditions for conversion of the Notes had occurred

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatéghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb@fl our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othegalilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofatlur future indebtedness that, by its termsuisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.

$100 Million Shelf RegistratioWe have registered an aggregate of $100 milliocoaimon stock and preferred stock for issuance in
connection with acquisitions, which shares gengsalll be freely tradeable after their issuance em@ule 145 of the Securities Act unless t
by an affiliate of the acquired company, in whiglse such shares will be subject to the volume aather of sale restrictions of Rule 144.

Liquidity and Capital Resource¥/e believe our existing cash, cash equivalents saod-term investment balances and anticipatel cas
flows from operating activities will be sufficietd meet our working capital and other cash requimrgi over the course of at least the next
12 months. Our future capital requirements will @@ on many factors, including our rate of reveguoavth or decline, the timing and extent
of spending to support product development effadsts related to protecting our intellectual propehe expansion of sales and marketing
activities, the timing of introductions of new prards and enhancements to existing products, the tmensure access to adequate
manufacturing capacity, the continuing market ataege of our product solutions, our common stoaklpase program, and the amount and
timing of our investments in, or acquisitions aher technologies or companies. Further equityedat inancing may not be available to us on
acceptable terms or at all. If sufficient funds ao¢ available or are not available on acceptadimg, our ability to take advantage of
unexpected business opportunities or to respordrpetitive pressures could be limited or severelystrained.
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Our non-current investments include $47.4iarilloriginal cost basis of ARS that have failegéttle in auctions. These failures generally
resulted in the interest rates resetting from LIB@&s 50 basis points to LIBOR plus 150 basis pgoant the regularly scheduled auction dates.
These investments are not liquid and in the evenheed to access these funds, we will not be alde so without a loss of principal, unless a
future auction on these investments is successful.

In 2008, we have reduced the carrying valugae$e investments by $9.5 million, of which $7.iian was accounted for as other-than-
temporary impairment with a corresponding charge¢ome, and $2.5 million was accounted for as gy impairment through other
comprehensive income or loss. Based on our ahdigccess our cash and other short-term investimamt&xpected operating cash flows, and
our other sources of cash, we do not anticipatdaitieof liquidity on these investments will affemir ability to operate our business as usual.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of material contractual obligations and commerctmhmitments as of June 30, 2008 (in
millions):

Payments due by peric

Contractua Less thar 1-3 3-5 More thar
Obligations Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes(1. $ 141 $ 1 $ 2 $ 2 $ 13¢
Building lease: 2 1 1 — —

Total $  14c $ 2 $ 3 $ 2 $ 13¢

(1) Represents both principal and interest payablaitiirahe maturity date of the underlying contractlzigation.

(2) Our convertible senior subordinated notetuihe a provision allowing the noteholders to requis, at the noteholders’ discretion, to
repurchase their notes at a redemption price o%6Dthe principal amount of the notes plus accrared unpaid interest (including
contingent interest and additional interest, ifJamy December 1, 2009, December 1, 2014, and Dezeint2019 and in the event of a
fundamental change as described in the indenturergimg the notes. The early repayment of the nistast reflected in the above
schedule, but if all the noteholders elected taase their rights to require us to repurchaser theies on December 1, 2009, then our
contractual obligations for the one-to-three yesiqu would be increased by $123 million and no ante would be due in more than
three years

As of June 30, 2008, we were unable to mateasonably reliable estimate of when cash settlemigh a taxing authority may occur in
connection with our unrecognized tax benefits.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementgher relationships with unconsolidated ertitigat are reasonably likely to affect our
liquidity or capital resources. We have no spegiapose or limited purpose entities that providebalance sheet financing, liquidity, or
market or credit risk support; engage in leasimgliding, or research and development services;wa tidner relationships that expose us to
liability that is not reflected in the financiabs¢ ments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS N@, ‘Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS Usfines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in U.S. gengralkkcepted accounting principles, and expandsa$isot about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 applies under other accounting standhedgequire or permit fair value measurements. Adiogly, SFAS 157 does not require ¢
new fair value measurement. SFAS 157 is effectagiriming in our first quarter of fiscal 2009. Howeeythe effective date of SFAS 157 as it
relates to fair value measurement requirementadafinancial assets and liabilities that are not
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remeasured at fair value on a recurring basispeebed to be deferred to our first quarter of fig€s 0. We do not expect the adoption of St
157 to have a material impact on our financial fosj results of operations, or cash flows.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositNo. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Delostruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settg),” (“FSP APB 14-1"). FSP APB 14-1 requiresttisauers of convertible debt
instruments that may be settled in cash upon ceireseparately account for the liability and egigidmponents in a manner that will reflect
the entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate wliee interest cost is recognized in subsequeitiggerThe coupon rate on our convertible
debt instrument is 0.75% and the comparable yiErmonconvertible debt instrument determined attitme we issued our notes was 8.5%.
Accordingly, we anticipate the non-cash pre-taxuahimpact to our results of operations from themin of FSP APB 14-1 to be
approximately $8.0 million to $10.0 million. FSP BR4-1 is effective beginning in our first quartdrfiscal 2010 and will be applied
retrospectively.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of il Accounting Standards No. 162, “The Hierarohgenerally Accepted Accounting
Principles” (“FAS 162”). The new standard is inteddo improve financial reporting by identifyingansistent framework, or hierarchy, for
selecting accounting principles to be used in miagdinancial statements that are presented irficzority with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) for nongovernmengattities. FAS 162 is effective 60 days followingGSEpproval of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board Auditing amendments td 3ection 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly im@omity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.” We are currently evaluatthg impact, if any, of the adoption of FAS 162aun financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes iarist rates relates primarily to our cash, caskvatpnts, and short-term investments. Our
current investment portfolio consists primarilygafivernment-backed securities and investment-grateuments and we would not expect the
fair value of our investments to be significantffeated by changes in market interest rates; howexe interest income will fluctuate with
changes in market interest rates. We do not us@westment portfolio for trading or other speciMatpurposes.

The table below presents principal amountsrataded weighted average interest rates by yearadfirity for our cash equivalents,
investments and debt obligations as of June 3 ZiBGhousands, except for average interest rates)

Fair
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total Value
Assets
Cash equivalent— variable rate
Money marke $70,75¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 70,75¢ $ 70,75¢
Average interest rai 2.1€% — — — — — 2.1€%
Cash equivalent— fixed rate
Commercial Pape $19,35¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 19,35t $ 19,35t
Average interest ral 2.1% — — — — — 2.1%
U.S. treasun $ 2,99¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 2,99¢ $ 2,997
Average interest ral 1.17% — — — — — 1.17%
Total cash equivalen $93,10¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 93,10¢ $ 93,10¢
Average interest ral 2.1% — — — — — 2.1%%
Shor-term investment— fixed rate
Commercial pape $ 8,96¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 8,964 $ 8,964
Average interest ral 2.8% — — — — — 2.8%%
Municipal securitie: $31,49: $9,70¢ $— $— $— $ — $ 41,20: $ 41,33«
Average interest ral 3.36% 3.2(% — — — — 3.32%
Total shor-term investment $40,45¢ $9,70¢ $— $— $— $ — $ 50,16¢ $ 50,29¢
Average interest rat 3.25% 3.2(% — — — — 3.2&%
Non-current investment $40,41: $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 40,412 $ 37,94¢
Average interest ral 3.05% — — — — — 3.05%
Liabilities
Convertible Senior Subordinated No
Fixed rate amount $ — $ — $— $— $— $125,00( $125,00( $128,60(
Average interest ral — — — — — 0.7% 0.7%

Our Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes lefated coupon interest rate of 0.75% and matu@écember 2024. Accordingly, we are
not exposed to changes in interest rates relatedrttong-term debt instruments. The notes ardisted on any securities exchange or included
in any automated quotation system. The fair vafub@®notes may increase or decrease for vari@asores, including fluctuations in the market
price of our common stock, fluctuations in markeefest rates, and fluctuations in general econawomdlitions. The principal and carrying
amount of the notes at June 30, 2008 was $125mind the fair value of the notes was approxirmei&R8.6 million based on trading prices.

Our notes include a provision allowing theealders to require us, at the noteholders’ digmmeto repurchase their notes at a redemption
price of 100% of the principal amount of the nqtéss accrued and unpaid interest (including cortimdnterest and additional interest, if any)
on December 1, 2009, December 1, 2014, and DecemB2éx19 and in the event of a fundamental chasgieacribed in the indenture
governing the notes. The early repayment of thesist not reflected in the preceding scheduleiftalitthe noteholders elected to exercise
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their rights to require us to repurchase their siote December 1, 2009, then maturities in the 2@10mn would increase by $125 million and
maturities in the thereafter column would decrdasa corresponding amount.

Our non-current investments include $47.4iotiloriginal cost basis of ARS which have faileds#dtle in auctions. These failures generally
resulted in the interest rates resetting from LIB@&S 50 basis points to LIBOR plus 150 basis pgoant the regularly scheduled auction dates.
These investments are not liquid and in the evenheed to access these funds, we will not be alde so without a loss of principal, unless a
future auction on these investments is successful.

As there are currently no active markets fararious failed ARS investments, we have estichétte fair value of these investments as of
June 30, 2008 based on a trinomial discounted ftastanalysis. The analysis considered, among dtmors, the collateral underlying the
security investments, creditworthiness of the cerpdrty, timing of expected future cash flows, #melprobability of a successful auction in a
future period. When possible, our failed ARS inwestts were compared to other observable marketdatecurities with similar
characteristics. In fiscal 2008, we reduced theyaag value of these investments by $9.5 milliohywhich $7.0 million was accounted for as
other-than-temporary impairment with a correspogdiharge to income and $2.5 million was accounteés$ temporary impairment through
other comprehensive income or loss.

Based on our ability to access our cash aner@hort-term investments, our expected operatst) flows, and our other sources of cash,
we do not anticipate the lack of liquidity on théseestments will affect our ability to operate dwsiness as usual.

There have been no significant changes imtatirity dates and average interest rates for asin equivalents and short-term investment
portfolio and debt obligations subsequent to Juhe2808.
Foreign currency exchange risk

All of our revenue and approximately 95% of oansolidated costs are denominated in U.S. dolkss a result, we have relatively little
exposure to foreign currency exchange risks argigarexchange losses have been immaterial to \d&gelo not currently enter into forward-
exchange contracts to hedge exposure denominafetkign currencies or any other derivative finahastruments for trading or speculative
purposes. In the future, if our operations charmgkwae determine that our foreign exchange expdsasdncreased, we may consider entering
into hedging transactions to mitigate such risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Reference is made to the financial statemémésreports of our independent registered puliéoanting firm, and the notes thereto
commencing at page F-1 of this report, which finalhstatements, reports, and notes are incorpoteesgin by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Proderes

Under the supervision and with the participatbf our management, including our Chief Execu@fficer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness oflsgn and operation of our disclosure controtsaocedures (as defined in Rules 13ge)
and 15d15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934kd8 on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Offeed Chief Financial Officer,
of June 30, 2008, concluded that our disclosurgrotsnand procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-X56(e)15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) are effective to ensure itifarmation required to be disclosed by us in tkisort was recorded, processsadmmarize:
and reported within the time periods specified ée8ities and Exchange Commission rules and foanthfs report.
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Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maimg adequate internal control over financial nejpg (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934graended). Under the supervision and with the gipétiion of our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial ioffr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsraf our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworklinternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation utigeframework innternal Control—Integrated Frameworlour management concluded
that our internal control over financial reportings effective as of June 30, 2008. The effectiveioésur internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2008 has been auditedAM& LLP, an independent registered public accogrfimm, as stated in its report included
herein on page F-3.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal contr@rdinancial reporting during our most recent flspaarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our inteFgantrol over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Execu@fécer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expbhat our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal controls will preverteator and all fraud. A control system, no mattew well conceived and operated, can pro
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance thatjeetives of the control system are met. Furthex,design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, andeheflis of controls must be considered relativihéir costs. Because of the inherent limitations
in all control systems, no evaluation of contra@s provide absolute assurance that all controbssmisstatements, errors, and instances of
fraud, if any, within our company have been or Wil prevented or detected. Further, internal ctmay become inadequate as a result of
changes in conditions, or through the deterioratibiine degree of compliance with policies or phaes.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There were no items requiring reporting onnk &K that were not reported on Form 8-K during filnérth quarter of the year covered by
this Form 10-K.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item relatitogdirectors of our company is incorporated helsimeference to the definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14#efExchange Act for our 2008 Annual Meeting afckholders. The information required
by this Item relating to our executive officersrisluded in Item 1, “Business — Executive Officérs.

We have adopted a code of ethics that apgiesr principal executive officer, principal fingial officer, and other senior accounting
personnel. The “Code of Ethics for the CEO and &efiinancial Officers” is located on our websitenatw.synaptics.com in the Investor
Relations section under Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requiremerder Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding any amendmentr waiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics by posting such information on oabgite, at the address and location specified above

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive Pr8iatement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2008 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive Pr8iagtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2008 AahMeeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive Pr8igtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2008 AahMeeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive Pr8iagtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2008 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schetks

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index tootidated Financial Statements on pa-1 of this report
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (1

3.1(b) Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapating Preferred Stock (.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws
3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate (

4(b) Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2002, éetvthe registrant and American Stock Transfer 8&sT€ompany, a
Rights Agent (2

4(c) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement

4.1 Indenture dated December 7, 2004 by and betweeretfigtrant and American Stock Transfer & Trust @any (4)
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated December 74 290and among the registrant, Bear, Stearns &r@o, and Credit
Suisse First Boston LLC (-
10.1 1986 Incentive Stock Option Plan and form of gi@gteement (7
10.2 1986 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and form ofigagreement (7

10.5(a) 1996 Stock Option Plan (°

10.3(b) Form of grant agreements for 1996 Stock Option 33

10.4 2000 U.K. Approved St-Plan to the 1996 Stock Option Plan and form of geameement (7

10.5 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and form ohgegreement (7

10.€(a) Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensat@n(Bs amended through January 23, 2007

10.€(b) Form of grant agreements for Amended and Restdedl ticentive Compensation Plan

10.€(c) Form of deferred stock award agreement for AmeradetiRestated 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan
10.%(a) Corrected Amended and Restated 2001 Employee $taahase Plan (as amended through January 23, @)

10.7%(b) 2001 Employee Stock Purchase -Plan for U.K. Employees (¢

10.¢ 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (°
10.12 Subordinated Secured Non-Recourse Promissory Naégl dhugust 12, 1997 executed by the registrafaviar of National
Semiconductor Corporation (
10.1: Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreetietween the registrant and Federico Faggil
10.1¢ Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreetietween the registrant and Francis F. Let
10.1¢ Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreetieetween the registrant and Russell J. Knitte

10.1¢ Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Augus2B01 between Silicon Valley Bank and the registeenamended



through November 30, 2004 (1
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit

10.17  Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into &gamuary 28, 2002 with the following directors anekcutive officers:
Federico Faggin, Francis F. Lee, Russell J. Kni8abwn P. Day, David T. McKinnon, Keith B. Geestind Richard L.
Sanquini; as of April 23, 2002 with W. Ronald VaelDas of June 26, 2004 with Jeffrey D. Bucharemof March 28, 2006
with Thomas J. Tiernan; as of September 25, 20@8; Ming Chung (Alex) Wong; as of February 20, 20@th Nelson C. Chal
and as of October 23, 2007 with James L. Whims

10.1¢  Severance Policy for Principal Executive Officet8)(

10.1¢  Change of Control and Severance Agreement entatedy Francis F. Lee as of April 22, 2003 (

10.2C  Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreemaeted into by Russell J. Knittel as of April 2D03 (12)

10.21  Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 2004 by aodgathe registrant, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., aretit Suisse First
Boston LLC (4)

10.2-  Settlement Agreement dated March 31, 2005 by armhgrthe registrant, Alps Electric Co. Ltd., andgDie Corporation (13)
10.2:  Change of Control Severance Agreement entereinithomas Tiernan as of April 3, 2006 (:

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg

21  List of Subsidiarie:

23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15-14(a)

31.z  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15«-14(a)

32.1  Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Oit

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Ofit

(1) Incorporated by reference to the registraRtam 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 289filed with the SEC on February 21,
2002.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form A as filed with the SEC on August 16, 20!
(3) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on July 31, 20(
(4) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 2C

(5) Incorporated by reference to the registralRtem 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2@8Zjled with the SEC on September 12,
2002.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 24, 20(

(7) Incorporated by reference to the registramgstration statement on Form S-1 (Registration 383-56026) as filed with the SEC
January 22, 2002 and declared effective Januarg(®@&,.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the registralRtam 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 289 led with the SEC on November 8,
2007.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended December 28, 2002, as\iildtdSEC on February 6, 20C

(10) Incorporated by reference to the registrant'sww&0-K for the fiscal year ended June 24, 2006i|ed with the SEC on September 7,
2006.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 3, 20

(12) Incorporated by reference to the registrant'sw-&0-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003iles with the SEC on September 12,
2003.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 1, 200
(14) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 3, 200

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstart confidential treatment request that was @by the Securities and Exchar
Commission pursuant to Rule -2 of the Exchange Ac
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, #gistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATEL

Date August 27, 200 By: /s/ Francis F. Le

Francis F. Let
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidredolw by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Francis F. Lee Chief Executive Officer, and Director August 27, 2008
Francis E. Let (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Thomas J. Tiernan President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director August 27, 2008
Thomas J. Tierna
/s/ Russell J. Knittel Executive Vice President, Chief Financial August 27, 2008
Russell J. Knittel Officer, Secretary and Treasurer (Principal

Financial and Accounting Office

/sl Federico Faggin Chairman of the Board August 27, 2008
Federico Faggil

/sl Jeffrey D. Buchanan Director August 27, 2008
Jeffrey D. Buchana

/sl Nelson C. Chan Director August 27, 2008
Nelson C. Chal

/sl Keith B. Geeslin Director August 27, 2008

Keith B. Geeslir

/s/ Richard L. Sanquini Director August 27, 2008
Richard L. Sanquir

/s/ W. Ronald Van Dell Director August 27, 2008
W. Ronald Van Del

/sl James L. Whims Director August 27, 2008
James L. Whim
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidaétahce sheets of Synaptics Incorporated and dalisil(the Company) as of June 30,
2007 and June 28, 2008, and the related consdlidé¢ements of income, stockholders’ equity andprehensive income, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three year period endee 28, 2008. These consolidated financial statesremetthe responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wittstaadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovéaidgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financiakstaents referred to above present fairly, in alterial respects, the financial position of
Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaries as of 30n2007 and June 28, 2008, and the results afdiperations and their cash flows for eac
the years in the three year period ended June@®®, 2n conformity with U.S. generally acceptedaeatting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidatedrfaial statements, the Company adopted the proxgibFinancial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertain Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASRitSment No. 109, at the beginning of
fiscal 2008.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), Synaptics
Incorporated’s internal control over financial refiny as of June 28, 2008, based on criteria estadd in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and-eport dated August 27, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrad the Company’s internal control over financggorting.

/s KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 27, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited Synaptics Incorporated’s Gbmpany) internal control over financial reportesgof June 28, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitinatof the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Synaptics Incorporated’s management isoresple for maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undemli©QA. Our responsibility is to express an opirsorthe Company'’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdgtard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaymiich other procedures as we considered necésghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoragsierance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Synaptics Incorporated maiméal, in all material respects, effective interraitcol over financial reporting as of June 28,
2008, based on criteria established in Internalt@br— Integrated Framework issued by the Committe8ponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the consolida
balance sheets of Synaptics Incorporated and dakisglas of June 30, 2007 and June 28, 2008 hencblated consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensivermecand cash flows for each of the years in theetlyear period ended June 28, 2008, and
our report dated August 27, 2008 expressed an lifigdapinion on those consolidated financial staents.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 27, 2008
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2007 2008
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 45,91t $ 96,21¢
Shor-term investment 219,10: 50,29¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $419$56@D at June 30, 2007 and 2008, respecti 56,72 69,36:
Inventories 12,03« 21,06
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,24¢ 3,417
Total current asse 338,01° 240,36(
Property and equipment, r 19,40( 22,45¢
Goodwill 1,927 1,927
Non-current investment — 37,94¢
Other asset 13,96¢ 3,66¢

$373,31: $ 306,36:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 21,55: $ 27,78¢
Accrued compensatic 5,37 6,51(
Income taxes payab 3,40( 7,09t
Other accrued liabilitie 6,272 9,12(
Note payable 1,50(C —
Total current liabilities 38,09¢ 50,50¢
Other liabilities 2,12¢ 17,07t
Convertible senior subordinated no 125,00( 125,00(

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock;
$0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorizedhates issued and outstand — —
Common stock;
$0.001 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorizedP82939 and 42,500,535 shares issued; and 39,217,

and 33,412,435 shares outstanding; at June 30,&802008, respectively( 43 43
Additional paic-in capital 180,73: 222,54:
Less: 3,588,100 and 9,088,100 common treasury skatkine 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively, at2) (72,349 (237,38)
Accumulated other comprehensive i (139 (2,319
Retained earning 99,79t 130,89!

Total stockholder equity 208,08 113,77

$373,31. $ 306,36:

(1) Reflects the retroactive effect of the 3-fostock split to be effected as a stock dividendacoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2008
and payable on August 29, 20(

(2) The stock dividend will not be paid on treasuryresaaccordingly, the pcsplit quantity of common treasury shares for eastiog
presented is unchanged from the-split quantity.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net revenue
Cost of revenue(1

Gross margir
Operating expense
Research and development
Selling, general, and administrative
Restructuring

Total operating expens:

Operating incom:
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Gain on settlement of de
Impairment of investmer
Impairment of auction rate securities investm
Income before provision for income tay
Provision for income taxe

Net income

Net income per shar
Basic(2)

Diluted(2)

Shares used in computing net income per s:
Basic(2)
Diluted(2)

(1) Amounts include sha-based compensation costs as follo

Cost of revenu
Research and developmt
Selling, general, and administrati

Years ended June 30,

2006
$184,55'
101,70
82,85¢

35,35¢
28,01¢

63,37
19,47¢

7,98¢
(1,939)

25,52;
11,82:
$ 13,70!

$ 0.37
$ 0.34

37,06
43,618

$ 682
$ 4,79¢
$ 7,71¢

2007
$266,78
160,91
105,87

39,38¢
36,241

91¢
76,54¢

29,32¢
11,05¢
(1,950)

38,43
11,89
$ 26,53¢

$ 0.6¢
$ 0.6

38,331
43,59;

$ 75C
$ 5,091
$ 8,45:

2008
$361,05'
213,60¢
147,45!

50,09
48,12¢

98,21¢

49,23;
9,65:
(1,827)
2,68¢
(4,000
(6,969
48,78¢
17,68¢

$ 31,10(

$ 0.8¢
$ 0.7¢

37,66
39,36¢

$ 1,102
$ 6,321
$10,08(

(2) Reflects the retroactive effect of th-for-2 stock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2

and payable on August 29, 20(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
(in thousands, except for share amounts)

Accumulatec

Additional Deferred Other Total
Common Stock Issue Paic-in Treasury Stock Comprehensiv Retainec Stockholder
Shares(1 Amount(1 Capital(1) Stock Compensatio Income/(Loss Earnings Equity
Balance at June 30, 20! 39,059,67 $ 39 $ 106,67 $ (21,180) $ (309) $ (229 $ 59,56( $  144,66(
Components of comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — 13,701 13,70:
Net unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
investmentt — — — — — (33%) — (335
Total comprehensive
income 13,36¢
Issuance of common stock fr
option exercises and stock
purchase pla 1,564,01 2 8,47t — — — — 8,471
Purchase of treasury sto — — — (18,819 — — — (18,819

Adjustment for non-issuance of

stock dividend on treasury

shares(2 (583,55() Q) 1 — — — — —
Amortization of deferred stocl

compensation, net of

reversals — — (303) 303 — — —
Tax benefit associated with

stock options — — 6,15¢ — — — — 6,15¢
Shar-based compensatic — — 13,20( — — — — 13,20(

Balance at June 30, 20 40,040,13 40 134,20« (39,999 — (464) 73,261 167,04:

Components of comprehensi

income:

Net income — — — — — — 26,53¢ 26,534

Net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale

investment: — — — — — 32t — 32t
Total comprehensive
income 26,85¢

Issuance of common stock frc
option exercises and stocl

purchase pla 3,306,80. 8 21,39t — — — — 21,39¢
Purchase of treasury sto — — (32,34¢) — — — (32,34¢)
Adjustment for non-issuance
stock dividend on treasury
shares(2 (640,999 — — — — — — —
Tax benefit associated with
stock options — — 10,84( — — — — 10,84(
Shar-based compensatic — — 14,29¢ — — — — 14,29¢
Balance at June 30, 20! 42,705,93 43 180,73¢ (72,345 — (23¢) 99,79 208,08"
Components of comprehensit
income:
Net income — — — — — — 31,10¢ 31,10(
Net unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
investmentt — — — — — (2,17¢) — (2,179
Total comprehensive
income 28,92
Issuance of common stock fre
option exercises and stoct
purchase pla 2,544,591 3 24,761 — — — — 24,76¢
Payroll taxes for deferred stock
units — — (74€) — — — — (74€)
Purchase of treasury sto — — — (165,047) — — — (165,049
Adjustment for non-issuance of
stock dividend on treasury
shares(2 (2,750,001 ?3) 3 — — — — —
Tax benefit associated with
stock options — — 28¢ — — — — 28¢
Shar-based compensatic — — 17,50: — — — — 17,50¢
Balance at June 30, 20! 42,500,53 $ 43 $ 222,54 $(237,38) $ — $ (2,317%) $130,89¢ $ 113,77

(1) Reflects the retroactive effect of the 3-fostock split to be effected as a stock dividendaoh stockholder of record on August 15, 2008
and payable on August 29, 20(

(2) The stock dividend will not be paid on treasuryrgsaaccordingly, the impact of not issuing thektdividend on treasury shares
reflected above as adjustment for -issuance of stock dividend on treasury shz



See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Sharebased compensation co
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of property and equipme
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Tax benefit realized from stock optio
Excess tax benefit from sh-based compensati
Deferred taxe
Settlement of dek
Impairment of investmer
Impairment of ARS investmen
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensatic
Income taxe:
Other accrued liabilitie
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of sh«-term investment

Proceeds from sales and maturities of -term investment
Purchases of property and equipm

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of treasury sto

Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeotisptions and stock purchase g
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur

Excess tax benefit from sh-based compensatic

Net cash used in financing activiti

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informatiol
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxe

Years ended June 30,

2006
$ 13,70

13,20(
1,64¢
86C
6,15¢
(5,229
1,50¢

(244)
(2,279)
(507)
(794)
4,15z
(79€)
(6,789)
24
16

24,78

(250,93)
200,83
(3,072)
(53,170

(18,819
8,477

5,22¢

(5119
(33,509)
72,23:

$ 38,72«

$ 93¢
$ 11,49¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2008
$ 26,53 $ 31,100
14,29¢ 17,50:
2,34¢ 3,791
102 21C
86C 86C
10,84( 28¢
(9,879) (28¢)
(115) 597
— (2,689)
— 4,00(
— 6,96%
(22,68 (12,64
(2,02¢) (9,03))
(80€) 577
6,161 6,371
5,01( 6,23:
44€ 1,13¢
(4,679) 17,42¢
89E 4,037
(98€) (71)
26,31 76,38
(280,899 (172,54)
268,56 294,26
(5,817) (7,066)
(18,13 114,65
(32,34¢) (165,04
21,48: 24,761
— (746)
9,87¢ 28¢
(986) (140,73)
7,191 50,30:
38,72 45,91
$ 4591 $ 96,21¢
$ 93¢ $ 93¢
$ 8,92 $  267¢
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountng Policies
Organization and Basis of Presentation

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed user interface solutionséhable people to interact more easily and
intuitively with a wide variety of mobile computingommunications, entertainment, and other eletrdevices. We currently target the
personal computer, or PC, market and the marketiptal lifestyle products, including mobile sm@itbnes and feature phones, portable di
music and video players, and other select eleatrdevice markets with our customized human interfeadutions. Our original equipment
manufacturer, or OEM, customers include most otireone PC OEMs and many of the world’s largeStM3 for mobile smartphones and
feature phones and portable digital music players.

The consolidated financial statements inclodiefinancial statements and those of our whollyed subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beemaled upon consolidation.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week periadiag on the last Saturday in June. The fiscalgasrpresented in this report were 52-week
periods for the year ended June 24, 2006 and Jn20P8, and a 58«ek period for the year ended June 30, 2007. & ef presentation, t
accompanying consolidated financial statements baea shown as ending on June 30, 2006, 2007,G0& 2

Stock Split

On July 31, 2008, we announced a 3-for-2 sgmii to be effected as a stock dividend. Thelstticidend will be effective for stockholders
of record after the close of market on August IR&and will be payable after the close of markefagust 29, 2008. All share and per-share
amounts contained herein have been retroactivglyseedi to reflect the stock split.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestants in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportemliata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenseabsyalated disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate aiineates, including those related to revenue reitiogn allowance for doubtful accounts, cost
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, shagetlacompensation costs, provision for income taresme taxes payable, intangible assets,
and contingencies. We base our estimates on tdat@xperience, applicable laws, and various adssumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resultbioh form the basis for making judgments aboutdheying value of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcesu® results may differ from these estimates uiféerent assumptions or conditions.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid istreents with original maturities of three monthdess. Short-term investments consist of
marketable securities and are classified as sexufdvailable for sale” under Statement of Finahgiccounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Eg$ecurities.” Such securities are reported mtvalue, with unrealized gains and losses,
excluded from earnings and shown separately as@aoent of accumulated other comprehensive incoitienastockholders’ equity. A
decline in the market value of a security belowt that is deemed other-than-temporary is chargeditoings, resulting in the establishment of
a new cost basis for the security. Interest eaomegharketable securities is included in interesbine. We determine realized gains and losses
on the sale of marketable securities using theipéentification method.
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The following is a summary of investments waitable-for-sale securities and cash equivalantthpusands):

June 30, 200

Gross Gross Estimatec

Amortized Unrealize( Unrealizel Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Money marke $ 37,78t $ — $ — $ 37,78t
Commercial pape 3,417 — — 3,417
Auction rate preferre 27,00( — — 27,00(
U.S. agencie 16,99¢ — 22 16,97¢
Asset backed securitit 31,50( — — 31,50(
Corporate bond 3,501 — — 3,501
Municipal securitie: 143,741 — 117 143,62t
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $263,94- $ — $ 13¢ $263,80!

June 30, 200

Gross Gross Estimatec

Amortized Unrealize( Unrealizel Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Money marke $ 70,75¢ $ — $ — $ 70,75¢
Commercial pape 28,31¢ — — 28,31¢
U.S. agencie 2,99¢ — 1 2,991
Municipal securitie! 41,20: 13¢ — 41,33¢
Auction rate securitie 40,41: — 2,46¢€ 37,94¢
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $183,68t¢ $ 132 $ 2,467 $181,35:

The following is a summary of weighted averagerest rates, amortized costs, and estimateddhies of short-term available-for-sale
securities and cash equivalents by contractual nitya{iin thousands):

June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Weightec Weightec

Average Estimatec Average Estimatec

Interest Amortized Fair Interest Amortized Fair

Rate Cost Value Rate Cost Value
Less than one yei 4.4% $242,84t $242,76 2.5% $133,56! $133,68:
Due in 1- 2 years 4.1% 21,09¢ 21,03¢ 3.1% 9,70¢ 9,72¢
Total $263,94- $263,80! $143,27: $143,40¢

As of June 30, 2008, we had investments ini@ucate securities with a fair value of $37.9lroil classified as non-current investments on
our balance sheet. The interest rate on our auditensecurities generally resets every 28 dagsmmection with the scheduled auction date
and the contractual maturities for our auction sgeurities are generally greater than nine yéafsscal 2008, we reduced the carrying value
of our auction rate security investments by $9.Bioni, of which $7.0 million was accounted for aber-than-temporary impairment with a
corresponding charge to income and $2.5 million aaounted for as temporary impairment throughratbenprehensive income or loss.
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Fair Values of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of our cash equivalents, antoteceivable, accounts payable, and accrueditie®iapproximate their carrying values
because of the short-term nature of those instrtsn&he fair value of short-term investments isdolasn current trading values and the fair
value of our auction rate securities is based soalinted cash flow model. The fair value of ounestible senior subordinated notes is based
on trading values as of the end of our fiscal year.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjesto concentrations of credit risk consist prihgaof cash equivalents, investments, and trade
accounts receivable. Our investment policy, whichriedicated on capital preservation and liquidityits investments to U.S. government
treasuries and agency issues, taxable securitidsnanicipal issued securities with a minimum rgtiri A1 (Moody’s) or P1 (Standard and
Poor’s) or equivalent. Included within our investmportfolio are investments in auction rate sd@si(*“ARS”), which met our investment
guidelines at the time of our investment. Our AR@stments are currently not liquid as a resuttasitinued auction failures. If the issuers are
not able to meet their payment obligations or ifsgd our ARS investments before they recover, vag tase some or all of our principal
invested or may be required to further reduce #reying value.

We sell our products primarily to contract méatturers that provide manufacturing services EMS. We extend credit based on an
evaluation of a customer’s financial condition, anelgenerally do not require collateral. To datedit losses have been insignificant, and we
believe that an adequate allowance for doubtfubasts has been provided. At June 30, 2007 and 2088pllowing customers accounted for
more than 10% of our accounts receivable balance:

2007 2008
Customer A 12% 12%
Customer E * 12%
Customer C 17% *

* Less than 109

Other Concentrations

Our products include certain components thatarrently single sourced. We believe other vesauld be able to provide similar
components; however, the qualification of such weadnay require start-up time. In order to mitigaiy adverse impacts from a disruption of
supply, we attempt to maintain an adequate supfdyitical single -sourced components.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemestseaelivery has occurred and title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinablel eallectibility is reasonably assured. We accaresktimated sales returns and other
allowances, based on historical experience, dfirtiewe recognize revenue. We record contract needor research and development as the
services are provided under the terms of the contvde recognize non-refundable contract fees tuckvno further performance obligations
exist and for which there is no continuing invohamby us on the earlier of when the paymentsereived or when collection is assured.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accouptsefstimated losses resulting from the inabilitco$tomers to meet their financial
obligations. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate d¢ilectibility of accounts receivable based on a boration of factors. In circumstances in
which we are aware of a specific customer’s pogiriability to meet its financial obligation, weaord a specific reserve of the bad debt
against amounts due. In addition, we make judgmeemisestimates on the collectibility of accounts
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receivable based on our historical bad debt expegiecustomers’ creditworthiness, current econdreirds, recent changes in customers’
payment trends, and deterioration in the custonmgrstating results or financial position. If circumarsces change adversely, additional bad
allowances may be required. The following tablesprs our allowances for doubtful accounts (in saols):

2007 2008
Beginning allowance for doubtful accoul $ 18¢ $ 41¢
Additions charged to expen 23C 12C
Adjustments to reser\ — —
Ending allowance for doubtful accout $  41c¢ $ B3¢
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cdstt{fn, first-out method) or market (estimated restlizable value), and at June 30, 2007 and 200¢
consisted of the following (in thousands):

2007 2008
Raw material $10,187 $16,33¢
Finished good 1,847 4,72¢
$12,03¢ $21,06¢

Periodically, we purchase inventory from oanttact manufacturers when a customer’s delivelngdule is delayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ouraust has cancelled its order and we purchase iagefrom our contract manufacturers, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valiihe inventory purchased to its net realizablkeeaWe charge write-downs to reduce the
carrying value of obsolete, slow moving, and noaklis inventory to net realizable value to costesenue.

Property and Equipmet

We state property and equipment at cost lessraulated depreciation and amortization. We compepreciation using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the as¥ée apply estimated useful life of three to fjears to our computer equipment and
software; estimated useful lives ranging from anéve years to our manufacturing equipment; anresed useful life of three to five years to
our furniture and fixtures; and an estimated uskéftilof 35 years to our building. We amortize lelsld improvements and assets recorded
under capital leases over the shorter of the leageor the useful life of the asset. For the yeaded June 30, 2007 and 2008, we retired fully
depreciated equipment and furniture with an origoust of $759,000 and $84,000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio

The U.S. dollar is our functional and repagtourrency. We remeasure our monetary assetsaitities not denominated in the functional
currency into U.S. dollar equivalents at the rdtex@hange in effect on the balance sheet datem@&sure and record non-monetary balance
sheet accounts at the historical rate in effetht@tate of translation. We translate revenue apéreses at the weighted average exchange rate
in the month that the transaction occurred. Renreasent of monetary assets and liabilities thahatedenominated in the functional currency
are included currently in operating results. Tratish losses included in operating results foryihars ended June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008
totaled $37,000, $63,000, and $73,000, respecti@ydate, we have not undertaken hedging trarsectelated to foreign currency exposure.

Goodwill

We review the carrying value of goodwill aa$ annually for impairment as of the fiscal yead balance sheet date. The frequency of our
review is dictated by events or changes in circamss indicating
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that the carrying value may be impaired. Basedwrlaiest review, we determined there was no inmpant of the carrying value of goodwiill.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting floe impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets,” exaluate long-lived assets, such as
property and equipment and intangible assets sutgjegnortization, for impairment whenever eventsltanges in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recolersltte measure recoverability of assets to be &etHused by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted faasik flows expected to be generated by the df##. carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, wegeize an impairment charge in an amount by wthielcarrying amount of the asset
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets tadpesked of would be separately presented in theddiolated balance sheet and reported at the
lower of the carrying amount or fair value lesstsds sell, and would no longer be depreciated. d9sets and liabilities of a disposed group
classified as held for sale would be presentedragglg in the appropriate asset and liability sawdiof the consolidated balance sheet.

Segment Information

We have adopted SFAS 131, “Disclosure AboginSmts of an Enterprise and Related Informationg’ dfderate in one segment: the
development, marketing, and sale of intuitive ustarface solutions for electronic devices and putsl

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We adopted SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Paymeni’ modified prospective basis beginning with fi206 and apply the provisions of
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Paynt” (“SAB 107"). We utilize the Black-Scholes apt pricing model to estimate the
grant date fair value of employee share-based cosgpery awards, which requires the input of highlbjective assumptions, including
expected volatility and expected life. Historicalamplied volatilities were used in estimating fag value of our share-based awards, while
the expected life for our options was estimatebedive years based on historical trends sincarotial public offering. Changes in these ing
and assumptions can materially affect the meaduestonated fair value of our share-based compemsdturther, as required under SFAS
123R, we estimate forfeitures for share-based asviduat are not expected to vest. We charge estihfiaitevalue less estimated forfeitures to
earnings on a straight-line basis over the vegigripd of the underlying awards, which is generfilyr years for our stock option and deferred
stock unit awards and up to two years for our eygrostock purchase plan.

Product Warrantie:

We generally warrant our products for a penbd2 months or more from the date of sale anidnes¢ probable product warranty costs at
the time we recognize revenue. Factors that affectvarranty liability include historical and anpeated rates of warranty claims, materials
usage, rework, and delivery costs. Warranty costsried have not been material in recent years.dtew we assess the adequacy of our
warranty obligations periodically and adjust theraed warranty liability on the basis of our estieza

Changes in our warranty liability (includeddther accrued liabilities) for the years endedeJ8®, 2007 and 2008 were as follows (in
thousands):

2007 2008
Beginning accrued warran $ 357 $ 32t
Provision for product warrantie 55(C 571
Cost of warranty claims and settleme (582 (506)
Ending accrued warran $ 32t $ 39
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Advertising Expens

We expense all advertising costs as incuiedertising costs were not material to any of tleeiqds presented.

Comprehensive Income

Our comprehensive income consists of net irephas the effect of unrealized gains and lossesuprinvestments primarily due to
reductions in market value of certain of our auttiate securities and interest rate fluctuationsunrfixed interest rate investments. We
recognize remeasurement adjustments in our comsetidstatement of income as the U.S. dollar ifuhetional currency of our foreign
entities.

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asselialility method. We recognize deferred tax esseid liabilities for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existiagets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawgfols. We measure deferred tax assets and liabilising enacted tax rates expected to ¢
to taxable income in the years in which those terayodifferences are expected to be recoveredtedeWe recognize the effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax retéscome in the period that includes the enactrdate. We establish valuation allowances
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets tortbents expected to be realized. We considergheating earnings of our foreign
subsidiaries to be indefinitely invested outside thited States. Accordingly, no provision has beade for the U.S. federal, state, or foreign
taxes that may result from future remittances dafistnibuted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries.

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Acctingy for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interptieta of FASB Statement No. 109"FN
48", at the beginning of the first quarter of &008. FIN 48 contains a two-step approach togeizing and measuring uncertain tax
positions accounted for in accordance with FINB& first step is to determine when it is moredijkihan-not that a tax position will be
sustained upon examination, including resolutioarof related appeals or litigation processes. Eoertd step is to measure the tax benefit as
the largest amount that is more than 50% likelpaihg realized upon ultimate settlement with artgxauthority. The calculation of tax
liabilities involves significant judgment in estitiveg the impact of uncertainties in the applicatadrhighly complex tax laws. Resolution of
these uncertainties in a manner inconsistent withegpectations could have a material impact orresults of operations and financial
condition. We believe we have adequately provideddasonably foreseeable outcomes in connectitintté resolution of income tax
uncertainties. However, our results have in the, @as could in the future, include favorable anfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax
liabilities in the period a determination of suchimated tax liability is made or resolved, upoa fiting of an amended return, upon a chan¢
facts, circumstances, or interpretation, or up@netkpiration of a statute of limitation. Accordipgbur effective tax rate could fluctuate
materially from period to period.

Research and Developme

We expense costs to develop our products,iwihidude the costs incurred to design interfadetgms for customers prior to the customers
incorporating those solutions into their produessjncurred in accordance with SFAS 2 “AccountimgResearch and Development Costs,”
which establishes accounting and reporting starsdimrresearch and development costs.

Net Income Per Shal

We present basic and diluted net income paresamounts in conformity with the SFAS 128, “Eags Per Share,” (SFAS 128) for all
periods presented. In accordance with SFAS 128¢ basincome per share amounts for each perioskpted have been computed using the
weighted average number of shares of common stotstamding.

As a result of our irrevocable election in ARO07 to cash settle the principal amount of comvertible notes, no common stock will be
issued to settle the principal and cash or comnmrksnay be used to settle the value in excesseoptincipal. Our election to cash settle the
principal of the convertible notes upon
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conversion resulted in our using the “if convertetthod through the date of the election and tfea%ury stock” method subsequent to the
date of the election for purposes of calculatidgtdd net income per share. Accordingly, dilutetlineome per share amounts for each period
presented have been computed (1) using the weiglve@dge number of potentially dilutive sharesasdelin connection with our share-based
compensation plans under the treasury stock me(@dthrough April 2007 using the weighted averagenber of shares issuable in connec
with our convertible debt under the if-convertedinogl, and (3) from April 2007 using the weighte@mage number of potentially dilutive
shares issuable in connection with our convertilelet under the treasury stock method, when dilutive

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS N@, ‘Fair Value Measurements,” (“SFAS 157"). SFASY defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in U.S. gengraltcepted accounting principles, and expandsadisoé about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 applies under other accounting standhedse¢quire or permit fair value measurements. Adiogly, SFAS 157 does not require ¢
new fair value measurement. SFAS 157 is effectagriming in our first quarter of fiscal 2009. Howeythe effective date of SFAS 157 as it
relates to fair value measurement requirementadafinancial assets and liabilities that are noteasured at fair value on a recurring basis is
expected to be deferred to our first quarter afdi010. We do not expect the adoption of SFASth3vave a material impact on our financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositNo. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Delostruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Sutit),” (“FSP APB 14-1"). FSP APB 14-1 requiresttisguers of convertible debt
instruments that may be settled in cash upon ceivreseparately account for the liability and egaitmponents in a manner that will reflect
the entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate wliee interest cost is recognized in subsequetdgserThe coupon rate on our convertible
debt instrument is 0.75% and the comparable yielmnconvertible debt instrument determined attitme we issued our notes was 8.5%.
Accordingly, we anticipate the non-cash pre-taxumhimpact to our results of operations from thepibn of FSP APB 14-1 to be
approximately $8.0 million to $10.0 million. FSP BR.4-1 will be effective beginning with the firstigrter of our fiscal 2010 and will be
applied retrospectively.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of il Accounting Standards No. 162, “The Hierarofigenerally Accepted Accounting
Principles” (“FAS 162"). The new standard is inteddo improve financial reporting by identifyingansistent framework, or hierarchy, for
selecting accounting principles to be used in pliagdinancial statements that are presented irficzority with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) for nongovernmengaitities. FAS 162 is effective 60 days followingGEpproval of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board Auditing amendments td 3ection 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly im@omity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.” We are currently evaluatthg impact, if any, of the adoption of FAS 162aum financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows.

2. Gain from Settlement of Debt and Impairment of hvestment
Gain from Settlement of Debt

In fiscal 1998, we entered into agreementh Wiational Semiconductor Corporation (“Nationalttwrespect to the formation of a
development-stage company, Foveonics, Inc. (nowknas Foveon, Inc. and referred to herein as Fgyedrich was formed to develop and
produce digital imaging products. We contributezhtelogy for which we had no accounting basis f80%6 interest in Foveon in the form of
voting convertible preferred stock. Under the agreets, we had the right to acquire additional shafeconvertible preferred stock at a
specified price in exchange for a limited-recoucse from National. National loaned us $1.5 milliamder a non-recourse 6% interest bearing
note, which we utilized to purchase 900,000 Sekigseferred shares of Foveon, which increased aumeoship interest in Foveon to 43%.

In fiscal 1998, we recorded our share of lesseurred by Foveon under the equity accountinthoteon the basis of our proportionate
ownership of voting convertible preferred stock aaduced the carrying value of our equity investmerzero as our share of losses incurred
by Foveon exceeded the carrying value of our imaest. The $1.5 million note to National plus accrigerest of $1.2 million came due in
August 2007, and, in accordance with the secugtg@ment, we surrendered our 900,000 Series Arpeefe
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shares securing the note to National in full setéet of the principal and accrued interest. Consetiy, we recognized a non-operating gain
upon settlement of debt in the amount of $2.7 oillin fiscal 2008.

Impairment of Investme

In fiscal 2005, we participated in an equitahcing, receiving 3,943,217 shares of FoveoneSedtipreferred stock for a cash investment of
$4.0 million. Our CEO and a member of our boardicéctors are directors of Foveon. The Series Eepred shares are convertible into
common shares on a one-for-one basis at any timeraiption, upon a firm underwritten public offegiof Foveon common stock of not less
than $20 million at a price per share of not lé&ssitthree times the original issue price, or upawiritten agreement of the holders of at least
60% of the outstanding preferred shares votingsisgle class. The Series E preferred shares soesalitled to a liquidation preference up to
two times the original issue price over the earien-Series E preferred shares and common shaeear&\hot obligated to provide additional
funding to Foveon. We accounted for our Seriesdfepred stock investment in Foveon under the ceshod in accordance with APB Opini
No. 18 and EITF Issues No.-14 and No. 03-1 because the investment is nostiibstance common stock.”

In fiscal 2007, Foveon completed a Seriesdfgpred financing receiving net proceeds of $13il8an. The Series F preferred shareholders
are entitled to a liquidation preference over thdier non-Series F preferred shares and commaresha

In fiscal 2008, we determined there was aemthan-temporary impairment of the carrying vadfieur investment in Foveon, due to
liquidity visibility and liquidation preferencesithe most recent preferred equity round. Assurbiogk value equals fair value of certain of
Foveon’s assets such as cash, accounts receiaabl@ccounts payable and no value for other tamgihd intangible assets, a hypothetical
liquidation of Foveon at September 30, 2007 wowdddjit only Series F preferred shareholders. Caresatty, we recognized a $4.0 million
other-than-temporary impairment charge.

3. Net Income Per Share

The following table presents the computatibbasic and diluted net income per share (in thedsaexcept per share amounts):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008
Numerator:
Basic net incom: $13,70: $26,53¢ $31,10(
Interest expense and amortization of debt issueosts on convertible notes, net of 1,06¢ 87¢ —
Diluted net income $14,76¢ $27,41: $31,10(
Denominator
Shares, basi 37,06: 38,337 37,66"
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 2,84( 2,19¢ 1,69¢
Effect of convertible note 3,711 3,06 —
Shares, dilute: 43,61 43,59 39,36¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.37 $ 0.6¢ $ 0.8t
Diluted $ 0.3 $ 0.6 $ 0.7¢

Diluted net income per share does not inctheéeeffect of the following share-based awardgi{ousands):

2006 2007 2008
Shar+-based award 3,204 3,35¢ 1,50¢
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These share-based awards were not includix iocomputation of diluted net income per sharebge the proceeds received, if any, from
such share-based awards combined with the aversgeartized compensation costs adjusted for thethgtioal tax benefit or deficiency
creditable or chargeable, respectively, to additigraid-in capital, were greater than the averageket price of our common stock, and
therefore, their effect would have been antidiletiv

Our basic net income per share amounts fdr padod presented have been computed using trghteei average number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Our diluted net inconreshare amounts for each period presented incheleveighted average effect of
potentially dilutive shares. For our stock optiodeferred stock units, and our convertible notésequent to April 2007, we use the “treasury
stock” method to determine the dilutive effect. l@nthe treasury stock method, shares associatbdwitconvertible notes will be included in
the calculation of diluted net income per sharg dirthe weighted average price of our common stexéeeds $33.69. We used the “if
converted” method to determine the dilutive effefcour convertible notes prior to April 2007 wher wade an irrevocable election to cash
settle the principal upon conversion. Under thaifiverted method 3.7 million and 3.1 million dildtehares were included in the calculation of
diluted net income per share in fiscal 2006 and720€spectively.

4. Auction Rate Securities

Our non-current investments include $47.4ioriloriginal cost basis of auction rate securit@sARS, that have failed to settle in auctions.
These failures generally resulted in the interatgs resetting from the London Interbank OffereteRaIBOR) plus 50 basis points to LIBOR
plus 150 basis points on the regularly scheduleti@udates. These investments are not liquid artdé event we need to access these funds,
we will not be able to do so without a loss of pifral, unless a future auction on these investmisrgaccessful.

As there are currently no active markets farvarious failed ARS investments, we have estioh#tte fair value of these investments as of
June 30, 2008 based on a trinomial discounted ftastanalysis. The analysis considered, among dtutors, the collateral underlying the
security investments, creditworthiness of the cerpdrty, timing of expected future cash flows, #melprobability of a successful auction in a
future period. When possible, our failed ARS inwastits were compared to other observable marketodatacurities with similar
characteristics. In fiscal 2008, we have reducedctrrying value of these investments by $9.5 amilliof which $7.0 million was accounted for
as other-than-temporary impairment with a corredpancharge to income and $2.5 million was accalifte as temporary impairment
through other comprehensive income or loss.

As of June 30, 2008, none of our ARS investsierere in default and all of our ARS investmerstmue to pay interest. The following
table sets forth the various types of failed AR&Bstments we hold, including the original cost batsipe of impairment, the new cost basis.
fair value (in thousands).

Original Other-thar- New

Cost temporary Cost Temporar Fair

Basis Impairmen Basis Impairmen Value
Student loan $13,00( $ — 13,00( $ $70¢ $12,29¢
Closed end muni and corporate ful 13,87 — 13,87 1,23 12,64:
Credit linked note: 13,50( 4,72¢ 8,774 — 8,77¢
Contingent capital note 5,00( 2,23 2,76: 33C 2,43:
Muni 2,00( — 2,00( 197 1,80z
Total ARS $47,37¢ $ 6,968 $40,41C $ 2,46¢ $37,94¢

At the present time, the primary issue affegll of our ARS investments is that of liquidit¥e have accounted for all of our ARS
investments as non-current as we are not ableagorably determine when the ARS markets will recovde restructured. Based on our
ability to access our cash and other sh@ma investments, our expected operating cash flamd our other sources of cash, we believe we
the ability

F-16




Table of Contents

to hold these investments until the value recogethe investments mature. We will continue to nmmdur ARS investments in light of the
current debt market environment and evaluate otmwatting for these investments quarterly.

5. Property and Equipment
As of June 30, 2007 and 2008, property andpeggent consisted of the following (in thousands):

Life 2007 2008
Land $ 2,50( $ 2,50C
Building and improvement 35 years 10,30¢ 10,82!
Equipment and toolin 1 year to 5 yeatl 9,56 13,31«
Furniture 3yearsto 5 yea 972 1,082
Capitalized softwar 3yearsto 5 yea 4,401 6,83¢
27,74¢ 34,55:
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (8,346 (12,099
Property and equipment, r $19,40( $ 22,45¢
6. Other Assets
As of June 30, 2007 and 2008, other assetsisted of the following (in thousands):
__Note __ 2007 _ 2008
Non-current deferred ta 12 $ 16C $ 1,09¢
Investment in Foveon, Ir 2 4,00( —
Non-current prepaid ta 12 7,051 —
Debt issuance costs, r 8 2,09 1,23
Deposits and other lo-term asset 66( 1,33¢
Other Asset: $13,96¢ $ 3,66¢

7. Leases and Other Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

We lease our Shanghai, Beijing, and Koredif@s under operating leases that expire in fi4l9, and our Hong Kong and Taiwan
facilities under operating leases that expire $odl 2010. Total rent expense, recognized on abktriine basis, was approximately $786,000,
$1.0 million, and $1.0 million for the years endrohe 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008, respectively.

The aggregate future minimum rental commitraest of June 30, 2008 for noncancelable operatamek with initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year were as follows (in thousands):

Operating

Lease
Fiscal Yeal Payment:
2009 $ 1,08¢
2010 701
Total minimum operating lease payme $ 1,78¢
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Contingencies

We may receive notices from third parties tiiaim our products infringe their rights. From &rto time, we receive notice from third par
alleging infringement of their intellectual propertghts. We cannot be certain that our technokgied products do not and will not infringe
issued patents or other proprietary rights of tpiadties. Any infringement claims, with or withauerit, could result in significant litigation
costs and diversion of management and financialuregs, including the payment of damages, whicldchave a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations.

Indemnifications

In connection with certain third-party agreetsewve have executed in the past, we are obligataaiemnify the third party in connection
with any technology infringement by us. We haveastered into indemnification agreements withafticers and directors. Maximum
potential future payments cannot be estimated lsectiese agreements do not have a maximum stabadyi However, historical costs
related to these indemnification provisions haveleen significant. We have not recorded any lighiih our consolidated financial statements
for such indemnification obligations.

Line of Credit

We currently maintain a $20 million workingpiil line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The W&eFargo Bank revolving line of credit,
which expires on March 1, 2009, has an interestequal to the prime lending rate or 150 basistp@hove LIBOR, depending on whether we
choose a variable or fixed rate, respectively. \&@ hot borrowed any amounts under the line of tesdof June 30, 2008.

Legal Proceeding

In March 2006, Elantech Devices Corporatiarkiantech, filed a Complaint for Patent Infringerhagainst us claiming that we infringed
one of its patents and seeking damages, attorfesss,’ and a permanent injunction against us infijngr inducing others to infringe the pati
In April 2006, we filed our Answer to the Complaarid Counterclaims against Elantech, claiming Bhantech has infringed and induced
infringement of four of our patents and seeking dges, attorneys’ fees, and a permanent injunctiamat infringing or inducing others to
infringe.

Elantech responded to our counterclaim denladlity and counterclaimed seeking an injuncteomd damages for alleged violations of
California law. We subsequently filed a motion terdiss the Elantech counterclaims that was graintddly 2006 with leave to amend the
counterclaims after the adjudication of the patefiingement claims.

The Elantech patent relates to recognizingmogiding an indication of the presence of muttifihgers on a touchpad. We have previously
developed additional ways to detect multiple fisg@nd have our own related patents. The Elantédhdement claims involve two versions
our software code (“Type 1 Code” and “Type 2 Code"§ertain products in which multiple finger detten is enabled.

In October 2007, the Court heard oral argusientour motion for summary judgment of noninfrimget of the Elantech patent and
Elantech’s cross-motion for summary judgment ofingiement. The Court granted our motion for padiahmary judgment of
noninfringement as to products containing Type tl€€and denied our motion for partial summary judghed noninfringement as to products
containing Type 2 Code. In addition, the Court ddritlantech’s motion for summary judgment thatye 1 and Type 2 Codes infringe
Elantech’s intellectual property. The Court indeghthowever, that it would grant summary judgméeniingement for products
implementing the Type 2 Code with enabled fingamtimg functionality.

In November 2007, Elantech moved for partimhmary judgment that products implementing the T¥@&ode with enabled finger counting
functionality infringe the Elantech patent. In Detdger 2007, Elantech moved for entry of a prelimjyriajunction against us importing, using,
selling, or offering to sell certain products implenting the Type 2 Code with enabled finger cogntimctionality.
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In December 2007, we filed a Complaint fordPatinfringement against Elantech claiming thanEdah infringed one of our patents relat
to detecting the presence of multiple fingers douhpad and seeking damages, attorneys’ feegraigunction. In January 2008, we moved
for entry of summary judgment for infringement bétfour Synaptics patents.

In March 2008, the Court, based on its infemgnt ruling, filed an order preliminarily enjoigiis from making, using, selling, or importi
into or offering to sell within the United Statesithpad products containing our Type 2 firmwareecwaith enabled multiple finger counting
functionality. We do not believe any aspect of @wurt’s decision will have a material effect on buisiness. We are not shipping any products
that utilize the contested code. As a result, fieéiinary injunction will have no impact on us,rdausiness, or our customers. Although the
contested code is no longer used in our produ@gjawnot believe the contested code infringes taetéch patent and we have appealed the
Court’s infringement ruling.

In April 2008, the Court granted our motiom partial summary judgment holding that use ofdbmer tap, scrolling, edge motion, and ¢
features of Elantech’s touchpad products infrirge ©of our patents.

We intend to vigorously defend our patents pmcue our counterclaims. We have not recordediabiity associated with Elantech’s
claims pursuant to SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Gogéencies,” and have expensed as incurred all fegal associated with the legal
proceedings.

8. Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In December 2004, we issued an aggregate2§ §fillion of 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinatotes maturing December 1, 2024 |
“Notes”) in a private offering pursuant to Rule Pddnder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedohmection with issuing the Notes, we
incurred debt issuance costs of $4.3 million, cetirgy primarily of the initial purchasers’ discowatd costs related to legal, accounting, and
printing, which are being amortized over five yedl& expect to use the net proceeds for workingtalegnd general corporate purposes and
potentially for future acquisitions.

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75%apeum payable on December 1 and June 1 of eachH@aever, we will pay additional
contingent interest on the Notes if the averagdiniaprice of the Notes is at or above 120% ofghacipal amount of the Notes for a specified
period beginning with the six-month period commegdbecember 1, 2009. The amount of contingentastgrayable on the Notes with
respect to a six-month period, for which contingeterest applies, will equal 0.375% per annumhefaverage trading price of the Notes for a
specified five trading-day period preceding suctirsbnth period.

As a result of our irrevocable election in AROO07 to cash settle the principal amount of Ktates, no shares of common stock will be
issued to settle the principal amount of the Nai&$ cash or common stock may be used to setthealhe of the Notes in excess of
$125 million, if any. Our election to cash settie principal amount of the Notes upon conversisunlted in our using the “if converted”
method through the date of the election and thea%ury stock” method subsequent to the date afldwtion for purposes of calculating diluted
net income per share. Accordingly, we will incluglea prospective basis diluted shares underlyiad\thtes in our diluted net income per sl
calculation only when the average closing stockepfor the accounting period exceeds the convemsice of the Notes, which is $33.69 per
share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealgndar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in théopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on &s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of thdiegdgle conversion price on such last trading daypn or after January 1, 2020, (3) if we
called the Notes for redemption, or (4) during priged periods, upon the occurrence of specifieg@ate transactions or fundamental
changes. On or after December 1, 2009, we may medigrecash all or a portion of the Notes at a replgom price of 100% of the principal
amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid irtdretuding contingent interest and additionaknesst, if any. Noteholders have the right to
require us to repurchase all or a portion of thiites for cash on December 1, 2009, December 4,20 December 1, 2019 at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes tghechased plus accrued and unpaid interest, in@ucdntingent interest and additional
interest, if any. As of June 30, 2008, none ofdbieditions for conversion of the Notes had occurred

F-19




Table of Contents

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatéghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb@fl our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othegalilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofatlur future indebtedness that, by its termspisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.

Interest expense includes the amortizatiothetft issuance costs. We recorded $1.8 million éstezxpense on the Notes, which included
$860,000 of amortization of debt issuance costdndweach of the twelve-month periods ended Jun2@06, 2007, and 2008. At June 30,
2008, the fair value of the notes was approxim&$d®8.6 million based on trading values.

9. Stockholders’ Equity

We have a Stockholders’ Rights Plan that meetthe effect of deterring, delaying, or prevegnénchange in control that might otherwise
be in the best interests of our stockholders. lrega, stock purchase rights issued under thelpganme exercisable when a person or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or whanéer offer or exchange offer for 15% or more wf common stock is announced or
commenced. After any such event, our other stocldrslmay purchase additional shares of our comnozk st 50% of the then-current
market price. The rights will cause substantialtilin to a person or group that attempts to acquren terms not approved by our board of
directors. The rights should not interfere with angrger or other business combination approvedubyoard of directors. The rights expire in
August 2012.

Preferred Stocl

We are authorized, subject to limitations irsgab by Delaware law, to issue up to a total of @0,000 shares of preferred stock in one or
more series without stockholder approval. Our baddirectors has the power to establish from timgme the number of shares to be
included in each series and to fix the rights, gmexfices, and privileges of the shares of each whalssued series and any of its qualifications,
limitations, or restrictions. Our board of direct@an also increase or decrease the number ofssbiaaeseries, but not below the number of
shares of that series then outstanding, withoutfartiier vote or action by the stockholders.

Our board of directors may authorize the isseeof preferred stock with voting or conversiaghts that could harm the voting power or
other rights of the holders of our common stocke ©@suance of preferred stock, while providing ifbddity in connection with possible
acquisitions and other corporate purposes, coutdng other things, have the effect of delayingedaig, or preventing a change in control of
our company and might harm the market price ofammmon stock and the voting power and other rightse holders of common stock. As
of June 30, 2008, there were no shares of prefetrmedk outstanding and we have no current plaisste any shares of preferred stock.

Deferred Stock Compensati

Prior to our adoption of SFAS 123R in fisc@DB, we recorded and amortized deferred stock cosgtion. Upon our adoption of SFAS
123R, we ceased amortizing deferred stock compensagversed the remaining unamortized deferreckstompensation balance of $303,
to additional paid-in capital, and now expensegtant date fair value of share-based awards.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

As of June 30, 2008, we had reserved sharesmimon stock for future issuance as follows:

Stock options outstandir 6,148,27!
Deferred stock units outstandi 573,44
Awards available for grant under all st-based award plar 5,747,84i

Reserved for future issuan 12,469,57
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Through November 30, 2009, upon the occurrefieefundamental change as defined in the indergarerning the Notes, we could
potentially be obligated to issue up to 11.876 afiger $1,000 of principal amount of Notes, footaltof 1,484,381 shares of common stock,
which are not reflected in the above table.

Treasury Stock

In July 2008, our board of directors authadize additional $80 million for our common stockghase program. The program authorize
to purchase our common stock in the open markiet privately negotiated transactions depending uparket conditions and other factors.
The number of shares purchased and the timingrehpses is based on the level of our cash balageasral business and market conditions,
and other factors, including alternative investnagportunities. Common stock purchased under tlugram is held as treasury stock. From
April 2005 through June 30, 2008, we purchased®1@® shares of our common stock in the open méoketin aggregate cost of
$237.4 million or an average cost of $26.12 peresha

10. Share-Based Compensation

The purpose of our various share-based comagienslans is to attract, motivate, retain, andame high-quality employees, directors, and
consultants by enabling such persons to acquigcogase their proprietary interest in our commimalsin order to strengthen the mutuality of
interests between such persons and our stockh@derto provide such persons with annual and lengrperformance incentives to focus
their best efforts in the creation of stockholdalue. Consequently, we determine share-based c@watmen awards issued subsequent to the
initial award to our employees and consultants grily on individual performance. Our share-baseghjgensation plans with outstanding
awards consist of our 1996 Stock Option Plan, @@02Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, our 2001 Ineen€ompensation Plan, and our 2001
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Share-based compensation awards availablrdot or issuance for each plan as of the beginwiintige fiscal year, including changes in the
balance of awards available for grant for the yeated June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Awards
Available 2000 2001 Employee
Under All Nonstatutory Incentive Stock
Shar-Based Stock Optior Compensatiol Purchast
Award Plans Plan Plan Plan
Balance at June 30, 20 4,994,94. 56,37¢ 4,263,16! 675,40:
Additional shares authoriz¢ 2,705,86! — 2,315,091 390,77:
Stock options grante (2,000,871 — (2,000,871) —
Deferred stock units grantt (368,889 — (368,889 —
Purchases under employee stock purchase (58,397 — — (58,397)
Forfeited and expire 475,18:. — 475,18: —
Plan shares expire — — — —
Balance at June 30, 20 5,747,84: 56,37¢ 4,683,68! 1,007,78:

Our 1996 Stock Option Plan (“1996 PlaaXpired in December 2006. Accordingly, no new gsaman be issued under the 1996 Plan. O
awards that are currently outstanding under thé& F38n will remain outstanding until exercised féited, or cancelled under the terms of the
option grant agreements.
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Share-based compensation and the relatecetaefibrecognized in our consolidated statemeimadme for the years ended June 30, 2006,
2007, and 2008 were (in thousands):

2006 2007 2008
Cost of revenui $ 682 $ 75C 1,10z
Research and developmt 4,79¢ 5,091 6,321
Selling, general, and administrati 7,71¢ 8,451 10,08(
Total $13,20( $14,29: $17,50:
Income tax benefit on shbased compensatic $ 2,94( $ 4,14C $ 6,11«

We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricingaebdto estimate the grant date fair value of cergamployee share-based compensatory
awards, which requires the input of highly subjeetassumptions, including expected volatility ardexted life. Historical and implied
volatilities were used in estimating the fair vabfeour share-based awards, while the expectedfifeir options was estimated to be five years
based on historical trends since our initial pubfiering. Changes in these inputs and assumptiansnaterially affect the measure of
estimated fair value of our share-based awardshé&yras required under SFAS 123R, we estimateifarés for share-based awards that are
not expected to vest. We charge the estimatedditiie less estimated forfeitures to earnings anaéght-line basis over the vesting period of
the underlying awards, which is generally four gefar our stock option and deferred stock unit alsamd up to two years for our employee
stock purchase plan. The Black-Scholes optionmgionodel was developed for use in estimating thevédue of traded options having no
vesting restrictions and being fully transferaldls.our stock option and employee stock purchase gleards have characteristics that differ
significantly from traded options and, as changethé subjective assumptions can materially atteetestimated value, our estimate of fair
value may not accurately represent the value asdigy a third party in an arms’-length transactihile our estimate of fair value and the
associated charge to earnings materially affeatsemults of operations, it has no impact on oghgaosition.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizebtnefit upon expensing certain share-based aveasixiated with our share-based
compensation plans, including nonqualified stockams and deferred stock unit awards, but undereatiraccounting standards we cannot
recognize tax benefit concurrent with the recognitof share-based compensation expenses assowitttddcentive stock options and
employee stock purchase plan shares (qualifiedk stptions). For qualified stock options that vesaéter our adoption of SFAS 123R, we
recognize tax benefit only in the period when daiying dispositions of the underlying stock occwhich historically has been up to several
years after vesting and in a period when our spride substantially increases. For qualified stopkons that vested prior to our adoptior
SFAS 123R, the tax benefit is recorded directlgdditional paid-in capital. In fiscal 2008, we iizall tax benefit from non-qualified stock
option exercises and disqualifying dispositionsjedlified stock options totaling $5.8 million, ohieh $1.6 million of the tax benefit was
recognized as a reduction of the provision for medaxes, $3.9 million reduced deferred tax assgtblished after our adoption of SFAS
123R, and the remaining $289,000 of tax benefit eaerded directly to additional paid-in capital.

We determine excess tax benefit using the-lwang method in which we compare the actual tavebeassociated with the tax deduction
from share-based award activity to the hypothetalbenefit on the grant date fair values of theesponding share-based awards. Actual tax
benefit related to the tax deduction for share-i@seards exceeded the hypothetical tax benefihemgtant date fair values of the
corresponding share-based awards resulting in sxagsenefit of $289,000 in fiscal 2008.

Historically, we have issued new shares imeation with our share-based compensation planseher, 9,088,100 treasury shares are also
available for issuance as of the end of fiscal 2@08/ incremental shares purchased under our constomk purchase program would be
available for issuance.

Stock Options

Our share-based compensation plans with adstg stock option awards include our 1996 StockidbpPlan, our 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan, and our 2001 Incentive Compensatiam Rthe “Plans”). Under the Plans, we may grantleyges, consultants, and directors
incentive stock options or
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nonqualified stock options to purchase shares ptommon stock at not less than 100% or 85% ofalienarket value, respectively, on the
date of grant.

Options issued under the Plans generally2&%t at the end of 12 months from the vesting conuaeent date and approximately 2% each
month thereafter until fully vested at the end 8fonths from the vesting commencement date. Optioh exercised ten years after the date
of grant are cancelled.

The following table summarizes stock optiotivity and weighted average exercise prices foclstaptions granted, exercised, forfeited,
expired for fiscal 2008 and the balance of outstamdnd exercisable stock options as of June 308:20

Stock Weighted

Option Average

Awards Exercise
QOutstanding Price
Balance at June 30, 20 6,960,17. $12.7¢
Grantec 2,000,871 24.6¢
Exercisec (2,402,34) 9.8(
Forfeited (403,09) 17.1¢
Expired (7,33)) 14.61
Balance at June 30, 20 6,148,27! 17.52
Exercisable at June 30, 20 2,624,76. 12.8¢

As of June 30, 2008, the number of stock mtioutstanding and exercisable by range of exepeises, the weighted average exercise
prices, and the intrinsic value and for optionsstartding the weighted average remaining contratifaakere as follows:

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Intrinsic Average Intrinsic

Range of Number Contractua Exercise Value Number Exercise Value
Exercise Price Outstanding Term Price (in thousand: Exercisable Price (in thousand:
$ 0.67- $6.6¢ 702,91° 3.9¢ $ 4.51 $ 14,80 702,90: $ 4.51 $ 14,80
$ 7.27- $13.5¢ 635,81 6.1¢€ 11.8¢ 8,72¢ 538,16 11.6¢ 7,501
$14.02- $14.3: 883,81 7.58 14.1¢ 10,07: 413,16t 14.21 4,697
$14.59- $15.5¢ 818,85 8.6t 15.2:% 8,47¢ 158,23( 14.9¢ 1,68t
$16.62- $19.6: 671,86¢ 8.5(C 18.9¢ 4,43¢ 256,04! 18.7¢ 1,751
$19.91- $20.47 813,37- 7.1t 20.2¢ 4,32 543,53: 20.2¢ 2,891
$21.92- $26.17 860,71¢ 9.71 23.6: 1,68: — — —
$26.47- $27.7¢ 596,28 9.1: 26.7: — 12,71¢ 26.4; —
$ 39.51 164,62° 9.3¢ 39.51 — — — —
6,148,27! 7.6¢ 17.52 $ 52,52 2,624,76. 12.8¢ $ 33,33

The aggregate intrinsic value is based orclbging price of our common stock on June 27, 268f0825.58 and excludes the impact of
options that were not in-the-money.

At June 30, 2008, we estimate fully vestedaoyst and options expected to vest to be 5.6 millith an aggregate intrinsic value of
$50.0 million having a weighted average exerciseepof $17.07 and a weighted average remainingaotnal term of seven and a half years.
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The following table summarizes cash receivadithe aggregate intrinsic value for stock optierercised for the years ended June 30, 2
2007, and 2008 (in thousands):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008
Cash receive $ 6,83 $18,51: $23,55(
Aggregate intrinsic valu $17,70" $40,21+ $49,27:

The fair value of each award granted fromPlans for the year ended June 30, 2008 was estimatbe date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming no expedigdends and the following range of assumptions:

Expected volatility 49.5%- 60.4%
Expected life in year 44-5C
Risk-free interest rat 2.8%- 4.€%
Fair value per awar $8.04- $19.2¢

The expected volatility is based on historiadl implied volatilities; the expected life is bdn historical option exercise trends; and the
risk free interest rate is based on U. S. Treagialds in effect at the time of grant for the exjgeclife of the option.

Unrecognized share-based compensation casssoitk options granted under the Plans were appeigly $32.0 million as of June 30,
2008, to be recognized over a weighted averagedefiapproximately three years.

Deferred Stock Unit

Our 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan (“20GnBl provides for the grant of deferred stock wvitards (“DSUSs”) to our employees,
consultants, and directors. A DSU is a promisediivdr shares of our common stock at a future olesecordance with the terms of the DSU
grant agreement. We began granting DSUs in JarRe0§.

DSUs granted under the 2001 Plan generally2&% at the end of one year from the vesting contament date and at a rate of
approximately 6% each quarter thereafter untilyfulbsted at the end of four years from the vestmmgmencement date. Delivery of shares
under the plan takes place on the quarterly vestatgs. At the delivery date, we withhold sharesoieer statutory minimum tax withholding
by delivering a net number of shares. Until delvef shares, the grantee has no rights as a sttskho

An election to defer delivery of the underlyishares for unvested DSUs can be made by theegrantvided the deferral election is mad
least one year before vesting and the deferrabgésiat least five years from the scheduled delidate.

The following table summarizes DSU activitycluding DSUs granted, delivered, and forfeitefisnal 2008 and the balance and aggregate
intrinsic value of DSUs as of June 30, 2008:

Deferred Aggregate Weighted

Stock Unit Intrinsic Average

Awards Value Grant Date

Qutstanding (in thousands Fair Value
Balance at June 30, 20 385,83° $17.87
Grantec 368,88 $25.3¢
Delivered (116,519 $17.4¢
Forfeited (64,759 $22.0z
Balance at June 30, 20 573,44 $14,66: $22.3:
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Of the shares delivered, 32,655 shares vatu&d46,000 were withheld to meet statutory minintarwithholding requirements. The
aggregate intrinsic value is based on the closiggwf our common stock on June 27, 2008 of $25.58

Unrecognized share-based compensation casisSds granted under the 2001 Plan were approxiyjn@g7 million as of June 30, 2008,
which will be recognized over a weighted averag@éogeof approximately three years. The aggregatisic value of DSUs delivered in fiscal
2008 was $2.7 million.

Employee Stock Purchase P!

Our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (‘ESB&ame effective on January 29, 2002, the effectate of the registration statement for
our initial public offering. The ESPP allows empéap to designate up to 15% of their base compensatibject to legal restrictions and
limitations, to purchase shares of common sto@&&t of the lesser of the fair market value (“FM\&t)the beginning of the offering period or
the exercise date. The offering period extendsifoto two years and includes four exercise datearoing at six month intervals. Under the
terms of the ESPP, if the FMV at an exercise dateds than the FMV at the beginning of the ofigferiod, the current offering period will
terminate and a new two-year offering period wilhtmence.

The following table summarizes shares purathaseighted average purchase price, cash receanelthe aggregate intrinsic value for E:
purchases for the years ended June 30, 2006, 28672008 (in thousands, except for shares purctasdaeighted average purchase price):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008
Shares purchast¢ 139,60¢ 244,79:. 58,39:
Weighted average purchase pi $ 11.7¢ $ 12.1f $ 20.81
Cash receive $ 1,64f $ 2,971 $ 1,21¢
Aggregate intrinsic valu $ 48¢ 1,78¢ $ 387

In accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin N@-1, “Accounting under Statement 123 for Certainployee Stock Purchase Plans with a
Look-Back Option,” the early termination of an affey period followed by the commencement of a néferong period represents a
modification to the terms of the related awardsdéhthe terms of our ESPP, the offering periodsdhenmenced on January 1, 2005 and 2006
were terminated on June 30, 2005 and 2006 and ffeving periods commenced on July 1, 2005 and 26&hectively. The June 30, 2005
modification affected 169 employees, and the JUhe€306 modification affected 13 employees. Bothdifications resulted in incremental
compensation costs that were recognized on a btriige basis over the period from the modificataate through June 30, 2007.

The fair value of each award granted under&®PP for the year ended June 30, 2008 was estimsiieg the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, assuming no expected dividends and theviollp range of assumptions:

Expected volatility 37.1%- 58.7%
Expected life in year 0.5-2.C
Risk-free interest rat 3.0%- 5.C%
Fair value per awar $6.51- $9.917

The expected volatility is based on eitherliggbvolatility or a weighting of implied and histoal volatility; the expected life is based on
each period that begins with the enrollment daté each purchase date remaining in the offeringagkat the date of enrollment in the plan;
and the risk free interest rate is based on U.8adury yields or yield curve in effect for eacheoted life.

Unrecognized share-based compensation casésviards granted under our ESPP as of June 30,\28@8approximately $1.3 million to be
amortized over the next fiscal year.
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11. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plandttime employees. Under the plan, eligible emgley may contribute a maximum of 25%
of their net compensation or the annual limit 058D0. The annual limit for employees who are 5&rger older is $20,500. In fiscal 2008,
provided matching funds of 25% of the employee’stabution up to a maximum of $3,875 per employ@e. made matching contributions of
$305,000, $383,000 and $603,000 in fiscal 20067280d 2008, respectively.
12. Income Taxes

Income before provision for income taxes cstesl of the following (in thousands):

Years ended June 2

2006 2007 2008
u.S $18,94¢ $21,86: $15,63¢
Foreign 6,57¢ 16,56¢ 33,15:
Income before provision for income tay $25,52¢ $38,43: $48,78¢

The provision for income taxes consists offtiwing (in thousands):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008
Current tax expens

Federa $ 5,19: $ 7,02¢ $11,09¢
State 1,60z 1,45t 56¢
Foreign 3,524 3,52¢ 5,42¢
10,31¢ 12,01: 17,09:

Deferred tax expens
Federal 1,14¢ 321 1,48t
State 12¢ (41¢) (88¢)
Foreign 23k (18 —
1,50¢ (115 597
Provision for income taxe $11,82: $11,89; $17,68t¢

The provision for income taxes differs frone flederal statutory rate as follows (in thousands):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008

Provision at U.S. federal statutory r: $ 8,93 $13,45: $17,07¢
State income taxe 1,43i 1,19; 1,57¢
Foreign withholding taxe 3,13( 3,83¢ 4,84:
Qualified stock option 2,43 1,672 87t
Business credit (2,12¢€ (3,915 (1,93¢
Foreign tax rate differenti (844) (3,482) (6,749
Tax exempt intere: (1,06t (1,526 (2,307
Change in valuation allowan (©) (5) 4,36:
Other difference (69 67C (1,050

Provision for income taxe $11,82: $11,89" $17,68¢
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As of June 30, 2007 and 2008, significant congmts of our deferred tax assets (liabilities)enas follows (in thousands):

2007 2008
Deferred tax asset
Investment writedown $ 1,097 $ 6,13t
Inventory writedown: 14¢ 15C
Depreciation and amortizatic 833 1,48¢
Accrued compensatic 83¢ 1,06t
Shar+based compensatic 3,91¢ 4,521
Business credit carryforwal 2,62¢ 4,85k
Other accrual 147 14€
9,612 18,357
Valuation allowanct (1,097 (6,13Y)
8,61F 12,22:
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest deductio (9,34%) (13,659
(9,349 (13,659
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (839 $ (1,430

Realization of deferred tax assets dependsiogenerating sufficient U.S. and certain fordigxable income in future years to obtain
benefit from the reversal of deferred tax asseteofdingly, the amount of deferred tax assets cemei realizable may increase or decrease
when we reevaluate the underlying basis for oumedés of future U.S. and foreign taxable incomg.ofJune 30, 2008, a valuation allowance
of $6.1 million had been established to reducerdedetax assets to levels that we believe are thane likely than not to be realized through
future taxable income. The valuation allowanceéased by $5.0 million in fiscal 2008, primarily dwenvestment writedowns.

As of June 30, 2007 and 2008, net deferrecsarts (liabilities) consisted of the followinddreces (in thousands):

2007 2008
Current deferred tax asst $ 1,06¢ $ 624
Non-current deferred tax asst 16C 1,09¢
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie (2,059 (3,159
Net deferred tax assets liabiliti $ (839 $ (1,430

Current deferred tax assets, non-current tefdax assets, and non-current deferred taxili@silare included in prepaid expenses and othel
current assets, other assets, and other liabjliéspectively, in the accompanying consolidatddrize sheets.

As of June 30, 2008, we had federal and stett®@perating loss carryforwards of approximate&g $illion and $51 million, respectively.
The federal and state net operating loss carryfatsvevere attributable to share-based award dedisctithe benefit of these net operating
losses will be recorded directly to additional-paictapital when realized. In addition, we had $ittion and $2.0 million of federal and state
tax credit carryforwards, respectively. The fedéaal credit carryforward begins to expire in 202 éhe state tax credit can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the current tax law, net operating lrsd tax credit carryforwards available to offseétife income or income taxes may be limited by
statute or upon the occurrence of certain evemttyding significant changes in ownership interests
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The total liability for gross unrecognized taenefits included in our consolidated balance sagef July 1, 2007 was $8.4 million. The
liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits irased approximately $5.1 million to $13.5 milliorf. tBis amount, $13.2 million would affect
the effective tax rate on income from continuin@gions if recognized. A reconciliation of the megng and ending amount of unrecognized
tax benefits is as follows (in millions):

Balance as of July 1, 20( $ 84
Increase in unrecognized tax benefit related torpgréar tax position 5.1
Balance as of June 30, 20 $ 13t

The total interest and penalties accruededltd unrecognized tax benefits as of July 1, 2083 $492,000. The liability for gross interest
expense and penalties increased by $246,000 toXB8Jnder FIN 48 our policy to classify interasd penalties, if any, as components of
income tax expense did not change.

It is reasonably possible that the amounhefliability for unrecognized tax benefits may chanvithin the next twelve months and an
estimate of the range of possible changes cannotaoie at this time due to the high uncertaintyhefresolution of our tax positions with the
various tax jurisdictions in which we operate. Aalingly, the unrecognized tax benefits from prieaytax positions that may be necessary to
accrue for or release in fiscal 2009 can not beaeably estimated at this time.

Currently, we are required to file income taturns in the United States, California, and treifyn tax jurisdictions in which we operate.
Our major tax jurisdictions are the United Statealifornia, and Hong Kong SAR. The fiscal periodattremain subject to examination by
these jurisdictions are fiscal 2002 and onwardséptember 2007, we were notified by the FranchéseBoard that our fiscal 2004 and 2005
returns were subject to audit. The audit is ongaingd no tax assessment has been proposed.

13. Segment, Customers, and Geographic Information

We operate in one segment: the developmenkeatiag, and sale of interactive user interfaceisohs for electronic devices and products.
We generate our revenue from two broad producgoeaites: the PC market and digital lifestyle prodwetrkets. The PC market accounted for
85%, 85%, and 76% of our net revenue for the yeaded June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008, respectively.

The following is a summary of net revenue witheographic areas based on our customers’ lotafio thousands):

Years ended June 3

2006 2007 2008

China $141,95¢ $213,86: $235,74¢
Taiwan 23,55¢ 27,58 55,57¢
Korea 2,17¢ 7,80¢ 38,911
Japar 4,87: 5,771 18,34
United State: 3,24z 3,81t 99¢
Singapore 4,541 1,21¢ 282
Other 4,20¢ 6,72i 11,19¢

$184,55' $266,78° $361,05'
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As of June 30, 2007 and 2008, long-lived asadéthin geographic areas consisted of the follga{in thousands):

2007 2008
United State: $17,15( $19,66:
Asia/Pacific 2,25( 2,797
$19,40( $22,45¢

Our goodwill of $1.9 million, is primarily relateid the United States.
Major customers as a percentage of net revenue asei@lows:

Years ended June 2

2006 2007 2008
Customer A * * 1C%
Customer E * 14% *
Customer C 10% 11% *
Customer C 14% * *

* Less than 109

14. Restructuring Charge

In fiscal 2007, we incurred a restructuringuge of $915,000 in connection with the closurewfEuropean development center as part of
our strategic efforts to realign our developmemtatalities to better meet the needs of our AsiafRazustomer base. We accounted for our
restructuring charge in accordance with SFAS 1A8cbunting for Costs Associated with Exit or DispbActivities.” Included in the
restructuring charge were personnel costs, congisfi severance and relocation of $526,000; a lesserve of $287,000, net of estimated
sublease income; and a non-cash impairment of pyopad equipment of $102,000. As of June 30, 2@0tosts associated with the
restructuring were settled and no additional paytrobligation exists.

15. Subsequent Events

On July 31, 2008, we announced a 3-for-2 stpdit to be effected as a stock dividend. Thelsgptit will be effective for stockholders of
record after the close of market on August 15, 2888 will be payable on August 29, 2008. Our finahstatements presented herein and the
associated footnotes reflect the retroactive efiéthe 3-for-2 stock split.

In July 2008, our Board of Directors authodizke purchase of up to an additional $80 milliblar common stock from time to time in the
open market or in privately negotiated transacti@wmmon stock purchased under this program isdetdeasury stock. From April 2005
through June 30, 2008, we purchased 9,088,100sbhamr common stock in the open market for arreggte cost of $237.4 million or an
average cost of $26.12 per share. The stock dididéth not be paid on treasury shares; accordintylg, post-split quantity of common treasury
shares for each period presented is unchangedthemre-split quantity. The timing and amount of &nture purchases will depend upon
market conditions and other factors.
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Exhibit 12.]

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Set forth below is information concernimgy ratio of earnings to fixed charges on a cadatéd basis for the periods indicated. This |
shows the extent to which our business generatasgbnearnings after the payment of all expensesr dlfan interest to make the required
interest payments on our convertible senior sulbatéd notes.

For purposes of computing the ratio ohaways to fixed charges, “earnings” consist of imeobefore income taxes and fixed charges.
“Fixed charges” consist of interest expense angtréon of rent expense we believe representintieeest component of such rent expense.

(in thousands, expect for ratios)

Years ended June 3

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Fixed charges:
Interest expens $ 134 $ 1,14t $ 1,93¢ $ 1,95( $ 1,82¢
Portion of rent expense deemed to represent il 35¢ 392 262 344 34¢
Total fixed charge $ 49z $ 1,53 $ 2,201 $ 2,29¢ $ 2,171

Earnings:

Net income $12,99: $37,98¢ $13,70: $26,53¢ $31,10(
Income taxe: 7,93¢ 20,34 11,822 11,897 17,68¢
Fixed charge: 492 1,53i 2,201 2,294 2,171
Total earnings for computation of ra $21,41¢ $59,86¢ $27,72¢ $40,72¢ $50,95¢

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 43.F 39.C 12.€ 17.¢ 23.t



List of Subsidiaries

NAME

STATE OR JURISDICION
OF ORGANIZATION

Exhibit 21

Synaptics International, In
Synaptics (UK) Limitec
Synaptics Hong Kong Limite
Synaptics Europe S¢
Synaptics Holding Gmbl

Synaptics LLC

California
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Switzerland
Switzerland

Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated:

We consent to the incorporation by refeeein the Registration Statements (Nos. 333-81828,82288, 333-82286, 333-82282, 333-
99531, 333-146145 and 333-146146) on Form S-8,d®agipn Statement No. 333-115274 on Form S-4 Reglstration Statement No. 333-
122348 on Form S-3 of Synaptics Incorporated ofreports dated August 27, 2008, with respect ta:tivsolidated balance sheets of
Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaries as of 30n2007 and June 28, 2008, and the related colasedl statements of income, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flowsdoh of the years in the three-year period ended 428, 2008 and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of 8.8, 2008, which reports appear in the June 28 20nual report on Form 10-K of Synaptics
Incorporated. Our report dated August 27, 2008uitets an explanatory paragraph relating to the &topf the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48@unting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — anfiptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109, at the beginning of fiscal 20(

/s KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 27, 2008



Exhibit 31.]

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Francis F. Lee, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to i
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe

the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repao

. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (i

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegiig’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) ahldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 27, 2008 /sl Francis F. Lee

Francis F. Lee
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

[, Russell J. Knittel, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to i
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe

the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repao

. The registrar' s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (i

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtiae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 27, 200¢ /s/ Russell J. Knittel

Russell J. Knittel
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Offier

In connection with the Annual Report ari 10-K of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Comparfpt)the year ended June 30, 2008 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), |, Francis F. Lee, Riest and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(dapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ Francis F. Lee
Francis F. Lee

Chief Executive Officer
August 27, 200!




Exhibit 32.2

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Offier

In connection with the Annual Report arii 10-K of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Comparfpt)the year ended June 30, 2008 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Russell J. Knitt&&nior Vice President, Chief Financial

Officer, Chief Administrative Officer, SecretarnyndTreasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant&®J1S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

/s/ Russell J. Knittel
Russell J. Knittel
Chief Financial Officer
August 27, 200!




